
 

 

 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

 
A Meeting of East Hampshire District Council will be held in the Council Chamber, 
Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX on Thursday, 20 January 2022 at 6.00 pm 
when your attendance is requested to consider the business set out in the agenda 
below.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 

 
 

   

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 (Items open to the Public)  
 
1  Chairman's Announcements   

 
To receive any reports the Chairman wishes to make. 
 
2  Apologies for Absence   

 
To receive and record any apologies for absence. 
 
3  Declarations of Interest   

 
 
To receive and record any declarations of interest. 
 
  
 
4  Confirmation of Previous Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held 11 November 2021. 
 
5  Public Questions (Standing Order 27.5)   

 



 

 

To deal with any public questions submitted in accordance with the requirements of 
Standing Order 27.5, which is to deal with any public questions notified no later than 
12 noon three working days before the meeting and in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol for public questions.  
 
Protocol for Public Questions 
 
 
6  Council Tax Support Scheme  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
7  The Revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community 

Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016  (Pages 13 - 90) 
 

8  Cabinet and Committee Recommendations  (Pages 91 - 120) 
 

To consider the following recommendations to Council: 
 
1 Standards Committee – 07 December 2021 
 
(A) Governance Improvement Action Plan 

 
To consider the following recommendation arising from the meeting of 
Standards Committee held on 07 December 2021.  The agenda and reports 
for this meeting can be viewed via the following link: 

 
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=381
8 
 
RECOMMENDED to full Council that: 

2.1 Members are requested to note the final updates detailed in the 
Governance Improvement Action Plan at Appendix A, which set out 
actions now completed in order to implement the Governance Review 
recommendations. 

 
2.2 the Committee recommend that the GIAP and its final updates now be 

reported to full Council for noting.  
 
 

(B) Amendments to the Constitution 
 

To consider the following recommendation arising from the meeting of 
Standards Committee held on 07 December 2021.  The agenda and reports 
for this meeting can be viewed via the following link: 

 
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=381
8 

 
RECOMMENDED to full Council that: 
 
2.1 Members are requested consider the recommendations of the 

Constitution Liaison Panel and, if agreed, to recommend to full Council 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD377&ID=377&sch=doc
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=3818
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=3818
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=3818
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=3818


 

 

the following changes to the Constitution: -  
 

 The addition of words to the Preamble to the Councillors’ Code 
of Conduct (Part 4 Section B of the Constitution) as set out in 
paragraph 4.4. of the report to place the Code in context and to 
link it to connected policies and protocols – all in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Bowles’ governance review  

 

 Confirmation that variation or removal of planning conditions, 
and other amendments to approved schemes, are only reserved 
to the Planning Committee where they have a significant impact 
or change the character of a planning permission (approving an 
amendment to paragraph 2.2.7 of Part 2 Section E1 of the 
Constitution as set out in paragraph 5.2 of the report) 

 
2.2. The new wording that would give effect to these changes is set out in 

the report. 
 
2 Cabinet – 20 January 2022 
 

 Withdrawal from Joint Management and Shared Staff Arrangements 
 
 
9  Portfolio Holder Reports to Council  (Pages 121 - 136) 

 
10  Questions under Standing Order 27.4.1   

 

To deal with any questions from Councillors submitted by 12 noon three working 
days before the meeting. 
 
11  Questions under Standing Order 27.4.2   

 
To deal with any urgent questions received no less than two hours prior to the start 
of the meeting and in accordance with standing order 27.4.2. 
 
12  Special Urgency Decisions   

 
To note the following special urgency decision made: 
 
Termination of the Joint Management Team Agreement 
 
 
  
 
13  Committee Minutes   

 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees held since the last meeting of 
the Council: 
 
16 October 2021 Planning Policy Committee 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?id=181&LLL=0


 

 

19 October 2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
28 October 2021 Cabinet 
06 December 2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
07 December 2021 Standards Committee 
09 December 2021 Planning Committee 
16 December 2021 Cabinet 
17 December 2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
20 December 2021 Planning Policy Committee 
 
 
 

PART 2 (Confidential Items)  
 
None. 
 
 
 



  1 
Council 

(11.11.21) 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Council held on 11 November 2021 
 
 
Present  
 
Councillor: A Carew (Chairman) 
 
Councillors: Sear, K Budden, A Agate, D Ashcroft, S Burns, J Butler, K Carter, 
T Costigan, P Davies, S Dolan, N Drew, D Evans, M Gass, A Glass, C Hatter, G Hill, 
S Hunt, M Johnson, P Langley, C Louisson, T Maroney, J Matthews, D McKinney, 
R Millard, R Mocatta, K Moon, B Mouland, R Oppenheimer, R Platt, S Pond (Vice-
Chairman), S Schillemore, N Taylor, D Tennyson, P Wigman, A Williams, 
E Woodard and B Gottlieb. 
 
 
25 Chairman's Announcements  

 
Members welcomed Cllr Blossom Gottlieb of the Green Party to the meeting. 
 
Members held a minutes silence to honour all those who have lost their lives in 
the line of public duty, with special thoughts to David Amess MP and his family. 
 
The Chairman provided members with an overview of his engagements since 
the last meeting of the Council. 
 
 

26 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies of absence were received from Cllrs Ingrid Thomas, Tom Hanrahan, 
Ben Bentley and Ginny Boxall. 
 
 

27 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest from members present. 
 
 

28 Confirmation of Previous Minutes  
 
Proposed by Cllr Louisson and seconded by Cllr Maroney, following a vote, It 
was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of 23 September 2021 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
  
 

29 Public Questions (Standing Order 27.5)  
 
There were no questions from the public under the provision of this standing 
order. 
 Page 1

Agenda Item 4



  2 
Council 

(11.11.21) 
 
 

30 Alton Neighbourhood Plan  
 
Cllr Glass introduced the report as the relevant Portfolio Holder and confirmed 
that the report had previously been considered by the Planning Policy 
Committee at their meeting of 18 October 2021, who recommended it to 
Council.  
 
Proposed by Cllr Glass and seconded by Cllr Williams.  Following the debate 
and vote it, was RESOLVED that the Alton Neighbourhood Development Plan 
2011-2028 (as modified April 2021) is adopted with immediate effect, so that it 
becomes part of the statutory development plan for the area. 
  
 

31 Cabinet and Committee Recommendations  
 
Cllr Mouland, Chairman of the Licensing Committee, introduced the item and 
proposed the recommendation of the Licensing Committee held on 21 
September 2021. 
 
This motion was duly seconded by Cllr Ashcroft. 
 
Following debate and a vote, it was RESOLVED that Council approve the 
Caravan Site Licensing: Fit and Proper Person Determination Policy 2021-
2026, and the appended Fee Procedure. 
  
 

32 Portfolio Holder Reports to Council  
 
The Chairman invited members of the Council to put questions to the Cabinet 
Portfolio Holders in connection with their published reports. 
 
Portfolio Holders answered questions from Members present in the meeting.  
 
In addition to the questions that were responded to as part of this item, the 
Leader pledged to provide Cllr Hunt with a written response to his request for 
updated information on the traffic numbers of vehicles travelling along Chawton 
Park Road, making their way to and from the Leisure Centre at Alton.     
 
The Leader added to his portfolio report, commenting broadly on the future 
direction on ‘green’ issues and the importance of cross-party working and input.    
  
 

33 Questions under Standing Order 27.4.1  
 
There were no questions received under the provision of this standing order. 
  
 

34 Questions under Standing Order 27.4.2  
 
There were no urgent questions received under the provision of this standing 
order. Page 2



  3 
Council 

(11.11.21) 
 
 

35 Motions Received under Procedural Order 14.1  
 
Cllr Langley proposed the following Motion to Council, seconded by Cllr Dolan: 
 
East Hampshire District Council resolves to work alongside Pancreatic Cancer 
Action or other organisations to:  

 Share information about pancreatic cancer and its symptoms on its 
website and social media channels  

 Offer Pancreatic Cancer Action occupational health training to staff on 
symptom awareness  

 Display symptom awareness posters in our public buildings each 
November  

 Provide community groups, charities and partners with information on 
pancreatic cancer and local support services.  

 Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Secretary of State for Health 
& Social Care to ensure incoming the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Integrated Care System has the funding needed to support all cancer 
patients and improve early diagnosis.  

 

Following a 5-minute break, Cllr Dolan extended his thanks to the Members for 
sharing their personal experiences, to the Leader for his support of this motion 
and to Cllr Langley for bringing this motion to Council.   
 
Following the debate and a vote the motion was RESOLVED as proposed. 
  
 

36 Appointments  
 
Cllr Gottlieb left the meeting prior to this item being considered. 
 
Members raised the omission of a note of Vice-Chairman of Council and of 
Standards Committee from Appendix 3.  The Democratic Services Team 
Leader confirmed this was an administrative error, which will be amended and 
has no impact on the political balance. 
 
Proposed by Cllr Louisson and seconded by Cllr Hunt, following a vote it was 
RESOLVED that: 

 the political balance of the council as set out in Appendix 1 of this report 
be noted 

 the appointment of an Assistant Portfolio Holder as set out in Appendix 2 
to this report be noted   

 the appointments to the Planning Policy Committee, commencing  30 
September 2021, as wet out in Appendix 3 to this report be approved 

 the appointments to the Joint HR Committee, commencing 30 
September 20921, as set out in Appendix 3 to this report, be approved; 
and 

 the appointment to the Councillor Development Panel, as set out in 
Appendix 3 to this report, be approved. 

 Page 3



  4 
Council 

(11.11.21) 
 
 

37 Committee Minutes  
 
Proposed by Cllr Drew and seconded by Cllr Budden it was RESOLVED that 
the minutes of Committees held since the last meeting of the Council were 
received. 
 
 
  
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 7.28 pm 
 

Page 4



  

                                                                            Page  1 of 7 

 

 

NON-EXEMPT  

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Council                 20th January 2022   

     

Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 

Report by Tracey Hughes – Benefits Manager 

FOR DECISION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Portfolio Holder for Finance Cllr Charles Louisson 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Number:  EHDC/040/2022 

 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report  

1.1 This report was considered by Cabinet on 16 December 2021 and the below 

recommendations were agreed for onward submission to Full Council. 

2.0 Recommendation  
 
That Council approve the following: 
 

2.1 That the 2021/22 Council Tax Support Scheme is retained for 2022/23 but with the 

following amendments:  

(i)  the Allowances and Premiums used in determining entitlement for working age 

claims are changed as set out in paragraph 4.3 (i) of this report 

(ii)  the Non-Dependant deductions used in determining entitlement for working age 
claims are changed as set out in paragraph 4.3 (ii) of this report. 

2.2  That the necessary amendments are made to the Council Tax Support Scheme 
document and that it is then published in accordance with Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 Section 13A(2). 

1 This would match the DWP’s approach and maintain the alignment with Housing Benefit. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



  

                                                                            Page  2 of 7 

 

3.0 Executive Summary  
 

3.1 The localised Council Tax Support scheme was introduced by the Local Government 

Finance Act 2012 to replace the national Council Tax Benefit scheme from 1/4/13. 

3.2 The legislation imposes a duty on each Council to adopt a scheme by 11 March 

each year to apply for the forthcoming financial year. Council Tax Support is treated 

as a discount for Council Tax purposes and therefore reduces the tax base 

proportionately. Therefore, the cost of the scheme is spread over all Council Tax 

payers, much the same as any other discount such as Single Person Discount. 

3.3 This report was submitted to Cabinet on 16 December 2021, who agreed the 

recommendations set out in the report. 

4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications  
 

4.1 EHDC’s current scheme is based on the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 

Government (MHCLG) default scheme (which mirrored the former council tax benefit 

scheme in terms of the maximum amount of support available) together with 

increased earnings disregards for working age single claimants and couples to 

enhance work incentives within the scheme. The estimated annual cost of this 

enhancement to East Hampshire District Council is between £5000 and £8000. 

The scheme therefore offers a slightly enhanced level of support compared to the 

former council tax benefit scheme. 

4.2 Scheme expenditure and caseload has remained static through the first half of 

2021/22.  April through to August 21/22 has shown an average reduction in caseload 

of 10 cases per month.   

Council Tax Support caseload and expenditure  

 Cases in 

payment on 

31 March 

Amount of 

benefit/support 

paid out 

note 

2012/13 5,463 £4,908,772 Last year of Council Tax 

Benefit 

2013/14 5,099 £4,740,070  

2014/15   4,807 £4,467,359  

2015/16 4,561 £4,218,279  

2016/17 4,495 £4,227,493  

2017/18 4,397 £4,240,623  

Page 6



  

                                                                            Page  3 of 7 

 

2018/19  4,260 £4,404,245  

2019/20 4323 £4,519,892  

2020/21 4,591 £4,975,508  

2021/22 4541 £5,190,680 As at 30/08/2021 

2022/23 4351 £5,368,266 Estimated cost for the year 

 

4.3 To retain the current scheme for 2022/23 but with the following amendments: 

i. the Allowances and Premiums used in determining entitlement for working 
age claims are changed as set out in paragraph 4.6 of this report 

ii. the Non Dependant deductions used in determining entitlement for working 
age claims are changed as set out in paragraph 4.7 of this report 
 

4.4  The estimated cost of retaining the current scheme for 2022/23 is £5,368,266. This 

estimate assumes that the current caseload pattern continues for the remainder of 

2021/22 and through to 2022/23. The estimate also assumes that the relevant 

precepting authorities will levy their Council Tax precept from 1 April 2022 based on 

last year’s figures.   

4.5 Uprating – this is the process under which various elements (Personal Allowances, 

Premiums and Non-Dependant deductions) used in the calculation of entitlement 

under the scheme are altered to reflect inflation and changes to the level of pensions 

and other Benefits. 

4.6  Personal Allowances and Premiums – the arrangements for pensioners within our 

scheme are prescribed by the MHCLG and they will be advising Councils of the new 

figures that must be included in our scheme for 2022/23. However, for working age 

claims it is for the Council to decide. The Personal Allowances and Premiums in our 

current scheme match those that are used to calculate Housing Benefit for working 

age claimants. To retain this consistency with the Housing Benefit scheme, it is 

recommended that the Council adopts the same figures that the Department for 

Work & Pensions (DWP) will be specifying for the Housing Benefit scheme for 

2022/23. The DWP will advise councils of these in due course but it is expected that 

the DWP will increase personal allowances and premiums on last year’s figures. 

4.7 Non-Dependant deductions – our current Council Tax Support scheme includes the 

same levels for non-dependant deductions for both pension age and working age 

claims. The MHCLG will be prescribing the revised non-dependant deduction levels 

for pension age claims and to retain consistency, it is recommended that the revised 

figures set by the MHCLG for pension age claims for 2022/23 are also adopted for 

Page 7



  

                                                                            Page  4 of 7 

 

working age claims for 2022/23. The MHCLG will advise councils of the amounts in 

due course. 

4.8  To continue a Council Tax Support Hardship Fund to support the most vulnerable 

Council Tax Support customers to:  

(iI) Allow a short period of time to adjust to unforeseen short-term financial 
circumstances whilst the applicant seeks alternative solutions. 

(iII) Support the applicant in managing their finances 
(iIII) Help the applicant through personal circumstances and difficult events that affect 

their finances 
(iIV) Prevent exceptional hardship 
(iV) Support those who are trying to help themselves financially  

   The expected cost would be £5,000.   

5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Directorate 
Business Plan/s 

 

5.1 The approach recommended supports the Councils corporate Strategy ‘A thriving 

local economy with infrastructure to support our ambitions’ but also ensures the most 

vulnerable residents are equally supported. 
 

6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 
 

6.1 A full review was conducted in 2017 – a further review was planned to be undertaken 

in 2021-22 to look at the introduction of a simplified Banded Council Tax Support 

scheme for 2022/23.  This has had to be carried forward to 2022/23 due to the 

current economic crisis because of Covid-19.   

 

6.2 Considering the assumptions outlined in paragraphs 4.1 – 4.7, the estimated cost of 

retaining the current scheme for 2022/23 is £5,368,266. Retaining the current 

scheme would require no increase in staffing or other administration costs and is the 

most effective option that also meets the objectives of the council without 

disadvantaging our customers. 

7.       Resource Implications 

7.1      Financial Implications 

See point above  

 

 

Page 8



  

                                                                            Page  5 of 7 

 

 

 

7.2      Human Resources Implications 

None 

 

 

7.3     Information Governance Implications 

None 

7.4 Links to Shaping our Future Programme 

 

The statutory requirement for the Council to adopt a Council Tax Support Scheme 

annually is not impacted by the Shaping our Future Programme. 

 

8. Legal Implications 

8.1 The Council has a statutory duty to operate a Council Tax Support Scheme. Any 

changes to the current scheme for 2022/23 must be adopted by full Council by 

11/03/2022.   

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 24th September 2021 

Legal implications are set out above in this report. 

 

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 18th October 2021 

Detailed figures are in the report. Retention of the current scheme would require no 

additional costs and delivers the objectives of the Council without disadvantaging our 

customers. 

Page 9



  

                                                                            Page  6 of 7 

 

9. Risks 

9.1 A full Customer Impact Assessment of the proposed 2013/14 scheme was 

completed during 2012. The proposed scheme for 2022/23 differs only marginally 

from the 2013/14 scheme.    

 

An increase in caseload would lead to an increase in the cost of the scheme. This is 

difficult to predict however current movement in caseload would suggest that the 

caseload is now stabilising and starting to reduce although only marginally.  

 

10. Consultation  

Cllr Charles Louisson 

Director of Corporate Services 

Monitoring Officer  

Head of Housing and Communities 

Head of Customer Services 

Hampshire County Council will be made aware of the proposed scheme 

Executive Board 

 

11. Communication 

11.1 Hampshire County Council will be advised of the proposed scheme for 2022/23 on 

behalf of the major precepting authorities. It is not anticipated that they will have any 

difficulties with the proposal. As the proposed scheme for 2022/23 retains 

comparable levels of support to those in the 2021/22 scheme, it is considered 

unnecessary to undertake any further public consultation. 

 

12. Appendices 

12.1 None 

13. Background papers 

13.1 None 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

Page 10



  

                                                                            Page  7 of 7 

 

 

Portfolio Holder: Charles Louisson – 13th October 21 

Director: Lydia Morrison – 13th October 21 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey, 24th September 2021  

Section 151 Officer: Matthew Tiller – 18th October 2021 

  

 

Contact Officer  

Name: Tracey Hughes 

Job Title: Benefits Manager 

Telephone: 01730 234173  

E-mail: Tracey.Hughes@easthants.gov.uk  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  

                                                                            Page  1 of 6 

 

NON-EXEMPT 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

COUNCIL              20 January 2022 

        

Revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure 

Levy SPD 2016 

 

FOR DECISION 

 

Portfolio Holder: Angela Glass 

Key Decision: No  

Report Number: EHDC/039/2022 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1. This report was considered by Planning Policy Committee on 20th December 2021 

and the below recommendation agreed for onward submission to Full Council. 

1.2. The report considers the options regarding the revocation of the Planning 

Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016.    

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are requested to approve the revocation of the Planning Contributions 

and Community Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. On the 7 April 2016, the Council adopted the Planning Contributions and 

Community Infrastructure Levy SPD. 

3.2. Since its production there have been many changes to how we plan for 

infrastructure and amendments made to legislation, namely the CIL Regulations 

2010 (as amended). This has resulted in the adopted SPD becoming out of date 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



  

                                                                            Page  2 of 6 

 

and in some instances, unlawful. A recommendation was brought to Council on 

14 January 2021 to factually update the SPD to remove out of date references to 

CIL, remove aspects that no longer satisfy the relevant legislation and retain 

those parts that can still lawfully be implemented. This was as an interim measure 

until such a time as we could adequately make provision elsewhere within the 

Council’s Planning Policy framework and therefore revoke the whole SPD. 

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

4.1. None 

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

5.1. The SPD was produced to set out the Council’s approach to delivering 

infrastructure associated with new development following the introduction of the 

CIL charging on the 8 April 2016 in the part of East Hampshire District that is 

located outside of the South Downs National Park.  

5.2. Since 2019 there has been a requirement to produce an annual Infrastructure 

Funding Statement (IFS). The Council’s first IFS was published in December 

2020. 

5.3. The Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) is an annual report published in 

December as a requirement of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 

(2019 Amendment). It provides a summary of all financial and non-financial 

developer contributions relating to Section 106 Legal Agreements (S106) and the 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

5.4. It can also to be used to not only report ‘the facts’ but to also make statements 

about future likely receipts, infrastructure priorities and how they will be funded. 

The Council can therefore use the IFS to set out how developer contributions will 

be used to deliver plan policies, including projects or types of infrastructure.  

5.5. Local authorities can publish Infrastructure Funding Statements more frequently if 

they wish, allowing for the information it contains to be maintained and up to date. 

5.6. The Council will therefore use the IFS to set out the Council’s approach to 

delivering infrastructure, incorporating those parts of the SPD that remain relevant 

Page 14



  

                                                                            Page  3 of 6 

 

and can still be lawfully implemented. The Council’s 2021 IFS is appended to this 

report for information and context (Appendix 1). 

6. Options considered 

6.1. The options considered are as follows: 

6.2. Option 1: Do nothing – do not revoke the SPD 

6.3. This option is not recommended by officers on the basis that the Council has a 

statutory obligation to plan for appropriate infrastructure to support the growth in 

the district. Since the abolition of Regulation123 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 

amended), the IFS identifies the infrastructure priorities. The Council’s Planning 

Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016 refers to 

Regulation123 throughout and is now to be superseded by the IFS. The two 

documents are likely to be contradictory as the SPD was prepared at a point in 

time. Therefore, it is necessary to revoke the Planning Contributions and 

Community Infrastructure Levy SPD to provide a clear policy framework moving 

forward. 

6.4. Option 2: revoke the SPD  

6.5. This is the only option that enables the Council to remove a document which no 

longer meets our needs or the legal requirements. This option ensures the 

provision of infrastructure and the Council’s infrastructure priorities, and decisions 

are transparent.  

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications 

7.2. None 

7.3. Human Resources Implications 

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 19 November 2021 

No additional financial implications 

Page 15



  

                                                                            Page  4 of 6 

 

7.4. None 

7.5. Information Governance Implications 

7.6. None 

7.7. Links to Shaping our Future Programme 

7.8. None   

7.9. Other resource implications 

7.10. None 

8. Legal Implications 

9. The revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy 

SPD will be in line with the requirements set out in the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 

10. Risks 

10.1. The revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy 

SPD means that this can no longer be used as a material planning consideration 

in the determination of planning applications. The aspects of the document that 

remain useful will be transferred into the IFS and published on the Council’s 

webpage. The risks of retaining the SPD in its current form are that much of its 

content is in direct contradiction with the direction of travel for spending CIL and 

its interaction with securing appropriate S106 obligations, following changes to 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 24 November 2021 

Legal and governance implications are set out in the legal implications section above 

Shaping our Future Lead comments/sign-off 

Date: 11 November 2021 

This report and recommendations have no implications for the SoF programme. 

Page 16



  

                                                                            Page  5 of 6 

 

legislation, namely the revocation of Regulation 123 of The Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 as amended (“the CIL Regulations”). 

11. Consultation  

11.1. The revocation of the SPD has been previously discussed with Development 

Management colleagues, at Planning Policy Committee and Council in relation to 

factually updating the document to try and ensure its legal compliance. 

12. Communication 

12.1. In line with the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 

Regulations 2012, Regulation 15, the Council will notify interested parties that the 

SPD has been revoked. This information will be made available on the Council’s 

webpages and key consultees, infrastructure providers and general consultation 

bodies will be notified via email or letter. 

13. Appendices 

13.1. Appendix 1 - EHDC IFS 2021 

14. Background papers 

14.1. Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

 

Portfolio Holder: Angela Glass 19.11.21 

Director: Simon Jenkins 24.11.21 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey  24.11.21 

Section 151 Officer: Lydia Morrison 23.11.21 

 

Contact Officer  

Name:  Adam Harvey 

Job Title: Acting Planning Policy Manager 

Page 17

https://cdn.easthants.gov.uk/public/documents/Planning%20Contributions%20and%20CIL%20Supplementary%20Planning%20Document%20-%20April%202016.pdf
https://cdn.easthants.gov.uk/public/documents/Planning%20Contributions%20and%20CIL%20Supplementary%20Planning%20Document%20-%20April%202016.pdf


  

                                                                            Page  6 of 6 

 

Telephone: 07341462872 

E-mail: adam.harvey@easthants.gov.uk  

  

 

 

 

Page 18



1

THE EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN 
‘PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS AND 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY’ 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT
APRIL 2016

Page 19



2
Page 20



3

1:  Introduction...page 5          

2: Context...page 5 

3:  The interaction between S106 planning obligations and CIL...page 9
• Table 1: Guide to funding mechanisms for different infrastructure types in East Hampshire District...page 10-11   
       
4.  Planning Obligations 
• Affordable Housing on Residential Development Sites...page 13
• Table 2:  Affordable Housing Commuted Sums...page 15
• Affordable Housing for Rural Communities...page 20
• Community Project Workers...page 21           
• Education...page 21     
• Health...page 22
• Internationally Designated Sites...page 22
• Loss of Local Employment...page 23   
• Local Employment and Training Agreements...page 27
• Flood Protection and Water Management...page 29 
• Wastewater and Sewage Infrastructure...page 29
• Green Infrastructure...page 30
• Social Infrastructure...page 31
• Transport...page 31    
         
5: Charging CIL
• The East Hampshire District Charging Schedule...page 33 
• Who is liable to pay CIL?...page 35
• When is CIL Charged?...page 35
• How much CIL will be charged?...page 37
• How will CIL funding be spent and prioritised?...page 37
• The Neighbourhood Portion of the Levy...page 37

6: Demolition, Change of Use and Permitted Development...page 39
• Permitted Development...page 39
• Section 73 Applications...page 39

7:  The CIL Process    
• Calculating the Chargeable Amount...page 40
• Relief for Social Housing or Charitable Purposes...page 43
• Exemptions for Self Build...page 43
• East Hampshire District Council CIL Instalments Policy...page 44
• CIL Appeals...page 46

Appendices
Appendix 1 – 5.6km Special Protection Area Buffer...page 48
Appendix 2 – CIL Charging Area Maps...page 49-51

Contents 

Page 21



4
Page 22



5

Legislation and national planning policy provide the tools for local authorities to secure 
developer contributions through the planning system for infrastructure and affordable 
housing to meet the needs of their area. The main ways of doing this are through the use of 
planning conditions, planning obligations or Community Infrastructure Levy.

The National Planning Policy Framework states in paragraph 203 that “Local planning 
authorities should consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made 
acceptable through the use of conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should 
only be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning 
condition.” In contrast, the collection of Community Infrastructure Levy from a development 
could not make an unacceptable development become acceptable.

Planning Conditions

Sections 70 and 72 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allow local planning 
authorities to attach conditions to the granting of planning permission. The National Planning 
Practice Guidance states that “conditions can enhance the quality of development and enable 
development proposals to proceed where it would otherwise have been necessary to refuse 
planning permission, by mitigating the adverse effects of the development.”

When imposing planning conditions, local planning authorities are required to ensure that 
they meet the six tests as set out in paragraph 206 of the NPPF: necessary; relevant to 
planning; relevant to the development to be permitted; enforceable; precise; and reasonable in 
all other respects

Planning conditions cannot be used to secure financial contributions.

Planning Obligations

The statutory framework for planning obligations is set out in Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 12 of the Planning and Compensation 

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The purpose of this document is to provide information about developer contributions in 
East Hampshire District (outside of the South Downs National Park). It provides detail on 
the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy and also identifies cases where contributions 
through Section 106 (S106) planning obligations and Section 278 highway agreements will 
be sought.

The SPD sets out the likely scope and scale of planning obligations applicable to different 
types of development. It identifies topic areas where planning obligations may be applicable 
and outlines the Council’s general approach to securing them. It is a general guide and 
development proposals will continue to be assessed on a case-by-case basis with the 
individual circumstances of each site being taken into consideration.

This SPD alongside the CIL Charging Schedule that was adopted by Council on the 25th 
February 2016 and took effect on the 8th April 2016, aims to provide a clear guide to 
developers, landowners and stakeholders, on which mechanism will be employed to deliver 
different types of infrastructure in the District. This will help to ensure that planning 
obligations are not sought for infrastructure that it is intended to be funded through CIL.

The adoption of this document has resulted in the Guide to Developers’ Contributions: 
May 2014 (amended September 2014) being withdrawn.  

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Section 1: Introduction

Section 2: Context

Page 23



6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Act 1991. This is why planning obligations are commonly called Section 106 agreements. 
Regulations 122 and 123 of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) and paragraphs 203 to 205 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
March 2012 set out the Government’s policy on planning obligations. 

Planning obligations are legally binding. They enable the local authority to secure the 
provision of infrastructure or services, or contributions towards them, in order to support 
the new development.

The NPPF advises that planning authorities should consider the use of planning obligations 
where they could make an otherwise unacceptable development acceptable. They should only 
be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through planning conditions. 
Paragraph 204 states that planning obligations should only be sought where they meet all of 
the following tests:

• They are necessary to make a development acceptable in planning terms;

• They are directly related to a development;

• They are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to a development.

Paragraph 205 advises that where obligations are being sought or revised “local planning 
authorities should take account of changes in market conditions over time and, wherever 
appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being stalled.”

Community Infrastructure Levy

The Community Infrastructure Levy will partially replace Section 106 planning obligations 
in the way that infrastructure is funded. CIL enables local authorities to set a charge rate on 
new development and the money that is collected can be spent on infrastructure needed to 
support the development of their area. The Council must list the infrastructure that it intends 
to fund through CIL on its website and this list is called a ‘Regulation 123 list’.

CIL and Section 106 cannot be used for the same item of infrastructure so the planning 
authority cannot seek planning obligations for any item that is placed on the Regulation  
123 list.

The CIL Regulations place restrictions on the use of planning obligations. As well as 
reiterating the tests above (paragraph 2.8) in regulation 122; regulation 123 places a limit on 
the number of S106 planning obligations that can be collected to fund a specific infrastructure 
project or type of infrastructure. The Council is required to use CIL to pool contributions 
from more than five developments to pay for an infrastructure item. Unlike Section 106 
planning obligations, CIL receipts can be pooled into one fund and used for any infrastructure 
needed to support the development of the area.

Further details about CIL charging rates can be found in Section 5 of this document.

Section 278 Agreements 

Section 278 agreements enable the funding or undertaking of works on the public highway 
network that are necessary to mitigate the impact of development. They are made between 
site landowners or developers and the Highway Authority under the Highways Act 1980. The 
developer can either undertake the work themselves or pay the Highway Authority to do it.

Hampshire County Council is the Highway Authority for the East Hampshire District 
administrative area. The works would need to be secured by planning condition or Section 
106 agreement(s).

The pooling restriction on planning obligations does not apply to Section 278 agreements 
which means that S278 agreements will continue to be made for highways works and they 
will not be replaced by CIL. As any number of S278 agreements can contribute towards a 
particular highway improvement scheme, there is unlikely to be any change in the way in 
which they are employed. Page 24



7

However the CIL Amendment Regulations 2014 have brought S278 agreements within the 
restrictions imposed by Regulation 123 which means that CIL cannot be spent on a highway scheme 
for which a S278 agreement has been made. 

This ensures that there is no overlap between the highway infrastructure funded through CIL and 
that funded by Section 278. This means that where a highways improvement scheme is listed on the 
Regulation 123 list, it will not be possible to enter into a S278 agreement for that scheme.

East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 

The Council has an adopted Joint Core Strategy (JCS) and a series of saved Local Plan policies. The 
Council recently adopted its Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations. 
 
This SPD supports and supplements the Joint Core Strategy and is an important material planning 
consideration in the decision making process of planning applications.

Policy ‘CP32 – Infrastructure’ of the JCS provides the local policy context for the guidance in  
this document.

A number of other policies within the JCS also provide specific and detailed justification for various 
types of planning obligations that will be required and these are summarised below: 

• CP4:  Existing Employment Land

• CP5:  Employment and workforce skills

• CP13: Affordable Housing on Residential Development Sites

• CP14: Affordable Housing for Rural Communities

• CP16: Protection and Provision of Social Infrastructure

• CP21: Biodiversity

• CP22: Internationally Designated Sites

• CP28: Green Infrastructure

• CP31: Transport 

In addition to CIL and S106, it should be recognised that developer contributions made direct to 
the relevant utility company might be required towards essential site specific infrastructure, for 
example local sewerage and water distribution infrastructure.

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

CP32 Infrastructure 

Where the provision or improvement of infrastructure is necessary, to meet community 
or environmental needs associated with new development or to mitigate the impact of 
development on the environment, such works or facilities should be provided either on 
or off-site, or the payment of financial contributions will be required through planning 
obligations and/or the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to ensure that all such 
development makes an appropriate and reasonable contribution to the costs of provision.

The provision of infrastructure will be linked directly to the phasing of development to 
ensure that planned infrastructure is delivered in a timely fashion. This infrastructure will 
be co-ordinated and delivered in partnership with developers, public agencies, such as 
Hampshire County Council, and other authorities. Infrastructure requirements in order 
to meet the growth proposals contained in this

Page 25



8
Page 26



9

Section 3: The interaction between S106    
 planning obligations and CIL

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is the main source of infrastructure funding through the grant 
of planning permissions, beyond the immediate needs of the development site. Planning obligations 
will continue to operate alongside CIL and will be collected for affordable housing provision, which is 
outside the remit of CIL, and for site specific infrastructure requirements as set out in this SPD. Each 
planning obligation must meet the tests set out in the NPPF and CIL Regulation 122.

On the 25th February 2016 the Council:

• adopted the Examiner’s approved East Hampshire District Community Infrastructure   
 Levy Charging Schedule to take effect from the 8th April 2016.

• adopted the East Hampshire District Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule  
 Payment Instalments Policy and Regulation 123 list to take effect from the 8th April 2016.

The Regulation 123 list (as amended) sets out the infrastructure projects or types of infrastructure 
that the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded by CIL receipts. It is important 
to note that any infrastructure detailed on the Regulation 123 list will not be permitted to be funded 
through planning obligations. This is to avoid any developer or land owner contributing towards the 
same infrastructure through both CIL and a planning obligation

There will be occasions when a development will be liable for CIL as well as there being the 
requirement for the completion of a planning obligation. Such obligations will relate to site specific 
requirements that are necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms 
while adhering to the provisions of Regulations 122 and 123 of the CIL Regulations.

Table 1 overleaf offers a guide to what infrastructure types will be secured by CIL and those that will 
be secured by Section 106 agreements. It should be noted that this is an indicative guide only and that 
other developer contributions may be required to make a development acceptable in planning terms.

The East Hampshire District CIL Regulation 123 List (as amended) gives further details on the 
projects to be funded by CIL and any specific exclusions, which in most cases will be sought as 
planning obligations. For example, at the Strategic Allocation of Whitehill and Bordon which is 
defined as the Whitehill and Bordon Regeneration Project CIL Charging Zone (see Appendix 2), all 
infrastructure and facilities needed to serve the development(s) that form part of the regeneration 
area will be provided through Section 106 and Section 278 agreements.  All such infrastructure and 
facilities are therefore excluded from the East Hampshire District Regulation 123 list.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 27



10

Table 1: Residual Requirements

InfrastructureType                Section 106  CIL

Affordable Housing

On site affordable housing provision   X

Commuted Sum towards off site affordable housing provision  X

Community Project Worker   X

Education

Primary school places at existing schools   X
    
Secondary school places at existing schools      X

Financial contributions or provision of land to enable the         X
delivery of new schools at large development sites 

Employment

Economic Contribution to mitigate the loss of employment land X

Skills and Training Initiatives   X

Flood Protection and Water Management 

Site related flood and water management  X

Strategic off-site flood and water management      X

Strategic water quality improvement projects   X

Green Infrastructure 

Provision and improvements to strategic open space  X
(including strategic and neighbourhood parks and green spaces, 
strategic and neighbourhood play areas and strategic allotments)

Provision and enhancement of local multifunctional green space,  X
local equipped play areas and local allotments directly serving 
the development

Strategic habitat creation and restoration   X

On-site or off-site habitat creation, restoration and management  X
to mitigate or compensate biodiversity impacts

Health

Improvements to existing healthcare facilities   X

New on-site healthcare provision to meet the needs of  X 
the development

Page 28



11

Table 1: Residual Requirements

InfrastructureType                Section 106  CIL

Community

Cemeteries      X  
 
Community Buildings     X

Library improvements      X

Land or buildings for Community Infrastructure   X

Sport and recreation 

Provision, improvements and management of sports and X  
recreational facilities that directly serve a development

Provision, improvements and management of strategic and local    X
sports and recreational facilities

European (Natura 2000) Site  Mitigation

Solent SPA Mitigation in accordance with the Interim Solent  X
Recreation Mitigation Strategy (as amended)

Transport

Strategic transport improvements    X

Site related transport improvements  X

Travel plan measures   X
    

*  Infrastructure proposals on the Strategic Road Network (SRN) that is the responsibility of  
   Highways England are not considered suitable for funding through receipts from CIL due to  
   their scale and nature. 

Page 29



12
Page 30



13

As detailed in Section 3, the Council will continue to secure certain types of infrastructure 
using Planning Obligations. This Section provides further guidance these contributions and the 
circumstances under which they would be payable.

Affordable Housing on Residential Development Sites

The policy for the provision of affordable housing on residential development sites is set out in Joint 
Core Strategy (JCS) Policy CP13 which states that:

In order to meet affordable housing needs, all residential development, which results in 1 or more 
additional dwellings (net), should contribute towards the provision of affordable housing. New 
residential development will be required to:

a) provide affordable housing to meet a range of requirements of the local community,   
 including the elderly and those with special or supported needs; and

b) provide a range of affordable housing types and sizes.

The target is for 40% of all new dwellings to be provided as affordable housing. In Whitehill & 
Bordon the target will be 35% (see JCS Policy CSWB4).

Affordable housing will normally be provided on-site. On smaller sites (4 dwellings or less (net)), 
where on-site provision is likely to be unsuitable, a financial contribution or off-site provision  
will be required.

The target number and tenure split of affordable housing will be negotiated on a site-by-site 
basis, depending on individual site circumstances (e.g. development viability, site surroundings) and 
affordable housing needs.

The type and size of dwellings, in terms of bedroom numbers, habitable rooms or floorspace will be 
determined on a site-by-site basis using the most appropriate basis that helps deliver the type and 
size of affordable units needed, as identified by the Council.

The affordable housing should be fully integrated within the residential development by being 
dispersed amongst, and indistinguishable from, the market housing. It should be spread randomly 
throughout the development and be genuinely ‘pepper-potted’ and not in blocks.

In the South Downs National Park new residential development will be required to maintain a focus 
on affordable housing provision, and any affordable housing provided should meet the needs of the 
local communities in the National Park area.

The affordable housing provision will be secured by a planning obligation/legal agreement.

Satisfying the policy requirements

On site affordable housing provision in accordance with JCS Policy CP13 will be secured by 
a Planning Obligation (S106 Legal Agreement) unless the developer can demonstrate that the 
development would be made unviable as a result of the policy requirements, or, the developer is 
unable to secure a registered provider willing to procure the affordable dwellings. Further guidance 
is provided below on the evidence that would be required to support a departure from JCS Policy 
CP13 under either of these scenarios.

In addition, in instances where the affordable housing requirement would result in a requirement 
that isn’t a round number (e.g. 2.8 dwellings), the Council will expect two units to be provided 
on site and the remaining 0.8 of a unit to be secured through a commuted sum.  Further detail, 
including a worked example is provided in Case Study 4 (paragraph 4.26 onwards).

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Section 4: Planning Obligations

Page 31



14

Viability

The Council recognises that there will on occasion be developments where abnormal site costs, and 
other factors may mean that the affordable housing requirements cannot be met on a particular site. 
Where developers advise that their scheme is unviable with provision of the required proportion 
of affordable housing, an open book approach to development appraisal of scheme viability will be 
considered. This development appraisal would need to include all other CIL and planning obligation 
requirements and identify what level of affordable housing could be supported by the development. 
It is important to note that in addition to the submission of a viability assessment, the Council will 
require the developer to pay the Council’s costs so that the submitted viability assessment can be 
independently assessed by a development viability consultant.

It is important to note that following the submission of the developer’s viability assessment, there 
may be a need for the findings of the study to be discussed by Councillors at a ‘closed session’. 
The use of closed sessions is to ensure that commercially sensitive information submitted by the 
applicant is not released into the public domain.

A lower level of provision may be acceptable if, following the independent review of the viability 
assessment by an appropriately qualified expert; the Council accepts that meeting the full affordable 
housing requirement makes the scheme unviable.

Whilst the Council does not have a preferred approach for undertaking viability appraisals, 
developers may wish to use the Homes and Communities Agency Toolkit.

Difficulty procuring a Registered Provider

The Council recognise that for some developments, particularly on smaller sites, a situation 
may arise where the developer is unable to fulfil the affordable housing obligations as, despite 
all reasonable efforts, no Registered Provider (RP) is willing to procure the affordable dwellings.  
This may be due to a number of factors, such as; the site location falls outside of the RP’s core 
investment area; the tenure proposed does not fit the RP’s business model or the financial offer 
submitted by the RP may not cover the developer’s reasonable build costs.  Other reasons are also 
likely to arise which may be specific to that individual site.

In these circumstances and where provision has been made within the s106 agreement the 
developer may apply to the Council to commute the onsite provision of affordable housing to a 
financial sum.  The Council will need to be satisfied that the developer has made all reasonable 
efforts to dispose of the affordable housing to an RP and they will be expected to evidence details 
of any offers received from RP’s or correspondence with RP’s.  This may also include financial 
information on the sum the developer is seeking for the affordable dwellings to ensure that cost  
is not the overriding factor that the affordable housing obligations cannot be satisfied.

If the Council agrees that the affordable housing obligations may be commuted to a financial 
payment then this sum will be calculated in accordance with the tariff detailed in Table 2 below. 

The affordable housing commuted sum rates detailed in Table 2 only apply where there is a net 
gain in residential dwellings as a result of the development scheme. Therefore proposals for a 
replacement dwelling are exempt from providing commuted sums as no net additional dwellings  
will be provided. 

It is important to note that the Council’s priority remains the provision of affordable housing on 
the application site and so this cascade to a financial sum is the last resort.  Before considering 
requests under this provision the Council will first explore with the developer whether an amended 
affordable housing scheme, including changes to the number, type, tenure and location within the 
site, will make onsite provision possible.

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Page 32



15

Table 2: Affordable Housing Commuted Sums
   
   Group 1  Group 2  Group 3  Group 4

Parish   Lindford  Clanfield  Alton   Beech
    

   Whitehill &  Headley  Bramshott &   Bentley
   Bordon     Liphook

      Horndean  East Tisted  Bentworth

      Rowlands Castle Four Marks  Binsted

         Froyle   Chawton

         Grayshott  Farringdon

         Lasham  Kingsley

         Medstead  Selborne

         Ropley   Wield

         Shalden  Worldham 

Commuted sum         £160        £270        £355    £450
(£) per square 
metre (GIA)

Note: The commuted sum rates will increase with market inflation over time. They are linked 
to the All-in Tender Price Index published by the Building Cost Information Service of the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors. 

In circumstances where a developer is providing commuted sums to fund off site affordable housing 
provision, the following method should be followed for calculating the commuted sum payable.

It is important to note that in instances where a development will result in the loss of an existing 
dwelling (in lawful use) or the subdivision of an existing dwelling (in lawful use), a discount needs to 
be applied to reflect the fact that Policy CP13 of the Joint Core Strategy states that ‘all residential 
development, which results in 1 or more additional dwellings (net), should contribute towards the 
provision of affordable housing. Case Studies 1 and 2 below provide worked examples of how to 
calculate the commuted sums payable in such circumstances. 

4.14

4.15

1. Caluculate the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) in square meters that will be delivered by 
the new residential development.

2. Multiply the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) by the commuted sum rate detailed in 
Table 2 that relates to the Parish where the development is located.

Page 33



16

Policy CP13 of the Joint Core Strategy states that ‘all residential development, which results in 1 or 
more additional dwellings (net), should contribute towards the provision of affordable housing. In 
the above case study the net gain in residential dwellings is three dwellings.

To calculate the commuted sum required, we calculate the average dwelling size to be delivered by 
the proposed development (200sqm) and multiply this by the net gain in dwellings (3) to calculate 
the total floor area provided (600sqm) by the 3 dwellings. To calculate the Commuted Sum payable 
by the developer we will multiply the total floor area (600sqm) by the rate for Parish Group 3 set 
out in Table 2 (£355). The commuted sum payable by this development would therefore be £213,000

If a developer considers that the commuted sum required to support off site affordable housing 
provision would make the development unviable, the process set out in the viability section above 
(paragraphs 4.5 to 4.8) would need to be followed to determine a commuted sum that would make 
the development viable. 

Case study three demonstrate the calculation process for schemes where the affordable housing 
requirement will be delivered in its entirety by commuted sums. In contrast, case study four 
provides an example of where to meet the policy requirements on site provision is required and a 
commuted sum to make up the shortfall (see para 4.4). 

Case Study 1 – Development of four residential dwellings in Four Marks 
following the demolition of an existing dwelling in lawful use

The proposed development will result in the demolition of a 130sqm residential dwelling (in lawful 
C3 use) to deliver a development of one 4 bedroom property and three 5 bedroom properties 
within the Parish of Four Marks. The development schedule below provides information on the new 
residential units proposed.

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Unit Type  Floor area sqm (GIA)

1  4 bed house 150

2 5 bed house   200

3 5 bed house  200

4 5 bed house  250

Total   800

Average   200
Dwelling Size  

Page 34



17

Case Study 2 – Subdivision of an existing residential dwelling to provide three 
residential dwellings (flats) in Rowlands Castle

The proposed development will result in the sub-division of a large detached family home 
(165sqm) to provide three 1 bedroom flats within the Parish of Rowlands Castle. The development 
will provide three 1 bedroom flats (50sqm GIA) in addition to 15sqm of communal space. The 
development schedule below provides information on the three proposed dwellings.

1  4 bed house 150

2 5 bed house   200

3 5 bed house  200

4 5 bed house  250

Total   800

Average   200
Dwelling Size  

4.21

4.22

4.23

Policy CP13 of the Joint Core Strategy States that ‘all residential development, which results in 1 or 
more additional dwellings (net), should contribute towards the provision of affordable housing. In 
the above case study the net gain in residential dwellings is two dwellings.

Flat 1 50

Flat 2  50

Flat 3  50

Total floor area  150

Average Dwelling Size  50

Unit                                         Floor area sqm (GIA)

To calculate the commuted sum required, we calculate the gross internal area provided by the 
new residential development  average dwelling size to be delivered by the proposed development 
(50sqm) and multiply this by the net gain in dwellings (2) to calculate the total floor area provided 
(100sqm) by the 2 dwellings. To calculate the Commuted Sum payable by the developer we will 
multiply the total floor area (100sqm) by the rate for Parish Group 3 set out in Table 2 (£270). The 
commuted sum payable by this development would therefore be £27,000

1. Calculate the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) in square meters that will be delivered  
 by the residential units.

2. Divide the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) by the gross number of dwellings to be  
 provided by the development to calculate the average dwelling size in sgm. Note: The average  
 dwelling size should be rounded up to the nearest sqm where applicable.

3. Multiply the average dwelling size by the net number of dwellings to calculate the  
 chargable floorspace.

4. Multiply the outcome of step 3 by the commuted sum rate detailed in Table 2 that relates by  
 the Parish where the development is located.

Page 35



18

From the above, we have been able to calculate the total floor area provided (270sqm) by the 3 
dwellings. To calculate the Commuted Sum payable by the developer we will multiply the total floor 
area (270sqm) by the rate for Parish Group 2 set out in Table 2 (£270). The commuted sum payable 
by this development would therefore be £72,900.

Case Study 4 – Development of seven residential dwellings in Alton

The proposed development will deliver seven residential dwellings within Alton Parish on a 
cleared site. The JCS affordable housing requirement for Alton is 40% and a development of this 
size is expected to provide on site provision. Therefore the affordable housing required from the 
development is 2.8 units to comply with the policy. The developer has agreed to provide 2 affordable 
units on site, and therefore to make up the ‘short fall’ of 0.8 of an affordable dwelling, the Council 
will require a commuted sum to fund this difference.

The methodology for calculating the commuted sum required in such cases is detailed below.

1. Calculate the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) in square meters that will be delivered by 
the residential development

2. Divide the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) by the number of dwellings to be provided to 
calculate the average dwelling size in sqm. Note: The average dwelling size should be rounded up 
to the nearest sqm where applicable.

3. Multiply the average dwelling size by the commuted sum rate detailed in Table 2 that relates to 
the Parish where the development is located.

4. Multiply the above by the proportion of an affordable unit to be delivered by an off site 
contribution.

Case Study 3 – Development of three residential dwellings in  
Rowlands Castle

The proposed development will deliver one 2 bedroom property and two 3 bedroom properties 
on a cleared site within the Parish of Rowlands Castle. The development schedule below provides 
information on the units proposed.

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

1 2 bed house 80

2 3 bed house 100

3 3 bed house 270

Total floor area  270

Unit Type  Floor area sqm (GIA)

Page 36



19

The following table provides a worked example of how to calculate steps one and two as detailed in 
the methodology above.

4.28

4.29

1  2 bed house 80

2  2 bed house 80

3  3 bed house 105

4  3 bed house 105

5  3 bed house 105

6  4 bed house 130

7  4 bed house 130

Total floor area   735

Average unit   105
(dwelling) size

Unit       Type    Floor area sqm (GIA)

To complete step 3, we multiply the average dwelling size (105sqm) by the appropriate Commuted 
Sum (£) per square metre charge for the parish of Alton as set out in Table 2 (£355). This gives a 
total of £37,275. In order to complete step 4 we multiply the output of step 3 (£37,275) by 0.8.  
Therefore in this case study we can determine that to make up 0.8 of an affordable dwelling, the 
developer would need to pay a commuted sum of £28,290 to the Council. 

Page 37



20

Affordable Housing for Rural Communities

The Policy for the provision of affordable housing for rural communities is set out in Joint Core 
Strategy Policy CP14 which states that:

Outside settlement policy boundaries, residential development will only be permitted if:

a) it provides affordable housing for local people who are unable to obtain accommodation  
 on the open market;

b) there is a proven local affordable housing need;

c) the need cannot be met within the settlement to which that need relates;

d) the settlement provides a range of local services and facilities, or has accessibility  
 to larger settlements nearby which provide a wider range of services and facilities;

e) the site is modest in scale and relates well, in terms of location and in size, to the  
 existing settlement;

f) it provides dwellings which will be available as affordable housing for local people in   
 perpetuity; and

g) within the South Downs National Park, there is no conflict with National Park purposes.

In order to meet identified affordable housing needs the Local Planning Authorities may allocate 
sites specifically for affordable housing at those settlements with a settlement policy boundary that 
have a specific local need.

For those settlements with a settlement policy boundary, an element of market housing (which 
should normally be low cost market housing, such as starter homes) may be permitted, but will 
make up no more than 30% of the total dwellings on the site. The intention on such sites is to 
maximise the percentage of affordable housing provided.

For sites adjacent to other settlements, the development will be required to provide 100% 
affordable housing, unless exceptional circumstances can be proven.

Satisfying the policy requirements

As detailed above, Policy CP14 enables further housing to come forward where a proven affordable 
housing need is identified in settlements with a settlement policy boundary. The policy allows for a 
proportion (up to 30%) of market housing to be included for those settlements with a settlement 
policy boundary to assist in bringing these sites forward.

However, it is important to note that the intention on such sites is to maximise the percentage 
of affordable housing provided. For sites adjacent to settlements without a settlement policy 
boundary the development will be required to provide 100% affordable housing, unless exceptional 
circumstances can be proven.

In circumstances where a fraction of an affordable housing dwelling is generated in the calculation, 
the quantum of affordable housing must be rounded up to the nearest whole unit.  Financial 
contributions will not be permissible under policy CP14 for either whole or fractions of affordable 
housing units, as the purpose of this policy is to maximise affordable housing delivery in rural areas.

Affordable housing delivered through CP14, will be subject to strict occupancy criteria to ensure 
that priority is given first to those people in housing need, with a strong connection to the 
settlement to which that site relates.  Occupancy criteria will usually be agreed in liaison with the 
Parish Council and will be secured in through a Section 106 legal agreement.

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

Page 38



21

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

Community Project Worker 

The Local Planning Authority works with Housing Associations to ensure that affordable housing  
is fully integrated with the market housing and that larger developments are integrated with the 
wider community. Housing associations have employed community project workers to work on a 
number of major developments in the District. The project worker schemes have proved to be  
very successful.

The Project Workers assists in the establishment of a successful and cohesive local community by 
facilitating the social integration between housing types and tenures within a new development 
and by promoting this integration with the wider existing communities in the vicinity of the 
development. Examples of some of the work undertaken by project workers are detailed below:

• Produce and manage community plans

• Support the formation and development of informal and formal groups to ensure   
 residents have opportunities to be involved in decision making that affects their homes   
 and their community.

• Develop partnerships and projects that respond to community needs

• Bid for external funding to support opportunities that improve neighbourhoods.

• Enable effective communication with residents e.g. newsletters, social media

• Lead on implementing neighbourhood activities and encourage resident participation.

• Develop effective relationships with registered housing providers, developers, parish/  
 ward councillors, council officers

The costs of employing the community project workers are currently met solely by the housing 
associations. This is inequitable as the project workers work across all occupiers, including owner 
occupiers and private rented tenants. Private developers should meet some of the costs. For this 
reason developer contributions of £250 per dwelling will be sought to fund a community project 
worker on all sites of 20 units or more.

Education

The majority of contributions towards the improvement of educational infrastructure will be 
secured through CIL as set out in the East Hampshire District Regulation 123 List.  

However, where a proposed development generates the need for a new school to be provided on 
site, the land and provision of a school will be secured through a Section 106 Legal Agreement. 

The timing for the provision of land or school building(s) will be considered on a case by case basis, 
with the specific requirements being set out within any Section 106 Agreement. It is likely to be 
linked to phases of a development, with facilities being required either upon a certain level of units 
being completed, or when a certain threshold of occupation at a development is reached.

The County Council has published a guidance document on ‘Developer Contributions towards 
Children’s Services Facilities (October 2015) which highlights that the Council is expected to 
consult Hampshire Children’s Services Department on any planning proposals relating to a 
development of 10 or more dwellings.

The Guidance, which is subject to review in the context of changes to local and national priorities 
and priorities provides guidance on the minimum usable areas required for new primary school sites 
which are summarised below:

• 1 Form entry primary (210 places): 1.2 hectares

• 2 Form entry primary (420 places): 2.0 hectares

• 3 Form entry primary (630 places): 2.8 hectares

http://www3.hants.gov.
uk/education/schools/

school-places.htm

Page 39



22

4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

4.51

4.52

We suggest you visit the County Council’s Children’s services webpages or contact the County 
Council by email developer.contributions@hants.gov.uk to confirm the latest position in terms of 
on-site infrastructure requirements.

Health

The majority of contributions towards the improvement of existing healthcare facilities will be 
secured through CIL as set out in the East Hampshire District Regulation 123 List.  

However, where a proposed development generates the need for a new healthcare facility, such 
as a new GP surgery, to be provided on site, the land and provision of a healthcare facility will be 
secured through a Section 106 Legal Agreement. 

The timing for the provision of such healthcare facilities will be considered on a case by case basis, 
with the specific requirements being set out within any Section 106 Agreement. It is likely to be 
linked to phases of a development, with facilities being required either upon a certain level of units 
being completed, or when a certain threshold of occupation at a development is reached.

Internationally Designated Sites

Residential development in parts of the District has the potential to impact upon internationally 
designated sites both within and located outside of the District.

Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area

With respect to the Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area (SPA), Policy CP22 states: 

“Any new housing that is proposed to be located within 400m of the boundary of the Wealden 
Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area (SPA) will be required to undertake a project-specific 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). This must form a part of the planning application process 
to demonstrate that either no adverse effect on the ecological integrity of the SPA will occur 
or that adequate measures will be put in place to avoid or (as a secondary solution) adequately 
mitigate any adverse effects. Such measures must be agreed with Natural England and the planning 
authority. In order to undertake such an assessment, it is likely that information on the distribution 
of birds for which the SPA is designated would be required.”

In addition, if housing proposals are capable of affecting the SPA no matter how distant from the site, 
they will be considered on a case-by-case basis as to whether a project-specific HRA is required 
(this should be assessed at the HRA Screening Assessment stage). The requirement is likely to vary 
depending on the size of the site, the ‘in combination’ effects and its distance from the SPA. Advice 
on this should be sought from Natural England at the earliest opportunity. 

Solent Natura 2000 Sites

The Solent coastline provides feeding grounds for internationally protected populations of 
overwintering waders and wildfowl, and is also extensively used for recreation. In response to 
concerns over the impact of recreational pressure on birds within protected areas in the Solent, the 
Solent Forum initiated the Solent Disturbance and Mitigation Project to determine visitor access 
patterns around the coast and how their activities may influence the birds.

The project has been divided into four phases. Phase 1 collated and reviewed information on 
housing, human activities and birds around the Solent, and reviewed the potential impact of 
disturbance on birds. Phase 2 involved a programme of major new data collection and Phase 3 sets 
out an avoidance and mitigation Plan. For the final phase, the SDMP project group is working with 
Natural England towards implementation. 

Contributions will be sought from new development in order to implement the measures set out in 
the Solent Special Protection Area (SPA) Interim Planning Framework. Measures include the provision 
of dog wardens and rangers to educate the public about the impacts of recreational disturbance 
on protected species. Natural England has advised that a contribution of £176 per dwelling will be 
required. The Solent Contribution is subject to Retail Prince Index (RPI) adjustment annually. It is 
important to note that this figure is likely to rise once the full strategy has been finalised which is 
currently in the process of being written by the Solent Recreational Mitigation Partnership.  

https://www.gov.uk/
guidance/developers-get-
environmental-advice-on-

your-planning-proposals

Page 40



23

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

4.59

4.60

4.61

The contribution will affect all net new dwellings in the District located within 5.6km of the 
Solent Natura 2000 sites and is payable in addition to any CIL liability and any other S106 or S278 
contributions. Appendix 1 contains maps showing the parts of the District that fall within the  
5.6km buffer.

The above does not preclude the possibility that some residential schemes, due to their size and/or 
location, may require individual assessment under the Habitats Regulations on advice from Natural 
England and additional site specific avoidance or mitigation measures.

The District Council will continue to engage with other local authorities, Natural England and 
the Environment Agency to develop the appropriate means of reducing the impact of recreational 
pressure from new housing on these coastal Natura 2000 sites.

Loss of Local Employment

The Policy for the loss of existing employment land is set out in Joint Core Strategy Policy CP4 
which states that:

“The use of employment land for alternative uses will be permitted where the site can be shown to 
be no longer suitable for employment use of some form and the alternative use is in conformity and 
consistent with other policies and strategies of the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy.”

“Where development is proposed which would result in the loss of an existing industrial or 
business site, a planning obligation may be negotiated with the applicant to offset the loss of 
employment on the site and mitigate the economic impact.”

In addition, Saved Local Plan Policy IB4 (Paragraph 6.56) states that:

“...in certain circumstances, where development is proposed which would result in the loss of an 
existing industrial or business site and where such a proposal might otherwise be refused, a planning 
obligation may be negotiated with the developer which provides a compensatory provision to offset 
the loss of the site...”

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires a net gain in all aspects of sustainable 
development. In order to achieve sustainable economic growth, East Hampshire has to tackle key 
issues and challenges such as skills, training and employment, alongside provision of housing and 
commercial floorspace.

In addition, the NPPF (paragraph 152) states that:

“…significant adverse impacts on any of these dimensions should be avoided and, wherever possible, 
alternative options which reduce or eliminate such impacts should be pursued. Where adverse 
impacts are unavoidable, measures to mitigate the impact should be considered. Where adverse 
mitigation measures are not possible, compensatory measures may be appropriate”.

The Council will therefore secure an economic contribution aimed at mitigating the impact of 
loss of employment land and enabling the unemployed to get into local jobs. The contributions can 
support existing or new programmes carried out by the Council, the developer or others as agreed 
by the Council and the developer.

The method for calculating the economic contribution to mitigate the loss of employment premises 
in the District is set out in the flow diagram overleaf. In addition two case studies provide worked 
examples of how to calculate the appropriate contribution.

Page 41



24

1. Calculate the number of jobs that would be lost as a result of the development ( as set out 
in the planning application) or the amount of jobs that could be accommodated based on the 
following employment densities:

• Office (B1a) and R&D (B1d) premises - 12sqm per full time employee (FTE)
• Light Industrial; (B1c) Industrial (B2) and Warehousing (B8) - 40 sqm per FTE
• Note: the higher of the two figures should be used.

2. Calculate employment wages by multiplying the national minimum wage by 0.5, then multiplying 
this figure by 37 (hours) and multiplying it by 52 (weeks). This provides a typical annual salary for 
someone working full time for a year based on half the National Minimum Wage.

3. Multiply the output of step 2 by 0.6. This is to reflect the fact that approximately 60% of the 
District’s residents live and work in the District.

4. Multiply the number of Jobs (step 1) by the revised employment wage (step 3).

5. Multiply the number of jobs (step 1) by £1,500. This is the typical cost per participant  
of providing training and support into employment through the existing Get East Hants  
Working Initiative.

6. Add together the outputs of steps 4 and 5 detailed above to calculate the contribution required.

Case Study 1 - Loss of Office accommodation

A proposal for the loss of 120sqm of office (B1a) accommodation in Alton Town Centre to enable 
the building to be redeveloped to provide residential accommodation. The premises were vacant at 
the time of the application and therefore no jobs figures were available. To complete step one we 
use an employment density of 12sqm per full time employee (FTE) for office premises. Therefore if 
we divide the floorspace to be lost by the employment density, we can determine that 10 FTE jobs 
could be accommodated by the office premises proposed to be redeveloped. 

To calculate Step 2, we multiply the National Minimum Wage rate (as amended) for those aged 
21 and over (currently £6.70) by 0.5 which gives us an hourly rate of £3.35. We then multiply this 
amended hourly rate by 37 hours which gives us a weekly salary of £123.95. To calculate the annual 
salary, we then multiply the calculated weekly wage by 52 to calculate an annual salary of £6,445.40 
per worker. 

To calculate Step 3, we multiply the output of Step 2 by 0.6 to reflect the fact that approximately 
60% of the District’s residents live and work in the District. This gives us a revised annual salary per 
worker of £3,867.24 

To calculate Step 4 we multiply the revised annual salary per worker calculated in Step 3, by the 
number of FTE jobs that could be accommodated at the site (10). This totals £38,672.40.

To calculate Step 5, we multiply the typical cost per participant of providing training and support 
into employment through the existing Get East Hants Working Initiative (£1,500) by the number of 
FTE jobs that could be accommodated at the site (10). This totals £15,000.

Finally, to calculate the total contribution required, we add the output of step 4 (£38,672.40) to that 
of step 5 (£15,000). Therefore, in this instance a contribution of £53,672.40 would be payable. 

4.62

4.63

4.64

4.65

4.66

4.67

https://www.gov.uk/national-
minimum-wage-rates

Page 42



25

Case Study 2 - Loss of Light Industrial accommodation

A proposal for the loss of 160sqm of Light Industrial (B1c) unit in Bentley to enable the building to 
be redeveloped to provide residential accommodation. The premises were vacant at the time of the 
application and therefore no jobs figures are available. To complete step one we use an employment 
density of 40sqm per full time employee (FTE) for light industrial premises. Therefore if we divide 
the floorspace to be lost by the employment density, we can determine that 4 FTE jobs could be 
accommodated by the light industrial unit proposed to be redeveloped. 

To calculate Step 2, we multiply the National Minimum Wage rate for 21 and over (currently £6.70) 
by 0.5 which gives us an hourly rate of £3.35. We then multiply this amended hourly rate by 37 
hours which gives us a weekly salary of £123.95. To calculate the annual salary, we then multiply the 
calculated weekly wage by 52 to calculate an annual salary of £6,445.40 per worker. 

To calculate Step 3, we multiply the output of Step 2 by 0.6 to reflect the fact that approximately 
60% of the District’s residents live and work in the District. This gives us a revised annual salary per 
worker of £3,867.24 

To calculate Step 4 we multiply the revised annual salary per worker calculated in Step 3, by the 
number of FTE jobs that could be accommodated at the site (4). This totals £15,468.96.

To calculate Step 5, we multiply the typical cost per participant of providing training and support 
into employment through the existing Get East Hants Working Initiative (£1,500) by the number of 
FTE jobs that could be accommodated at the site (4). This totals £6,000.

Finally, to calculate the total contribution required, we add the output of step 4 (£15,468.96) to that 
of step 5 (£6,000). Therefore, in this instance a contribution of £21,468.96 would be payable.

Loss of allocated employment sites that are currently undeveloped 

In instances where the council receives a planning application that would result in the development 
of an allocated employment site for non employment uses, in the first instance the Council will 
request additional information from the applicant to demonstrate marketing and viability of the 
site in accordance with the East Hampshire District Council Guidance on the loss of Industrial or 
Business Uses (September 2015). 

However, if such a scheme were considered to be acceptable in planning terms, the developer 
would be required to provide a developer contribution based upon the employment floorspace 
that the site could potentially accommodate. If your development falls within this category it 
is recommended that you contact the Council’s Economic Development Service for further 
information about the contribution that would be required from your scheme. 

Viability

The Council recognise that in some instances there may be an issue with viability as a result of the 
contributions detailed above. Where there is an issue with viability, the Council will seek further 
information from the applicant that will need to be independently examined. Following receipt of 
the independent review there will be negotiation on the contribution.   

4.68

4.69

4.70

4.71

4.72

4.73

 4.74

4.75

4.76

https://www.gov.uk/national-
minimum-wage-rates

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/
guidance-loss-industrial-or-

business-uses-pdf-261-kb

Page 43



2626
Page 44



2727

Local Employment and Training Agreements 

The Policy for Employment and Workforce Skills is set out in Joint Core Strategy Policy CP5  
which states that: 

Planning Permission will be granted for development that:

a) Improves workforce skills and employability
b)  Promotes and supports skills and employment provision in existing business clusters   
 and high growth sectors;
c) Secures local skills and training provision and employment on significant    
 development, particularly with regard to construction skills and employment;
d) Addresses barriers to employment for the unemployed people of East Hampshire

To deliver the above policy requirement the Council will require developers proposing residential 
schemes of 50 units or more or schemes that will provide a net increase of 1,500 square metres 
or more of business and commercial floorspace to enter into a Legal Agreement to support Local 
Employment and Training in the District.

Local Employment and Training Plan

In order to mitigate the economic impact of developments on the area, the Council seeks to secure 
opportunities for local residents to receive training and access employment opportunities during 
construction phase and at occupation phase (end-user).

The Council requires applicants to enter a S106 Local Employment and Training Agreement to 
mitigate for skills shortages, increase apprenticeship opportunities, reduce unemployment and 
provide career opportunities for residents. 

Local Employment and Training Plans typically cover the following outcomes (both construction and 
end user phases):

• Number of opportunities for unemployed residents

• Number of apprenticeships

• Training and work experience for younger people

• Educational and workforce training opportunities

As part of this process the developer is required to submit an Employment & Training Strategy 
to the Council’s Economic Development service prior to the implementation or commencement 
of the development. The Strategy states how the developer or owner intends to achieve the 
employment and training opportunities as stated in the S106 Legal Agreement

4.77

4.78

4.79

4.80

4.81

Page 45



28

4.83

4.84

4.85

4.86

4.87

4.88

Project Cost

As part of the Local Employment and Training Agreement the developer shall be required to 
provide financial contributions to the Council to cover specific costs incurred by the Council in the 
implementation and delivery of the Employment and Training Plan. 
 
The project cost payable to the Council is determined on a case by case basis, but in general a fee 
of £80 per training week and £50 per employment week is payable by the developer or owner. The 
fee is intended to cover the cost of providing support including training, recruitment and placements 
during the construction phase. It also contributes towards project support and evaluation costs of 
local delivery of the Employment and Training Plan and Employment and Training Strategy. The fee 
will be held by the Council and paid to a Workplace Coordinator appointed by the Council.

Economic contribution 

Following the granting of planning permission, if the developer does not provide the jobs and 
training as set out in the Section 106 Legal Agreement, the developer will be required to make a 
financial contribution towards a local employment and skills initiative.

The financial contribution is calculated using the following formula:

Commuted sums in Lieu of Local Employment Agreements will be sought in exceptional 
circumstances where a developer is unable to deliver local access to jobs through the Local 
Employment and Training Agreement. The commuted sums will enable the Council to generate 
alternative employment opportunities. In such circumstances the following formula will be applied in 
calculation of the commuted sums.

Economic contribution 

• The number of jobs is derived by dividing the total number of employment and training   
 weeks (as set out in the S106 Legal Agreement) by 52 weeks.

• Multiply the number of jobs (as set out in the S106 Legal Agreement) by the cost of   
 the Council delivering an apprenticeship (wages, training and transport) in East Hampshire   
 as demonstrated through the Get East Hants Working Initiative.

Note: The current cost (2015) is £8,519 per apprentice. These figures will be  
reviewed annually.

Commuted Sums

• The number of jobs is derived by dividing the total number of employment and training  
 weeks (as set out in the S106 Legal Agreement) by 52 weeks.

• Multiply the number of jobs (based on the total project employment) by the cost of  
 the Council delivering an apprenticeship (wages, training and transport) in East Hampshire  
 as demonstrated through the Get East Hants Working Initiative.

 Note: The current cost (2015) is £8,519 per apprentice. These figures will be  
 reviewed annually.

The Council consider that the initial occupants of the development can benefit from any economic 
contribution secured through the scheme as the funds will be available to them for two years from 
the date of completion of the development.  After a two-year period any remaining funds will be 
made available to other residents within East Hampshire to develop skills through apprenticeships 
and enable them to access local employment.

Page 46



29

4.89

4.90

4.91

4.92

4.93

4.94

4.95

Flood Protection and Water Management 

It is expected that the majority of contributions towards flood defence in the District will be 
made through CIL. However, in certain situations, it will be necessary to provide site specific flood 
protection measures and these may be secured through a Section 106. 

There may be circumstances when measures will be required in order to make a development 
safe. Measures will normally be identified by the Environment Agency and will usually be secured 
by planning conditions. However, where the measures involve off-site improvements, the need for a 
S106 agreement, negotiated on a case-by-case basis, will be considered.

Where on site measures are required, the type and location of the works should be justified  
and agreed with the Council and/or the Environment Agency prior to any works or funding being 
implemented. In some cases, it may be more appropriate to consider on-site mitigation measures 
such as the positioning of electrical sockets at a higher level or using more water resistant materials. 
The use of such measures will normally be secured through planning conditions rather than a  
legal agreement.

It is expected that developers will enter into a Section 106 which agrees either a level of 
appropriate funding or the provision of appropriate flood defence works or mitigation measures.

Waste water & Sewerage Infrastructure

Developers will be required to demonstrate that there is adequate waste water capacity and surface 
water drainage both on and off the site to serve the development and that it would not lead to 
problems for existing or new users. In some circumstances it may be necessary for developers to 
fund studies to ascertain whether the proposed development will lead to overloading of existing 
water and/or waste water infrastructure. Drainage on the site must maintain separation of foul and 
surface flows. 

Where there is an infrastructure capacity constraint the Council will require the developer to set 
out what appropriate improvements are required and how they will be delivered. 

Further information for Developers on sewerage infrastructure can be found on Thames Water’s 
website at: http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm

Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services

By post at:  
Thames Water Developer Services,
Clearwater Court, 
Vastern Road, 
Reading, 
RG1 8DB;
 
By telephone on: 0800 009 3921
 
Or by email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk”

Page 47



30

4.96

4.97

4.98

4.99

4.100

4.101

4.102

Green Infrastructure 

The standards for the provision of public open space and built recreation facilities on new 
residential development sites are set out in Joint Core Strategy Policy CP18.

Green infrastructure can take many forms including: 

• multifunctional green space (i.e. parks, amenity space, accessible  
 natural green space)   

• equipped play areas 

• allotments 

• habitats infrastructure to support biodiversity.

The Council will continue to use Section 106 legal agreements or conditions to secure the 
provision of local multi-functional green space, locally equipped play areas and allotments that 
directly serve a proposed development site, where the site is suitable.  

Contributions for strategic Green Infrastructure that would include public open space will largely 
be replaced by CIL and it is not expected that S106 obligations will be routinely used. However, 
where there is a quantitative deficiency in a type of open space or related facility and the proposed 
development is suitable, then on-site provision will still be sought using S106 legal agreements.

The Council’s adopted green space standards require new residential developments to provide, as 
a minimum, 3.45ha of public open space per 1,000 population to serve the needs generated by the 
new development. This requirement is broken down to set out what a development must provide 
in respect of multi-functional green space, equipped play areas and allotments, as set out in the 
Table below.

There are no standards for habitat creation as each site is assessed on a case by case basis. It 
is recognised however, that the provision of other forms of green infrastructure can contribute 
towards conserving and enhancing biodiversity.

Where a proposal requires off-site planting, a S106 agreement must be entered in to. This should 
cover the cost of any site purchase required for the new planting, the cost of the plants, any 
associated management and maintenance where the Council will not be adopting the land and 
sufficient funding for replacements for a period of five years. The costs will be calculated on a site-
by-site basis and be based on current prices at the time of the application.

Open Space Type                                   Requirement per 1,000 population (ha)

Parks, sports and recreation grounds 1

Natural green space 1

Informal green space 1

Equipped children’s and young people’s space 0.25

Allotments 0.2

Page 48



31

Transport

Funding for transport infrastructure required as a result of incremental growth will normally be 
provided by CIL and other mainstream funding programmes. Alterations to the local highway 
network which are necessary to promote a safe, efficient or sustainable relationship between 
development and the public highway may be secured through planning (Section 106) and/or  
highway legal agreements (Section 278). Improvements could include the provision, removal or 
relocation of street furniture, dropped kerbs, crossovers, pedestrian crossings, bus stops and  
links to the cycle network.

Where a development is required to make specific contributions towards improvements, 
amendments or additions to public transport services (which are not identified or expected to be 
met by CIL) contributions may be secured through a S106 legal agreement.

The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014) introduced a further restriction in respect of Section 
278 highway agreements. This prevents S278 agreements from being used to fund infrastructure for 
which CIL is also earmarked. However, highway agreements which are drawn up by the Highways 
Agency relating to the trunk road network will still be exempt. Where S278 agreements are used, 
there is no restriction on the number of contributions that can be pooled.

Travel Plans

Contributions towards revenue items are still permitted under S106 and are not restricted by the 
CIL regulations.  Where development exceeds the threshold for a Travel Plan, a Travel Plan will be 
secured through a S106. This will have the objective of reducing adverse transport impacts. A fee is 
charged for approval of a travel plan and for ongoing monitoring.

Travel Plans will set out, as far as possible, how development proposes to mitigate its adverse 
transport impacts and promote sustainable travel, and may include measures relating to encouraging 
sustainable transport behaviour and infrastructure provision. Travel Plans will include provision 
for financial penalties to fund the promotion or provision of sustainable transport until travel plan 
objectives are met.

Other 

As noted in paragraph 3.4, the list of Infrastructure types detailed in Table 1 is an indicative guide 
and that other types of infrastructure may be required to make a development acceptable in 
planning terms. The following list provides information on additional Section 106 obligations not 
detailed in this chapter that could be required to make a development acceptable: 

• Works or funding for the management and conservation archaeological interests   
 where a development has an adverse impact.

• Works or funding for the restoration, conservation / enhancement of listed    
 buildings, buildings of local importance and monuments at the development site.

• Works or funding for the diversion and or enhancement of Public Rights of Way

Social Infrastructure 

The provision of new and improvement of existing social infrastructure will be funded through CIL. 
However, in some instances developers may be required to provide land or buildings to enable the 
delivery of additional social infrastructure to serve the site. In such instances the provision of land 
or buildings will be secured through a Section 106 Legal Agreement.

4.103

4.104

4.105

4.106

4.107

4.108

 4.109

Page 49



32
Page 50



33

5.1

5.2

5.3

The East Hampshire District Charging Schedule 

The CIL charging rates that are set out below are supported by evidence of development viability. 
The CIL charging rates apply to development within East Hampshire District that is located 
outside of the South Downs National Park Authority Area. The Council adopted its CIL Charging 
Schedule on the 25th February 2016 with an implementation date of 8th April 2016. The rates set 
out in the CIL Charging Schedule are non-negotiable. 

The ‘chargeable amount’ of CIL for any new development is calculated in accordance with Part 5 
of the CIL Regulations (2010, as amended). The locally set rates detailed below  are multiplied by 
the ‘gross internal area’ of new buildings and enlargements to existing buildings, taking demolished 
floorspace into account and subject to the exemptions listed in Part 6 of the CIL Regulations.

The District Council’s CIL Charging Schedule sets out the levy rates for residential developments 
and other uses (non-residential developments) in the District (outside of the National Park).

Section 5: Charging CIL

 The Authority will 
use the HMRC 

Valuation Office 
Agency’s definition of 

gross internal area.

Page 51



34

Residential Use          CIL in £/sq m

Other Uses        CIL in £/sq m

Residential other than class C2, C2A uses, 
Extra Care Housing and C3A sheltered housing

Residential C3A sheltered housing in self contained houses 
and flats with communal facilities and an age restriction

Offices          £0

Hotels in all areas (excluding the Whitehill & Bordon    £70 
Regeneration Project Zone)

Hotels in the Whitehill & Bordon Regeneration      £0 
Project Zone

Retail development in all areas (excluding the Whitehill     £100
and Bordon Regeneration Project CIL Zone)

Retail development in the Whitehill and Bordon      £0 
Regeneration Project CIL Zone

Industrial and warehousing       £0

Student accommodation       £0

All class C2, C2A, C3B, C3C and extra care housing use    £0

Any other development        £0

Whitehill and Bordon (excluding 
Regeneration Project CIL Zone) - £65 

Southern parishes of Clanfield, 
Horndean and Rowlands Castle - £110 

Alton CIL Zone Location - £150

Northern parishes (excluding 
Whitehill/Bordon and Alton) - £180

Whitehill and Bordon Regeneration 
Project CIL Zone - £0

Rest of the Charging Area - £40

Note: The CIL rates will increase with market inflation over time to ensure their effectiveness 
at delivering infrastructure. They are linked to the All-in Tender Price Index published by the 
Building Cost Information Service of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

Page 52



35

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

The rates in the Charging Schedule are based on evidence produced by Adams Integra, notably the 
CIL Addendum Economic Viability Assessment (January 2015). The Viability Assessment looked at 
the rates which can be charged on different types of development in different parts of the District, 
while still allowing development to come forward. The Viability Assessments and the CIL charging 
rates have been subject to public consultation. An independent examination was held in June 2015 
and the Examiner’s report was published on 19 October 2015. 

The Inspector’s Report concludes that the East Hampshire Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule provides an appropriate basis for the collection of the levy in the area, subject 
to a number of modifications being made. The report also notes that the Council has sufficient 
evidence to support the schedule and can show that the levy is set at a level that will not put the 
overall development of the area at risk. 

Who is liable to pay CIL?

Landowners are ultimately liable for the levy, but anyone involved in a development may take on 
the CIL liability. Where no one has assumed liability, it will automatically default to the landowners 
and payment becomes due as soon as the development commences. In these circumstances, the 
landowner will not benefit from the Council’s instalment policy. 

The Council will require the submission of an Assumption of Liability Notice at the earliest 
opportunity and before development commences.

The following table illustrates some of the more common development scenarios and lists 
whether or not the proposal will be CIL liable:

When is CIL Charged?

CIL will be charged on planning permissions granted on or after the adoption of the CIL  
Charging Schedule. 

CIL will not be charged if planning permission was granted before the Charging Schedule  
came into effect. 

CIL will not be charged in the case of outline planning permissions which were granted  
approval before the adoption of the CIL Charging Schedule.

CIL will be payable where there is a resolution to grant planning permission (subject to a  
S106 agreement) but permission is not formally granted until after adoption of the CIL  
Charging Schedule.

Existing Use  Proposed Use Potential Liability

Development site   Dwelling (self build) CIL is not charged on self  Not liable
  build development 

Development site   Dwelling CIL charged on all new  CIL liable
  floorspace Charge is based
  on total new floorspace 
  (no minimum)

Development site   Affordable housing CIL is not charged on dwellings  Not liable
  that are categorised as affordable  
   housing

 http://www.easthants.gov.uk/
planning-policy/community-

infrastructure-levy-cil-
examination

http://www.planningportal.
gov.uk/uploads/1app/

forms/form_1_
assumption_of_liability.pdf

Page 53



36

Development site Offices Office development is not  Not liable
  CIL liable   

Office in use Change of use to dwelling CIL liable and chargeable for any Liable and 
  additional floorspace (no minimum)  potentially
  For example, if existing office is  chargeable 
  100sqm and in use, then only 
   additional floorspace above 
  100sqm is chargeable

Office Affordable housing CIL is not charged on dwellings  Not liable
  that are categorised as 
  affordable housing

Office Office extension Office development is not CIL Not liable 
  liable or chargeable
  This is irrespective of size

Demolished  Replacement new A credit is given for the  CIL liable
dwelling dwelling demolished floorspace so CIL 
  is only payable on the net 
  additional floorspace

Dwelling Extension less than CIL is only chargeable for  Not liable
 100 sqm extensions over 100sqm    
  (not counting the original 
  dwelling) Therefore, any 
  extension of less than 100sqm 
  is not chargeable 

Dwelling Extension more than CIL is charged for the entire  Liable and
 100sqm new floorspace where an  chargeable
  extension is greater than 
  100sqm (not counting the 
  original dwelling) Chargeable 
  as extension is greater than 
  100sqm 

Dwelling Sub division into two  The sub-division of a dwelling is  Not liable
 dwellings not CIL liable .If proposals also 
  involve extension(s), CIL is only 
  chargeable for extensions over 
  100sqm, calculated prior to 
  deducting existing ‘in use’ 
  floorspace 

  If any existing buildings/ 
  floorspace is currently in use  
  and to be demolished/converted  
  it can be deducted from the  
  chargeable floorspace of the  
  new building (not counting the  
  original dwelling)

Page 54



37

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

How will CIL funding be spent and prioritised?

East Hampshire District Council is responsible for making the final decisions on the allocation 
of funding raised through the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be done through an 
annual process that includes consultation with stakeholders and aligns and concludes with the 
Council’s annual capital spending programme. The aim is to identify and agree priorities for the 
use of CIL (and S106 planning obligations funds) over a three year programme, and to agree the 
release of funds on an annual basis.
 
The Council will prepare a CIL Funding Decision Protocol to set out the process by which 
infrastructure providers can bid for CIL funding, the consultation involved and the process by 
which the spending programme is agreed.  

The Council has published Regulation 123 List. This sets out the types of infrastructure which may 
be funded or part funded by CIL. 

The Council will publish details of CIL spending each year in the Authority Monitoring Report, 
which will be published on the Council’s website.  

The Neighbourhood Portion of the Levy

Local authorities are required to allocate 15% of levy receipts from development within the Town 
or Parish area up to a maximum of £100 per existing council tax dwelling per annum to spend 
on priorities that should be agreed with the local community in areas where development is 
taking place. However, for those communities with an adopted Neighbourhood Plan in place, local 
authorities are required to allocate 25% of levy receipts in the area. The table overleaf  provides 
further information about the relationship between the levy and Neighbourhood Plans.

5.9

5.10

5.11

How much CIL will be charged? 

The ‘chargeable amount’ of CIL for any new development is calculated in accordance with Part 5 
of the CIL Regulations (2010, as amended). The locally set rates above are multiplied by the ‘gross 
internal area’ of new buildings and enlargements to existing buildings, taking demolished floorspace 
into account and subject to the exemptions listed in Part 6 of the Regulations.

Part 6 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) exempts the following types of development 
from CIL liability:

• Social (affordable) housing

• Domestic residential extensions

• Self-build development

• Development by charitable institutions

• Changes of use that do not increase floor space

• Buildings into which people do not normally go or go only intermittently for the   
 purpose of maintaining or inspecting machinery, and

• Buildings with temporary planning permission.

Zero rates have been set for Affordable Housing, Offices, Industrial, Warehousing and Hotels in 
Whitehill and Bordon Regeneration Project Zone. New development falling into these categories 
will not pay CIL, based on the viability considerations set out in the Economic Viability Assessment.

Please Note: Applicants will be expected to complete an Additional Information Form listing 
the gross internal area (GIA) of existing and proposed development. This is the internal area of 
the building and should include room, circulation and service space, and, corridors, toilets, and 
ancillary floorspace such as underground parking.

Regulation 59(A) of the CIL 
regulations.

For those parishes that are 
located partially within the 

East Hampshire District 
Planning Authority Area and 

partially within the South 
Downs National Authority 
Area, the cap will be based 

on  the total number 
of existing Council Tax 

dwellings that are located 
within the East Hampshire 

District Authority Area only. 

Page 55



38

The relationship between the levy and Neighbourhood Plans

Town / Parish Council

Neighbourhood Plan

= 25% uncapped.

Receipts paid to Town or Parish Council

Town / Parish Council 

Neighbourhood Plan

= 25% uncapped. 

East Hampshire District Council will retain the 
levy receipts but will consult with the community 
and agree with them how best to spend the 
neighbourhood funding.

Town / Parish Council

Neighbourhood Plan

= 15% of levy receipts capped at £100/dwelling 
per existing Council Tax Dwelling.

Receipts paid to Town or Parish Council

Town / Parish Council

Neighbourhood Plan

= 15% of levy receipts capped at £100/dwelling 
per existing Council Tax Dwelling.  

East Hampshire District Council will retain the 
levy receipts but will consult with the community 
and agree with them how best to spend the 
neighbourhood funding.

Page 56



39

Section 6 : Demolition, Change of Use and
  Permitted Development

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Section 6 – Demolition, Change of Use and Permitted Development

Where buildings are demolished to allow for new development, CIL is only payable on the net 
additional floorspace. A credit is given for the demolished floorspace (provided the buildings were in 
lawful use prior to demolition). If the floorspace of the demolished building is greater than the new 
building, there will be no CIL liability. 

Where the proposal involves a change of use and there is no additional floorspace, there will be 
no CIL liability. CIL is only payable on additional floorspace. The existing use must have been in 
continuous lawful use for at least six months in the previous three years prior to the development 
being permitted. It will be for the applicant to demonstrate lawful use by using appropriate evidence 
such as Council Tax records or Business Rates.

The CIL Regulations provide guidance where only a small part of a building to be demolished has 
been in use over the last six months. The Regulations state that a building is in use if a part of the 
building is in use for a continuous period of at least six months within the period of three years, 
ending on the day planning permission first permits the development. Therefore, all the floorspace in 
the building would be deductible from the floorspace of the new buildings, even if only a small part 
of the original building was in lawful use. 

If there is no CIL payable in the case of demolition or a change of use, applicants should be aware 
that S106 obligations or works under S278 of the Highways Act may still be sought to address site 
specific issues such as a new access (refer to Section 2 for more information).

Permitted Development

It is important to note that some development proposals that are classed as permitted development 
rights will be CIL liable. If you are unsure as to whether your development would be CIL liable we 
recommend that you contact the Council. In addition, it is the responsibility of the applicant to 
notify the Council that works are being carried out under permitted development rights. 

Where a CIL liable development is being carried out under permitted development, the applicant 
must submit a Notice of Chargeable Development to the Council and the notice must include 
all the relevant floor area details. The Council will treat the information in exactly the same way 
as if a planning permission has been granted. The notice is registered and acknowledged, the CIL 
liability is calculated and a Liability Notice is issued to the applicant. The applicant must then submit 
a Commencement Notice (when development commences) and the Council will issue a Demand 
Notice, informing the applicant of payment details.

If the development is subject to the Prior Notification Procedure, applicants are encouraged to 
submit a Notice of Chargeable Development at the same time as the Prior Notification details. 

A Lawful Development Certificate is often sought to confirm permitted development rights.  
In itself, it does not trigger a levy payment because it is not a planning permission as defined in 
Regulation 5. It simply confirms that no further application for planning permission is required for 
that development. Therefore, the normal levy provisions in respect of permitted development  
rights apply.

Section 73 Applications

Where planning permission is granted for a development before a CIL Charging Schedule is in place, 
but a further permission is granted in relation to the same development by way of a S73 application 
(i.e. to vary or remove a condition) after a charging schedule comes into effect, CIL will only be 
payable upon any increase in chargeable floorspace from the Section 73 application. Therefore, the 
original consented floor area will fall outside of the scope of CIL. If the S73 consent does not result 
in an increased floorspace compared to the original consent, no CIL will be payable.

http://www.planningportal.
gov.uk/uploads/1app/

forms/form_5_notice_of_
chargeable_development.pdf

Page 57



40

7.1

7.2

This section provides detailed information on how the Council will administer the CIL process and 
the information that will be required from developers.  

The following information summarises the documentation that will need to be submitted for 
different types of development that will occur in the District, including permitted development. 
Forms the applicant must submit are underlined whilst the forms or actions that the Council will 
issue are double underlined. 

1. No planning application but development is liable to CIL

If there is no planning application but development is liable to CIL (i.e. permitted development over 
100sqm):

•   The applicant must submit a Notice of Chargeable Development. If a Prior Approval Notice   
    is required, the applicant should submit the Notice of Chargeable Development together   
    with the Prior Approval Notice

•   If no Prior Approval Notice is required, it is the responsibility of the applicant to submit the     
    Notice of Chargeable Development before commencement

•   The Council must record and acknowledge receipt of Notice of Chargeable Development   
    and issue a Liability Notice

2. When a planning application is liable to CIL

Step 1 – Receipt of Planning application

When a planning application is received and is liable to CIL:

• The applicant must submit an Additional Information form with the application
• The Council must calculate the CIL liability based on the floorspace figures indicated  

on this form

Social housing and Charities relief

• Exemptions can only be made if a claim for relief is made on the CIL Claiming Exemption  
or Relief form

• Claim must be assessed by the Council and claimant must be notified of decision
• Full details about claiming such exemptions are set out in sections 41 – 54 of the Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations

Step 2 – When planning permission is granted

The Council must send out a Decision Notice and issue a Liability Notice to:

• The applicant
• Anyone who has already assumed liability
• Each person known to be an owner of the land (where leasehold, owner is assumed to 
 be anyone with a leasehold of over 7 years left to run)
• The person assuming liability must submit an Assumption of Liability Notice (or Transfer 
 of Liability Notice)
• The Council must record and acknowledge receipt of the Assumption of Liability Notice
• If there is no assumption of liability, the Council must apportion liability to the owners before   
 development commences.

Step 3 – Pre-development commencement requirements 

• Applicants must send the Commencement Notice to the Council (this must be received by the
 Council at least one day before development is due to commence. Failure to comply with this
 may result in the loss of an ability to pay by instalments)

Section 7: The CIL Process

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
uploads/1app/forms/form_5_notice_of_

chargeable_development.pdf

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
uploads/1app/forms/cil_questions.pdf

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
uploads/1app/forms/form_2_claiming_

exemption_and_or_relief.pdf

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_

of_liability.pdf 

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
uploads/1app/forms/form_4_transfer_of_

assumed_liability.pdf 

Commencement of development is 
defined in Section 7 (2) of the Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 
(as amended) as: “Development is to be 
treated as commencing on the earliest 
date on which any material operation 

begins to be carried out to the relevant 
land.” ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/

contents

http://www.planningportal.gov.
uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_6_

commencement_notice.pdf Page 58



41

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

• The Council must scan and register/record this notice

• If there is no Commencement Notice or it contains incorrect dates, the Council can calculate the
 deemed commencement date before issuing a Demand Notice

• Receipt of a Commencement Notice from the applicant triggers the Council to send a Demand  
 Notice to each liable person, based on the details in the Liability Notice

• Based on the deemed commencement date, the Council can re-calculate CIL liability to include
 inflation or add applicable surcharges before issuing the Demand Notice

• CIL liability should then be paid in accordance with the Council’s instalments policy

• If CIL is not paid, the recovery process should commence

Where a development has a party who has assumed liability, the development will be entitled to 
payment through instalments, provided other CIL procedures such as the Commencement Notice
are followed. Where no-one assumes liability to pay CIL, the liability will automatically default to 
the owners of the relevant land and payment becomes due immediately upon commencement 
of development.

It should be noted that the details above outline the basic CIL process, but do not include 
every possible scenario. If you are in doubt about any of the steps, please speak to your 
Development Management Case Officer.

Calculating the Chargeable Amount

The CIL regulations set out the formula for calculating the chargeable amount at Regulation 40 of the 
CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014) and this will be used to calculate the charge set out in the 
Liability Notice:

R x A x Ip 
Ic

R = relevant CIL rate (see the East Hampshire District CIL Charging Schedule in Section 5)
A = chargeable area 
Ip = index figure for year of permission 
Ic = index figure for year Charging Schedule took effect 

The index (I) is the national All-in Tender Price Index published by the Building Cost Information 
Service of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; and the figure for a given year is the figure for 
1st November for the preceding year.

If the proposed development is a single use development, CIL liability will be calculated using the 
formula above. If you have a mixed use development, the formula will be applied for each use, and the 
results added up to get the total CIL liability. Worked examples of how to calculate CIL liability are 
provided overleaf.

A CIL calculator will be made available on the Council’s website when the Council adopts its CIL 
Charging Schedule. The calculator will provide an estimate of what will be charged for each type of 
development. The calculator will not provide the final charge as set out in the Liability Notice which 
will be calculated by the Council once a planning application has been submitted.

A building is in use if a part of that building has been in use for a continuous period of at least six 
months within the period of three years ending on the day planning permission first permits the 
chargeable development.
 
Full details of the formula and calculations can be found at: 
www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/regulation/40/made

Page 59



42

CIL Worked Example 3

The demolition of a building of 2,000sqm, 1,200sqm of which is in lawful use and its replacement 
with a 8,000sqm mixed use development compromising 1,500sqm hotel, 1,000sqm of office, 500sqm 
of retail and 5,000sqm of residential. The development is located in Whitehill Bordon but outside of 
the Regeneration Zone. 

The key issue here is that the existing building is in lawful use.  As the development comprises a mix 
of uses, the deduction of the existing floorspace is applied on a pro rata basis across the new uses.

The East Hampshire District CIL Charging Schedule sets out the following charging rates for the 
mix of uses:

Hotel development is £70 per sqm
Office development is £0 per sqm
Retail development is £100 per sqm
Residential development is £65 per sqm

The CIL liability is calculated as follows:
Stage 1: Calculate the deduction factor for the existing floorspace (2,000sqm) by dividing the 
existing floorspace by the new floorspace (8,000sqm) = 0.25

Stage 2: Calculate the Hotel liability
1,500 x £70 per sqm x 0.75 = £78,750

Stage 3: Calculate the office liability
1,000 x £0 per sqm x 0.75 = £0

Stage 4: Calculate the retail liability
500 x 100 per sqm x 0.75 = £37,500

CIL Worked Example 2

The demolition of an existing dwelling in lawful use in Horndean and the construction of an 
apartment block in its place. The existing dwelling is 120sqm and the apartment block is 620sqm and 
all of the units will be market housing.  

The development of the apartment block results in the creation of new dwellings and therefore 
CIL applies. However, because the existing dwelling is in lawful use, its floorspace is deducted when 
calculating CIL liability. 

The CIL charge for residential development in Horndean is £110 per sqm. The CIL liability is 
calculated as follows
Stage 1: Calculate the net increase in floorspace by deducting the existing floorspace from the new 
floospace

The chargeable area is 620sqm – 120sqm = 500sqm

Stage 2: Calculate the CIL liability based on the net increase in floorspace

500sqm multiplied by £110 equals a CIL liability of £55,000

CIL Worked Example 1

Three houses are proposed with a total floorspace of 250 sqm (Gross Internal Area) on a cleared 
site in Alton. As the site is clear the chargable area does not need to be calculated as it is 250 sqm.

The residential CIL rate in Alton shown in the East Hampshire District CIL Charging Schedule is 
£150 per sqm. The CIL liability for the development is therefore calculated as follows:

£150 multiplied by 250gsm equals CIL liability of £37,500

Page 60



43

Relief for Social Housing or Charitable Purposes

If part of the development includes social housing or is for charitable purposes, it will not be 
necessary to pay CIL on this part of the development, provided exemption is claimed prior to 
commencement of development. To claim social housing relief or charitable relief, a Claiming 
Exemption or Relief Form must be completed.

Social housing relief applies where social housing is to be provided by a registered social landlord, a 
registered provider of social housing or a local housing authority and meets all of the conditions set 
out in Regulation 49 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014 and 2015). 

Charitable relief applies where the development will be mainly or wholly used for charitable 
purposes and is under the control of a charity.

It is important to note that an application for social housing or charitable relief must demonstrate 
that it meets the criteria for that relief, as set out in Part 6 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 
amended 2014 and 2015). If development commences without social housing relief or charitable 
relief having being granted, the applicant may be liable to the full CIL liability.

The amount of social housing relief will be calculated using the following formula as set out in 
Regulation 50 of The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010.

Further guidance on social housing and charitable relief is contained in National Planning  
Practice Guidance. 

Exemptions for Self Build

The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014) allow people who are building their own home (to 
live in themselves), extending their own home or building an annexe, to apply for exemption from 
CIL. CIL Regulation 42a provides further detail.

The exemption will apply to anybody who is building their own home or has commissioned a home 
from a contractor, house builder or sub-contractor. Individuals claiming the exemption must own 
the property and occupy it as their principle residence for a minimum of three years after the work 
is completed. Community group self build projects also qualify for the exemption where they meet 
the required criteria.

In order for an application for self build exemption to be considered, the applicant must 
complete the Self Build Exemption Form Part 1 , which must be received by the Council before 
commencement of the chargeable development begins. A claim will lapse if the development is 
commenced before the Council has notified the claimant of its decision. 

Within six months of completing the home, the applicant must submit additional supporting 
evidence to confirm that the project is self build. If this is not submitted within the six month time 
period, the levy becomes payable in full. Evidence must be submitted together with the Self Build 
Exemption Claim Form Part 2.

In the case of a self build extension or annexe, the applicant must submit a Self Build Annex Form  
or Extension Claim Form.

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Stage 5: Calculate the residential liability
5,000 x £65 per sqm x 0.75 = £243,750

Stage 6: Calculate the total liability
Hotel (£78,850) + Office (£0) + Retail (£37,500) + Residential (£243,750) = CIL liability 
of £360,100

Note: In the above case study no relief has been applied for social housing provision which would 
be required from such a development in accordance with Joint care Strategy Policy CP13. Further 
details on social housing relief are provided below.

 http://www.planningportal.
gov.uk/uploads/1app/

forms/form_2_claiming_
exemption_and_or_relief.pdf

 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/
ukdsi/2014/9780111106761/

regulation/7

Page 61



44

Band Amout of CIL liability Number of  Payment periods
  instalments and amounts

1

2

3

4

5

Less than £20,000

Equal to or greater than 
£20,000 and less than 
£100,000

Equal to or greater than 
£100,000 and less than 
£250,000

Equal to or greater than 
£250,000 and less than 
£750,000

Equal to or greater than 
£750,000

0

3

3

4

4

• 100% within 120 days of  
 commencement of development

• 25% within 60 days of commencement  
 of development
• Additional 25% within 180 days
• Final 50% within 240 days

• 25% within 60 days of commencement  
 of development 
• Additional 25% payable within 180 days  
 of commencement of development 
• Final 50% within 360 days of  
 commencement of development

• 25% payable within 60 days of  
 commencement of development
• Additional 25% payable within 180 days  
 of commencement of development
• Additional 25% payable within 240 days  
 of commencement of development
• Final 25% payable within 360 days of  
 commencement of development

• 25% payable within 90 days of  
 commencement of development
• Additional 25% payable within 180 days  
 of commencement of development
• Additional 25% payable within 360 days  
 of commencement of development
• Final 25% payable within 540 days of  
 commencement of development

East Hampshire District Council CIL Instalments Policy

The CIL Instalments policy was adopted by Council on the 25th February 2016 and took effect 
on the 8th April 2016 in accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014). The policy 
allows CIL liability to be paid in phases, depending on the amount of liability.  
The policy is shown below

7.21

Page 62



45

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

Where there is agreement amongst all parties, the regulations allow for a planning application to 
be subdivided into phases for the purposes of the levy. This is expected to be particularly helpful 
for large scale developments. The principle of phased delivery must be apparent from the planning 
permission. Developers are advised to contact the Council at the earliest opportunity to discuss 
requirements for a phased approach.

It is important to note that if a Commencement Notice is not received before the development 
commences or if a Commencement Notice was received but the Council believes the development 
was commenced earlier, the Council will determine the Deemed Commencement Date. In these 
circumstances, the Instalment Policy does not apply and full payment is due immediately. The Council 
can also apply a surcharge equal to 20% of the applicable CIL charge up to a maximum of £2500.

Phasing

The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014) also make provision for the phasing of levy payments 
to all types of planning permission (including hybrid) to deal fairly with more complex developments. 
While this will not affect the total amount of CIL payable for a development, it will have a positive 
impact on cash flow for developers, who previously had to pay the entire levy on commencement of 
development (see CIL Regulation 2010 8(3A) (as amended 2014).

Phasing differs from instalments. Each phase is a separate chargeable development for the purposes 
of paying CIL and the instalments policy applies to each phase. Therefore, it is likely to apply to 
larger schemes which can easily be divided into a series of distinct phases and which may be 
delivered over a number of years. Applicants are advised to speak to their case officer at an early 
stage to agree any phasing details and how they will affect payments.

Surcharges and Interest

Part 9 of the CIL Regulations allow the Council to apply surcharges and/or interest in respect of a 
chargeable development, under certain circumstances, including:

• Where nobody has assumed liability

• Where the Council is required to apportion liability

• Where a notice of chargeable development has not been submitted

• Where a chargeable development is commenced before the Council has received a   
  commencement notice

• Where a payment is late

• Where there is a failure to comply with an information notice 

Where it is considered appropriate to apply surcharges or interest, the Council will have regard to 
the calculations provided by Regulations 80 to 88 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended 2014) 
when applying charges.

How will the payment of the levy be enforced?

When planning permission is granted, the Council will send out a CIL Liability Notice, setting out 
the expected CIL liability. This will be based on the floorspace details submitted by the applicant. On 
receipt of a Commencement Notice from the applicant, the Council will then send out a Demand 
Notice, indicating that CIL is now payable. However, where the levy is not paid in accordance with 
the Demand Notice, the regulations provide for a range of proportionate enforcement measures, 
such as surcharges and interest on late payments.

 http://www.legislation.
gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/

part/10/made

Page 63



46

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

In most cases, these measures should be sufficient. However, in cases of persistent non-compliance, 
the regulations also enable collecting authorities to take more direct action to recover the amount 
due. One such measure is the Community Infrastructure Levy Stop Notice, which prohibits 
development from continuing until payment is made. Another is the ability to seek a court’s consent 
to seize and sell assets of the liable party. In the very small number of cases where a Collecting 
Authority can demonstrate that recovery measures have been unsuccessful, a court may be asked to 
commit the liable party to a short prison sentence. 

If a developer goes out of business during the life of a development, the CIL liability defers to the 
landowner.

Full details of enforcement procedures can be found in Part 9 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 
amended 2014) 

Community Infrastructure Levy Appeals

An adopted CIL rate is non negotiable and the Council is not required to justify its application 
of CIL on a case by case basis. However, the CIL regulations do allow appeals about matters of 
fact, such as a mistake in the calculation of the CIL liability or the date on which development 
commenced. 

Appeals may be made in the following circumstances:

• Review of the chargeable amount
• Chargeable amount appeal
• Apportionment of liability
• Charitable relief appeal
• Surcharge Appeal
• Deemed Consent Appeal
• CIL Stop Notice Appeal.

Further information about each of the seven different appeal types is provided below:

1. Review of the chargeable amount
A person may ask the Council to review the calculation of the chargeable amount set out in the 
liability notice. The appeal must be made in writing to the collecting authority no more than 28 days 
after the Liability Notice was issued. A review may be requested after the relevant development has 
been commenced only if planning permission was granted after the development was commenced.

2. Chargeable amount appeal
Where a person is not satisfied with the outcome of their review of the chargeable amount, or has 
not received a reply from the Council within 14 days, they may appeal. The appeal must be made 
no more than 60 days after the Liability Notice was issued and an appeal cannot be made if the 
development has commenced. The appeal will be heard by a valuer. If they allow the appeal, they 
must calculate the revised charge. Only one appeal is allowed.

3. Apportionment of liability
A person who is an owner of the land may appeal against the apportionment of liability within 28 
days of the Demand Notice being issued. This type of appeal is also heard by the valuer and if they 
allow the appeal they may quash a surcharge and/or reapportion liability between the owners  
of the land.

4. Charitable relief appeal
A person may appeal the Council’s decision to grant charitable relief on the ground that it 
incorrectly determined the value of the interest in land in respect of which the claim was allowed. 
This sort of appeal is also heard by a valuer and must be made no more than 28 days after 
the Council has made its decision to grant charitable relief. It will lapse if the development is 
commenced before the appeal is decided. If the appeal is allowed the valuer can amend the amount 
of charitable relief granted. 

Page 64



47

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

5. Surcharge Appeal 
A person may appeal against a surcharge imposed by the Council on any of the following grounds: 

• That the claimed breach which led to the imposition of the surcharge did not occur; 
• That the Council did not serve a Liability Notice in respect of the chargeable development to   
 which the surcharge relates; or 
• That the surcharge has been calculated incorrectly. 

The appeal must be made no more than 28 days after the surcharge is imposed. This type of Appeal 
is likely be heard by a Planning Inspector. If the appeal is allowed the inspector may quash or 
recalculate the surcharge. 

6. Deemed Commencement Appeal 
A person who is served with a Demand Notice that states a ‘deemed commencement’ date may 
appeal on the ground that the date is wrong. The appeal must be made no later than 28 days after 
the Demand Notice is issued and is likely be heard by a Planning Inspector. If the appeal is allowed 
the inspector may revise the deemed commencement date and quash any surcharge. 

7. CIL Stop Notice Appeal 
A person may appeal against a CIL Stop Notice on the grounds that the Council did not serve a 
warning notice or that the development has not commenced. The appeal must be made no more 
than 60 days after the Stop Notice takes effect. The person who hears this type of appeal is likely be 
a Planning Inspector and the Stop Notice continues to have effect while the appeal is outstanding. 
The inspector may correct, vary or quash the Stop Notice.

Cost of Appeals
Regulation 121 states that the appointed person may make orders regarding the cost of appeals. An 
appointed person is a valuation officer, a district valuer, the secretary of state or a person appointed 
by the secretary of state; depending on the type of appeal.

For full information about the CIL appeals process please refer to Part 10 of the CIL Regulations 
2010 (as amended 2014).

Page 65



Appendix 1 – 5.6km Special Protection Area Buffer

48
Page 66



Appendix 2 – CIL Charging Area Maps 

49
Page 67



50
Page 68



51
Page 69



52

East Hampshire District Council
Penns Place
Petersfield
Hampshire
GU31 4EX
01730 234280
www.easthants.gov.uk

If you need this information in a different
format, for example large print, CD or
Braille, please contact the Council. Page 70



1 
 

Infrastructure Funding 
Statement (IFS) 2021 

 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

                                                                                                          

 

2021 

 

Page 71



2 
 

 

Contents 
1. Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. What is Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)? ............................................................................... 3 

3. What is Section 106 (S106)? ........................................................................................................... 4 

4. Section 278 Highway Agreements .................................................................................................. 5 

5. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Monitoring ........................................................................... 5 

6. Funding from Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) ........................................................ 8 

7. Section 106 (S106) Monitoring ....................................................................................................... 8 

8. Infrastructure to be secured via S106 Agreements ........................................................................ 9 

Appendix A – Potential Liability  

Appendix B - Links to published monitoring data of Neighbourhood Portions for this year 

(2019/2020) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



3 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. This is an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) providing a summary of the financial 

contributions relating to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 (S106) 

within East Hampshire District (outside of the South Downs National Park) for ‘this year’ 

(01/04/2020 – 31/03/2021). Whenever this document says, ‘this year’, it is this period it is 

referring to.  

 

1.2. The IFS provides the policy framework as to how the Council will deliver infrastructure across 

the district. The IFS also details how funding from development will be utilised to secure 

varying infrastructure under S106 or CIL. 

 

1.3. The Council’s first round of Strategic CIL Funding occurred this year. Those projects that were 

awarded Strategic CIL Funding are listed in Section 6.  

 

2. What is Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)? 
 

2.1. CIL is intended to fund generalised infrastructure requirements across the district to support 

new development. CIL income can be used to fund additional infrastructure required to 

support new development including roads, schools, green spaces, and community facilities. 

 

2.2. The levy is charged in pounds (£) per square metre on new floorspace (measured as gross 

internal area) of any type of development which has a CIL rate set in the Charging Schedule.  

 

2.3. The amount of CIL payable by developers depends on where the development is located 

within the district and the type of development. The Council adopted its Community 

Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule on 25 February 2016, and its charging schedule is 

published online at www.easthants.gov.uk/cil-charging-schedule. As stated in the CIL Charging 

Schedule, Whitehill and Bordon Regeneration Area is a CIL Island and therefore has a CIL rate 

of £0sqm. All associated infrastructure is secured via S106. 

 

2.4. The Council adopted its CIL Spending Protocol on 14 January 2021, the document sets out the 

process for determining the spending of CIL. The document is published online at 

https://cdn.easthants.gov.uk/public/documents/CIL%20protocol%202021.pdf. Decisions on 

how CIL income should be spent within East Hampshire District (outside the South Downs 

National Park) lie with East Hampshire District Council for the Strategic CIL funding pot and 

with Town and Parish Councils in relation to the Neighbourhood Portion of CIL. For further 

information on the Neighbourhood Portion, please contact Parish/Town Councils. 

 

2.5. The Strategic CIL Funding pot is open to bidding once per year. It will be used to fund 

infrastructure to support growth in the district and decisions on allocation of funding will be in 

line with the Council’s Spending Protocol. Those projects granted Strategic CIL funding this 

year will be listed later in this IFS in section 6.  

 

Page 73

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/cil-charging-schedule
https://cdn.easthants.gov.uk/public/documents/CIL%20protocol%202021.pdf


4 
 

2.6. CIL money is split between the Councils administration cost, Parish and Town Council 

Neighbourhood Portion and Strategic CIL allocation. Further detail can be found in section 6.  

 

2.7. Due to the uncertainty over forecasting, the council is unable to make a reliable forecast of 

future CIL Income so has not done so. 

Who is liable to pay CIL?  

2.8. Landowners are ultimately liable for the levy, but anyone involved in a development may take 

on the CIL liability. Where no one has assumed liability, it will automatically default to the 

landowners and payment becomes due as soon as the development commences. In these 

circumstances, the landowner will not benefit from the Council’s instalment policy.  

 

2.9. The Council will require the submission of an Assumption of Liability Notice1 at the earliest 

opportunity and before development commences.  

 

2.10. Appendix A illustrates some of the more common development scenarios and lists whether or 

not the proposal will be CIL liable.  

 

3. What is Section 106 (S106)?  
 

3.1. Planning obligations, also known as S106, are private agreements made between local 

authorities and developers and can be attached to a planning permission to make 

development acceptable which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms.  

 

3.2. S106 will continue to operate alongside CIL. S106 may be sought in addition to CIL where site 

specific measures are required to make a development acceptable, this can be through the 

provision of infrastructure that is on or off site. For example, affordable housing, which is 

outside the remit of CIL, and specific highway or flood alleviation measures. 

 

3.3. Any S106 agreements will need to meet the three tests set out in the CIL Regulations 2019 (as 

amended): 

• Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms 

• Directly related to the development 

• Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development 

 

3.4. At this time, we are unable to detail the amount of S106 monies spent this year. Future 

Infrastructure Funding Statements will include this information.  

 

 

 

 
1 http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf 

Page 74

https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf


5 
 

4. Section 278 Highway Agreements  
 

4.1. Section 278 Agreements (S278) are legal agreements that can fund infrastructure. These are 

legally binding agreements made under the Highways Act 1990 between Local Highway 

Authorities and Developers. S278 agreements are required to ensure that the road networks 

are able to cope with new development. S278 agreements are the responsibility of Hampshire 

County Council as the Highway Authority. The County Council can provide further data 

regarding these agreements during this year. 

 

5. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Monitoring 
 

Monitoring (the Council) 

5.1. For East Hampshire District (outside the SDNP), the total amount of CIL payments collected 

from developments this year is £1,706,996.37.  

 

5.2. The Council started collecting CIL in April 2016. Up to the start of this year (1 April 2020), the 

Council had already collected £3,211,832.63 in CIL payments from developments.  Therefore, 

up to the end of this year (31 March 2021), the Council has collected in total £4,918,829 in CIL 

payments from development2.   

 

5.3. This total amount collected (£4,918,829) does not equate to money that is available to the 

Council to allocate to spend on infrastructure. 5% of this total contributes towards covering 

the Council’s administration costs, and 15% or 25% is passed to Parish/Town Councils (known 

as “the Neighbourhood Portion” – see more information further on in this report).  

 

5.4. Of this total amount collected (£4,918,829), £245,941.38 has contributed towards the 

Council’s administration costs and £589,690.18 has been passed to Parish/Town Councils as 

the Neighbourhood Portion. From this year’s CIL money collected (£1,706,996.37), £85,349.75 

has gone towards the Council’s administration costs, and £119,960.37 has been passed on as 

the Neighbourhood Portion.  

 

5.5. This leaves a total amount of CIL collected that is available to fund infrastructure projects of 

£3,843,478.25 (as at 31 March 2021), known as Strategic CIL. Further money has been 

collected since then, and the total amount is as per the date/point in time.  

 

5.6. The amount of CIL spent on repaying money borrowed, including any interest, is zero.  

 

5.7. To spend the Strategic CIL money collected, the Council needs to have a Spending Protocol in 

place. This sets out the governance and process for how infrastructure projects will be 

allocated funds.  East Hampshire District Council adopted its CIL Spending Protocol on 14 

January 2021 at Full Council.  

 

 
2 Note, this is from chargeable developments – not all developments have to pay CIL as there are some 
exemptions. 

Page 75



6 
 

5.8. Strategic CIL was allocated, according to the Council’s adopted Spending Protocol, in July 

2021.  A total of £1,960,348 of Strategic CIL money was allocated to funding infrastructure 

projects, (as detailed later in Table 3), resulting in £1,883,130 remaining in the Strategic CIL 

funding pot available for future bidding in 2022.  Table 1 summarises the total CIL money to 

date and for this year. 

 

 

5.9. Table 1: Summary of CIL money 

2016 – 2021 CIL Admin £245,941.38 

2016 – 2021 CIL Neighbourhood Portion £829,409.37 

2016 – 2021 Strategic CIL (as of 31st March) £3,843,478.25 

2016 – 2021 Total CIL £4,918,829 

 

2020 – 2021 CIL Admin £85,349.75 

2020 – 2021 CIL Neighbourhood Portion £119,960.37 

2020 – 2021 Strategic CIL (as of 31st March) £3,843,478.25 

2020 – 2021 Strategic CIL allocation (July 2021) £1,960,348 

2021 – 2022 Strategic CIL Funding Pot £1,883,130 

 

 

Monitoring (Neighbourhood Portion) 

5.10. Where all or part of a development is within the area of a parish or town council, the Council 

must pass a portion of the CIL payment from the development to the parish/town council. The 

portion (“The Neighbourhood Portion”) is either 15% or 25% depending on whether a 

Neighbourhood Plan is in place.   

 

5.11. In East Hampshire District, Alton, Medstead and Four Marks, Bentley, Ropley and Beech have 

‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans and receive the 25% proportion. All others receive 15%, which is 

capped at a maximum of £100 per existing council tax dwelling per year3. It should be noted 

that the Beech Neighbourhood Plan was ‘made’ in June 2021, outside of this monitoring 

period. 

 

5.12. The amount of money passed to the Parishes/Town Councils this year is £119,960.37. This is 

broken down by area in Table 2. Not all Parish/Town Councils in the district appear in this list – 

that means they did not receive any Neighbourhood Portion this year, as there was either not 

any chargeable development in their area during that time or the money was not requested 

and remains held by the Council4. They may have been passed a Neighbourhood portion in 

previous years – this is reported by the Parish/Town Council themselves.   

 

 

 

 

 
3 For example, if a parish has 300 existing dwellings, then they could not receive any greater than £30,000 from 
CIL Neighbourhood monies in a year. 
4 This option is sometimes preferred as it enables the pot to be built up, and extends the life span of the 
money (note further in the report re 5 year payback if not spent).   

Page 76



7 
 

5.13. Table 2 – Amount of money passed to Parish/Town Councils (“Neighbourhood Portion”) this 

year, and the amount retained in total 

 
Parish/Town Council 

Amount Total amount 
retained 

Monitoring report 
available (this yr)* 

Alton Town Council £10,505.70 £23,662.58 Y 

Bramshott & Liphook Parish 
Council 

£24,920.64 £47,359.58 Y 

Clanfield Parish Council £316.03 £22,426.92 Y 

Farrringdon Parish Council £13,474.08 £26,948.16 Y 

Grayshott Parish Council £17,126.17 £63,769.59 Y 

Headley Parish Council £4,038.14 £6,370.14 Y 

Horndean Parish Council £19,289.59 £32,972.89 Y 

Kingsley Parish Council £2,531.21 £4,071.51 Y 

Ropley Parish Council £14,911.33 £19,545.42 Y 

Selborne Parish Council £3,980.47 £3,980.47  

Whitehill Town Council £5,222.93 £9000.10 Y 

Wield Parish Council £3,643.78 £3,643.78 Y 

Total £119,960.37   

*See Appendix B for links to monitoring reports.  

 

5.14. Whilst the District Council must spend its CIL funds on the provision, improvement, 

replacement, operation, or maintenance of infrastructure needed to support the development 

of the area, there is more freedom regarding the use of the Neighbourhood Portion, which 

can also be applied to ‘anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that 

development places on an area’. 

 

5.15. However, if the money received (excludes the District Council as the Charging Authority) is not 

spent within 5 years of receipt or is not spent on initiatives that support the development of 

the area, the Council (as the Charging Authority) may lawfully require the money/some of the 

money to be repaid, back to the Council. 

 

5.16. For each year that a Parish/Town Council has received a Neighbourhood Portion payment, it 

must publish specific information5, which includes how much money it has received, spent 

and retained from the Neighbourhood Portion. This information should be published on their 

website. If no money has been received, as is the case for some Parish/Town Councils this 

year, they do not have to publish a report, but national planning guidance does advise in the 

interests of transparency publishing a report to that effect.  There is likely to be retained 

money by those Parish/Town Council’s not listed in Table 2, where they have received money 

in previous years and it is still retained, and available to spend.  

 

5.17. The Council will work with Parish/Town Councils to align priorities for the allocation of the 

Council’s Strategic CIL, and the neighbourhood portion.  

 

 

5 As set out in regulation 121B of The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/regulation/9/made  
 

Page 77

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1103/regulation/9/made


8 
 

6. Funding from Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 

6.1. The Planning Practice Guidance states that the IFS must include a report on the infrastructure 

projects or types of infrastructure that the authority intends to fund wholly or partly by the 

levy (excluding the Neighbourhood Portion). 

 

Strategic CIL Spending 

6.2. In accordance with the CIL Spending Protocol (adopted January 2021) part of the Strategic 

portion was allocated by the Council, in July 2021, to two projects for investment in 

infrastructure for the benefit of the district. 

 

6.3. The two Strategic infrastructure projects as set out in Table 3 below total £1,960,348. 

 

6.4. Table 3 – Strategic infrastructure projects agreed for funding at Council on 1st July 2021 

Strategic Infrastructure Project Amount Approved 

Four Marks Community Building and Recreational Hub £1,250,000 

Bohunt School full size floodlit 3G artificial grass pitch £710,348 

Total £1,960,348 

 

6.5. All chargeable development will still need to pay CIL regardless of any potential projects listed 

in this document or forthcoming IFSs.  Where infrastructure is needed to make a development 

acceptable in planning terms, it will continue to be secured by S1066.  

 

7. Section 106 (S106) Monitoring  
 

7.1. Between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, 10 S106 Agreements were signed and 8 Deeds of 

Variations (outside of the South Downs National Park).  

 

7.2. In this year, the total amount of money received from planning obligations was £5,166,524.42.   

 

7.3. During this year, 44 affordable housing units were secured under S106 agreements.  

 

7.4. At this time, we are unable to detail the amount of S106 monies spent this year. Future 

Infrastructure Funding Statements will include this information.  

 

 

 

 
6 Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), commonly 
known as S106 agreements, are a mechanism which make a development proposal acceptable in planning 
terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site specific mitigation of the impact of 
development. 

Page 78

https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/pas-topics/infrastructure/www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/section/106


9 
 

8. Infrastructure to be secured via S106 Agreements   
 

8.1. As detailed in Section 3, the Council will continue to secure certain types of infrastructure 

using S106 Agreements. This Section provides further guidance on these obligations and the 

circumstances under which they would be secured/payable. 

 

Affordable Housing on Residential Development Sites 

Satisfying the policy requirements 

8.2. On site affordable housing provision will be secured by S106 unless the developer can 

demonstrate that the development would be made unviable as a result of the policy 

requirements, or the developer is unable to secure a registered provider willing to procure the 

affordable dwellings. Further guidance is provided below on the evidence that would be 

required to support a departure from JCS Policy CP13 under either of these scenarios. 

 

8.3. In addition, in instances where the affordable housing requirement would result in a 

requirement that isn’t a round number (e.g. 2.8 dwellings), the Council will expect two units to 

be provided on site and the remaining 0.8 of a unit to be secured through a commuted sum.   

 

Viability 

8.4. The Council recognises that there will on occasion be developments where abnormal site 

costs, and other factors may mean that the affordable housing requirements cannot be met 

on a particular site. Where developers advise that their scheme is unviable with provision of 

the required proportion of affordable housing, an open book approach to development 

appraisal of scheme viability will be considered. This development appraisal would need to 

include all other CIL and planning obligation requirements and identify what level of 

affordable housing could be supported by the development. It is important to note that in 

addition to the submission of a viability assessment, the Council will require the developer to 

pay the Council’s costs so that the submitted viability assessment can be independently 

assessed by a development viability consultant.    

 

8.5. A lower level of provision may be acceptable if, following the independent review of the 

viability assessment by an appropriately qualified expert; the Council accepts that meeting the 

full affordable housing requirement makes the scheme unviable. 

 

8.6. Whilst the Council does not have a preferred approach for undertaking viability appraisals, 

developers may wish to use the Homes and Communities Agency Toolkit. 

 

Difficulty procuring a Registered Provider 

8.7. The Council recognise that for some developments, particularly on smaller sites, a situation 

may arise where the developer is unable to fulfil the affordable housing obligations as, despite 

all reasonable efforts, no Registered Provider (RP) is willing to procure the affordable 

dwellings.  This may be due to a number of factors, such as; the site location falls outside of 

Page 79



10 
 

the RP’s core investment area; the tenure proposed does not fit the RP’s business model or 

the financial offer submitted by the RP may not cover the developer’s reasonable build costs.  

Other reasons are also likely to arise which may be specific to that individual site. 

 

8.8. In these circumstances and where provision has been made within the S106 Agreement the 

developer may apply to the Council to commute the onsite provision of affordable housing to 

a financial sum.  The Council will need to be satisfied that the developer has made all 

reasonable efforts to dispose of the affordable housing to an RP and they will be expected to 

evidence details of any offers received from RP’s or correspondence with RP’s.  This may also 

include financial information on the sum the developer is seeking for the affordable dwellings 

to ensure that cost is not the overriding factor that the affordable housing obligations cannot 

be satisfied. 

 

8.9. If the Council agrees that the affordable housing obligations may be commuted to a financial 

payment, then this sum will be calculated in accordance with the tariff detailed in Table 4 

below.  

 

8.10. The affordable housing commuted sum rates detailed in Table 4 only apply where there is a 

net gain in residential dwellings as a result of the development scheme. Therefore, proposals 

for a replacement dwelling are exempt from providing commuted sums as no net additional 

dwellings will be provided.  

 

8.11. It is important to note that the Council’s priority remains the provision of affordable housing 

on the application site and so this cascade to a financial sum is the last resort.  Before 

considering requests under this provision the Council will first explore with the developer 

whether an amended affordable housing scheme, including changes to the number, type, 

tenure and location within the site, will make onsite provision possible.  

Page 80



11 
 

 

8.12. Table 4: Affordable Housing Commuted Sums 

 Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4 

Parish Whitehill and 
Bordon 

Clanfield Alton Beech 

 Headley Bramshott and 

Liphook 

Bentley 

 Horndean East Tisted Bentworth 

 Rowlands Castle  Four Marks Binstead 

  Froyle Chawton 

  Grayshott Farringdon 

  Lasham Kingsley 

  Medstead Selborne 

  Ropley Wield 

  Shalden  Worldham  

Commuted sum (£) 
per square metre 
(GIA) 

£160 £270 £355 £450 

Note: The commuted sum rates will increase with market inflation over time. They are linked to the All-in Tender 

Price Index published by the Building Cost Information Service of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  

8.13. In circumstances where a developer is providing commuted sums to fund off site affordable 

housing provision, the following method should be followed for calculating the commuted 

sum payable.  

 

 
 

8.14. If a developer considers that the commuted sum required to support off site affordable 

housing provision would make the development unviable, the process set out in the viability 

section above (paragraphs 8.4 to 8.6) would need to be followed to determine a commuted 

sum that would make the development viable.  

 

Education 

8.15. Where a proposed development generates the need for a new school to be provided on site, 

the land and provision of a school will be secured through a S106 Agreement.  

 

1
•Calculate the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) in square meters that will be 
delivered by the new residential development.

2
•Multiply the cumulative gross internal area (GIA) by the commuted sum rate 
detailed in Table 4 that relates to the Parish where the development is located.  

Page 81



12 
 

8.16. The timing for the provision of land or school building(s) will be considered on a case-by-case 

basis, with the specific requirements being set out within any S106 Agreement. It is likely to be 

linked to phases of a development, with facilities being required either upon a certain level of 

units being completed, or when a certain threshold of occupation at a development is 

reached. 

 

8.17. The County Council has published a guidance document on ‘Developer Contributions towards 

Children’s Services Facilities’7 (September 2019) which highlights that the Council is expected 

to consult Hampshire Children’s Services Department on any planning proposals relating to a 

development of 10 or more dwellings. 

 

8.18. The Guidance, which is subject to review in the context of changes to local and national 

priorities and priorities provides guidance on the minimum usable areas required for new 

primary school sites which are summarised below: 

• 1 Form entry primary (210 places): 1.2 hectares 

• 2 Form entry primary (420 places): 2.0 hectares 

• 3 Form entry primary (630 places): 2.8 hectares 

 

8.19. We suggest you visit the County Council’s Children’s services webpages or contact the County 

Council by email developer.contributions@hants.gov.uk to confirm the latest position in terms 

of on-site infrastructure requirements.    

 

Health 

8.20. Where a proposed development generates the need for a new healthcare facility, such as a 

new GP surgery, to be provided on site, the land and provision of a healthcare facility will be 

secured through a S106 Agreement.  

 

8.21. The timing for the provision of such healthcare facilities will be considered on a case-by-case 

basis, with the specific requirements being set out within any S106 Agreement. It is likely to be 

linked to phases of a development, with facilities being required either upon a certain level of 

units being completed, or when a certain threshold of occupation at a development is 

reached. 

 

Green Infrastructure  

8.22. The standards for the provision of public open space and built recreation facilities on new 

residential development sites are set out in Joint Core Strategy Policy CP18. 

 

8.23. Green infrastructure can take many forms including:  

• multifunctional green space (i.e. parks, amenity space, accessible natural green space) 

• equipped play areas 

• allotments 

• habitats infrastructure to support biodiversity. 

 
7 https://documents.hants.gov.uk/education/DeveloperContributionGuidanceDocument.docx 

Page 82

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/education/DeveloperContributionGuidanceDocument.docx
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/education/DeveloperContributionGuidanceDocument.docx
mailto:developer.contributions@hants.gov.uk


13 
 

8.24. The Council will continue to use S106 or conditions to secure the provision of local multi-

functional green space, locally equipped play areas and allotments that directly serve a 

proposed development site, where the site is suitable.   

 

8.25. The Council’s adopted green space standards require new residential developments to 

provide, as a minimum, 3.24ha of public open space per 1,000 population8 to serve the needs 

generated by the new development. This requirement is broken down to set out what a 

development must provide in respect of multi-functional green space, provision for children or 

young people and allotments, as set out in Table 5 below. 

 

 

8.26. Table 5: Green Space Standards 

Open Space Type 
Requirement per 1,000 

population (ha) 

Parks and gardens 1.03 

Natural and semi-natural green space 1.8 

Green corridor N/A 

Amenity green space 0.31 

Allotments 0.1 

Churchyard or cemetery N/A 

Provision for children or young people 0.52 sites per 1,000 
population 

 

8.27. There are no standards for habitat creation as each site is assessed on a case-by-case basis. It 

is recognised however, that the provision of other forms of green infrastructure can 

contribute towards conserving and enhancing biodiversity. 

 

8.28. Where a proposal requires off-site planting, a S106 Agreement must be entered in to. This 

should cover the cost of any site purchase required for the new planting, the cost of the 

plants, any associated management and maintenance where the Council will not be adopting 

the land and sufficient funding for replacements for a period of five years. It is imperative that 

any proposal for off-site planting has the prior written approval of the landowner.  The costs 

will be calculated on a site-by-site basis and be based on current prices at the time of the 

application. 

 

Social Infrastructure 

8.29. The provision of new and improvement of existing social infrastructure will be funded through 

CIL. However, in some instances developers may be required to provide land or buildings to 

enable the delivery of additional social infrastructure to serve the site. In such instances the 

provision of land or buildings will be secured through S106. 

 

 

 

 
8 Open Space, Sports and Recreation Needs and Opportunities Assessment 2018 to 2028 (December 2019) 

Page 83



14 
 

Internationally Designated Sites 

Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area 

8.30. Residential development in parts of the District has the potential to impact upon 

internationally designated sites both within and located outside of the District.  

 

8.31. Policy CP22 sets out the requirements for development impacting the Wealden Heaths Phase 

II Special Protection Area (SPA).   

 

8.32. In addition, if housing proposals are capable of affecting the SPA no matter how distant from 

the site, they will be considered on a case-by-case basis as to whether a project-specific 

Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) is required (this should be assessed at the HRA 

Screening Assessment stage). The requirement is likely to vary depending on the size of the 

site, the ‘in combination’ effects and its distance from the SPA. Advice on this should be 

sought from Natural England at the earliest opportunity.  If mitigation is required, then this 

could involve a financial tariff towards the Strategic Access Management and Monitoring 

(SAMM) on the SPAs and a contribution towards a Suitable Accessible Natural Greenspace 

(SANG).   

 

Solent National Sites Network  

8.33. The Solent coastline provides feeding grounds for internationally protected populations of 

overwintering waders and wildfowl and is also extensively used for recreation. In response to 

concerns over the impact of recreational pressure on birds within protected areas in the 

Solent, the Solent Forum initiated the Solent Disturbance and Mitigation Project (SDMP) to 

determine visitor access patterns around the coast and how their activities may influence the 

birds. 

 

8.34. The project has been divided into four phases. Phase 1 collated and reviewed information on 

housing, human activities and birds around the Solent, and reviewed the potential impact of 

disturbance on birds. Phase 2 involved a programme of major new data collection and Phase 3 

sets out an avoidance and mitigation Plan. For the final phase, the SDMP project group is 

working with Natural England towards implementation.  

 

8.35. Contributions will be sought from new development in order to implement the measures set 

out in the Solent Special Protection Area (SPA) Interim Planning Framework. Measures include 

the provision of dog wardens and rangers to educate the public about the impacts of 

recreational disturbance on protected species. The contribution is calculated on the number 

of bedrooms per individual dwelling.  The current rates for 2021/22 are set out on the 

Council’s website and are applicable to permissions granted on or after 1 April 2021. 

 

8.36. The contribution will affect all net new dwellings in the District located within 5.6km of the 

Solent National Sites Network and is payable in addition to any CIL liability and any other S106 

or S278 contributions. Appendix 1 contains maps showing the parts of the District that fall 

within the 5.6km buffer. 

 

 

Page 84

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/developers-get-environmental-advice-on-your-planning-proposals
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/unilateral-undertaking-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy


15 
 

Flood Protection and Water Management 

8.37. There may be circumstances when measures will be required in order to make a development 

safe. Measures will normally be identified by the Environment Agency and will usually be 

secured by planning conditions. However, where the measures involve off-site improvements, 

the need for a S106 Agreement, negotiated on a case-by-case basis, will be considered. 

 

8.38. Where on site measures are required, the type and location of the works should be justified 

and agreed with the Council and/or the Environment Agency prior to any works or funding 

being implemented. In some cases, it may be more appropriate to consider on-site mitigation 

measures such as the positioning of electrical sockets at a higher level or using more water 

resistant materials. The use of such measures will normally be secured through planning 

conditions rather than a legal agreement. 

 

8.39. It is expected that developers will enter into a S106 Agreement which agrees either a level of 

appropriate funding or the provision of appropriate flood defence works or mitigation 

measures. 

 

Transport  

8.40. Alterations to the local highway network which are necessary to promote a safe, efficient or 

sustainable relationship between development and the public highway may be secured by 

S106 and/or S278 Agreements. Improvements could include the provision, removal, or 

relocation of street furniture, dropped kerbs, crossovers, pedestrian crossings, bus stops and 

links to the cycle network. 

 

8.41. Where a development is required to make specific contributions towards improvements, 

amendments, or additions to public transport services (projects which are not identified in this 

IFS to be funded by CIL) contributions may be secured through S106.  

 

Travel Plans 

8.42. Contributions towards revenue items are still permitted under S106 and are not restricted by 

the CIL regulations.  Where development exceeds the threshold for a Travel Plan, a Travel Plan 

will be secured through a S106 Agreement. This will have the objective of reducing adverse 

transport impacts. A fee is charged for approval of a travel plan and for ongoing monitoring. 

 

8.43. Travel Plans will set out, as far as possible, how development proposes to mitigate its adverse 

transport impacts and promote sustainable travel and may include measures relating to 

encouraging sustainable transport behaviour and infrastructure provision. Travel Plans will 

include provision for financial penalties to fund the promotion or provision of sustainable 

transport until travel plan objectives are met. 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



16 
 

Other  

8.44. Other types of infrastructure may be required to make a development acceptable in planning 

terms. The following list provides information on additional S106 Agreements not detailed in 

this chapter that could be required to make a development acceptable:  

• Works or funding for the management and conservation archaeological interests 

where a development has an adverse impact. 

• Works or funding for the restoration, conservation / enhancement of listed buildings, 

buildings of local importance and monuments at the development site. 

• Works or funding for the diversion and or enhancement of Public Rights of Way 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



17 
 

Appendix A: Potential Liability  

 

Existing Use Proposed Use Potential Liability 

Development 

site 

Dwelling (self 

build) 

CIL is not charged on self build 

development 

Not liable 

Development 

site 

Dwelling CIL charged on all new floorspace 

Charge is based on total new floorspace 

(no minimum) 

CIL liable  

Development 

site 

Affordable 

housing 

CIL is not charged on dwellings that are 

categorised as affordable housing 

Not liable 

Development 

site 

Offices Office development is not CIL liable  Not liable 

Office in use Change of use to 

dwelling 

CIL liable and chargeable for any 

additional floorspace (no minimum) 

For example, if existing office is 100sqm 

and in use, then only additional 

floorspace above 100sqm is chargeable 

Liable and 

potentially 

chargeable 

Office Affordable 

housing 

CIL is not charged on dwellings that are 

categorised as affordable housing 

Not liable 

Office Office extension Office development is not CIL liable or 

chargeable 

This is irrespective of size 

Not liable 

Demolished 

dwelling 

Replacement 

new dwelling 

 

A credit is given for the demolished 
floorspace so CIL is only payable on the 
net additional floorspace 

CIL liable 

Dwelling Extension less 

than 100 sqm  

CIL is only chargeable for extensions over 
100sqm (not counting the original 
dwelling)  
 
Therefore, any extension of less than 
100sqm is not chargeable 
 

Not liable 

Page 87



18 
 

Dwelling Extension more 

than 100sqm  

CIL is charged for the entire new 
floorspace where an extension is greater 
than 100sqm (not counting the original 
dwelling)  
 
Chargeable as extension is greater than 
100sqm  
 

Liable and 

chargeable 

Dwelling 

 

Sub division into 

two dwellings 

The sub-division of a dwelling is not CIL 
liable  
 
If proposals also involve extension(s), CIL 
is only chargeable for extensions over 
100sqm, calculated prior to deducting 
existing ‘in use’ floorspace  
 
If any existing buildings/ floorspace is 
currently in use and to be 
demolished/converted it can be 
deducted from the chargeable 
floorspace of the new building (not 
counting the original dwelling)  

Not liable 

 

 

 
 
 

  

Page 88



19 
 

Appendix B - Links to published monitoring data of Neighbourhood Portions for this year 

(2019/2020) 

Alton Town Council 

http://www.alton.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/2021%20Monitoring%20Form.pdf 

Bramshott & Liphook Parish Council 

https://bramshottandliphook-pc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/CIL-Annual-Statement.pdf 

Clanfield Parish Council 

https://www.clanfieldpc.org.uk/uploads/assets/Files/Miscellaneous/CIL%20Annual%20Report%202

020-2021%20%28re-stated%20070921%29.pdf?u=1XHTxD 

Farringdon Parish Council 

https://farringdonpc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Neighbourhood-Portion-Funding-report-

2020-2021.pdf 

Grayshott Parish Council 

https://www.grayshott-pc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/2020-21-CIL-Funding-report.pdf 

Headley Parish Council 

https://headleyparish.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/CIL-2020-21.pdf 

Horndean Parish Council 

http://www.horndeanpc-hants.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/CIL%20Report%2020-21.pdf 

Kingsley Parish Council 

https://kingsleyparishcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/simple-file-list/Accounts/Accounts-2020-
2021/CIL-annual-report-2020-2021-redacted.pdf 

Ropley Parish Council 

http://www.myropley.org.uk/parish-council-annual-accounts-year-ending-march-2020-for-public-
perusal/ 

Whitehill Town Council 

http://www.whitehilltowncouncil.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/Finance/CIL%20-
%20Current%20Situation%20Qtr1%202022.pdf 

Wield Parish Council 

https://wieldpc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/9/2021/11/CIL-report-form-2020-2021.pdf 

 

Page 89

http://www.alton.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/2021%20Monitoring%20Form.pdf
https://bramshottandliphook-pc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/CIL-Annual-Statement.pdf
https://www.clanfieldpc.org.uk/uploads/assets/Files/Miscellaneous/CIL%20Annual%20Report%202020-2021%20%28re-stated%20070921%29.pdf?u=1XHTxD
https://www.clanfieldpc.org.uk/uploads/assets/Files/Miscellaneous/CIL%20Annual%20Report%202020-2021%20%28re-stated%20070921%29.pdf?u=1XHTxD
https://farringdonpc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Neighbourhood-Portion-Funding-report-2020-2021.pdf
https://farringdonpc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Neighbourhood-Portion-Funding-report-2020-2021.pdf
https://www.grayshott-pc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/2020-21-CIL-Funding-report.pdf
https://headleyparish.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/CIL-2020-21.pdf
http://www.horndeanpc-hants.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/CIL%20Report%2020-21.pdf
https://kingsleyparishcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/simple-file-list/Accounts/Accounts-2020-2021/CIL-annual-report-2020-2021-redacted.pdf
https://kingsleyparishcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/simple-file-list/Accounts/Accounts-2020-2021/CIL-annual-report-2020-2021-redacted.pdf
http://www.myropley.org.uk/parish-council-annual-accounts-year-ending-march-2020-for-public-perusal/
http://www.myropley.org.uk/parish-council-annual-accounts-year-ending-march-2020-for-public-perusal/
http://www.whitehilltowncouncil.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/Finance/CIL%20-%20Current%20Situation%20Qtr1%202022.pdf
http://www.whitehilltowncouncil.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/Finance/CIL%20-%20Current%20Situation%20Qtr1%202022.pdf
https://wieldpc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/9/2021/11/CIL-report-form-2020-2021.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



  

NON-EXEMPT 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE      7 December 2021  

       

GOVERNANCE IMPROVEMENT ACTION PLAN  

 

FOR NOTING 

 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Richard Millard, Leader 

Key Decision: No 

Report Number: EHDC/022/2021 

1. Purpose 

1.1. This paper is submitted to Standards Committee for information, to provide a final 

update on the Governance Improvement Action Plan (GIAP), which was first 

reviewed by the committee on 2nd March 2021, and regularly through 2021.  

2. Recommendation 

2.1 Members are requested to note the final updates detailed in the Governance 

Improvement Action Plan at Appendix A, which set out actions now completed in 

order to implement the Governance Review recommendations. 

2.2 the Committee recommend that the GIAP and its final updates now be reported to 

full Council for noting  

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. The findings of the independent governance review (Governance Review) were 

published in December 2020 and were reviewed at the 8 December 2020 meeting 

of Standards Committee. At this meeting the Committee invited the Chief Executive 

to prepare a detailed action plan to address the recommendations of the review.  

3.2. As a result, the attached Governance Improvement Action Plan (GIAP) was 

prepared by officers and first reviewed at Standards Committee on the 2nd March 

2021, then regularly throughout the year.  The completion of the GIAP is being 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



  

monitored and overseen by the Corporate Governance Board, chaired by the 

Monitoring Officer.  

3.3. This report is brought to Standards Committee so that a final update on the progress 

made so far against the action plan can be provided.  

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

4.1. None. 

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

5.1. Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

6. Options considered 

6.1. Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications 

There are no material financial implications regarding this matter. 

   

7.2. Human Resources Implications 

Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

7.3. Information Governance Implications 

Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

7.4. Other resource implications 

Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

 

S151 Officer comments 

Date: 29 November 2021 

There are no material financial implications regarding this matter. 

Lydia Morrison, s151 Officer – 29th November 2021 

Page 92



  

7.5 Legal Implications 

Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

8. Risks 

8.1. Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

9. Consultation  

9.1. Not applicable. The process on consulting on the contents and progress of the 

GIAP are set out in detail above. This is a progress update only  

10. Communication 

10.1. Not applicable. This is a progress update only  

11. Appendices 

11.1. Appendix A: GIAP  

Agreed and signed off by: 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey (signed: 27th November 2021) 

  

Contact Officer  

Name: Daniel Toohey 

Job Title: Head of Legal and Democratic Services, and Monitoring Officer 

Telephone: 02392 446 228 

E-mail: daniel.toohey@havant.gov.uk 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 27 November 2021 

Regular reporting on the progress of the Governance Improvement Action Plan is an 

important process committed to in January 2021. This represents an ongoing commitment 

by the council to best practice in good governance. 

Daniel Toohey, Monitoring Officer – 27th November 2021 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Governance improvement action plan 

Following the governance review carried out by David Bowles during 2020, the Council has prepared a 

governance improvement action plan to address his recommendations. This was reviewed by Standards 

Committee in March 2021 (papers can be found at 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=2663). 

The following table sets out the 17 recommendations from David Bowles’ review, along with the actions the 

Council has committed to taking to fulfil these recommendations, and an update on the progress made since the 

review was finalised in December 2020.  

Corporate Governance Board has met regularly this year and, most recently, on 27 October 2021, in order to 

review final actions in relation to the recommendations of the David Bowles report. 

The Corporate Governance Board now considers that all planned actions have been completed and that the 

recommendations are now implemented. It accordingly now refers the consideration of this action plan to the 

Council’s Standards Committee for its consideration. 

The Corporate Governance Board will continue to monitor on an ongoing basis, that ongoing actions (eg., via the 

Shaping our future programme) are delivered and will report back to the Council or its committees on an annual 

basis as part of the Annual Governance Statement. 

Recommendation 

from David 

Bowles’ report 

Response / actions to be 

taken 

Responsible 

person 

Original 

target date 

for 

completion 

Update on progress  

Recommendation 

1: Values 

statement  

The Leader and 

Chief Executive 

should consult upon 

and publish a brief 

statement of the 

values of the 

organisation 

perhaps focusing on 

behaviours and 

transparency and 

measure their 

actions and those of 

others against those 

values. Those 

values should 

promote individual 

personal 

responsibility for 

challenging 

improper and 

unacceptable 

behaviours. 

The current Corporate Strategy 

(approved by full Council in 

September 2020 to cover the 

period up until 2024) includes 

the following values: 

 Responsibility for our 
actions  

 Fairness and integrity in all 
we do  

 Responding to the needs 
of our community based 
on evidence  

 Respect and support for 
each other and our 
residents  

 Considering the future 
wellbeing of our area over 
short term expediency 

 
A staff working group has been 
set up in December 2020 to 
review these values and 
consider how values can be 
embedded into the 
organisational culture, including 
through performance 
management and the work of 
the Culture Change 
Champions.  

Chief 

Executive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2021 The Leaders have now 

agreed the values and 

work is underway to 

create an animation to 

launch the values to 

staff. A behavioural 

framework has been 

drafted to help 

incorporate values 

throughout the 

employee lifecycle (see 

action below). This will 

be launched in Q4 

21/22 and will 

incorporate the roll out 

of behaviours which 

reinforce the 

demonstration of values 

to the staff group. 

The Organisational 
Development team is also 
taking the opportunity to review 
the staff competency 
framework and ensure that it 
aligns with the values above 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

March 2021 Now that the values 

have been agreed (see 

action above), a 

behavioural framework 

has been drafted to 

help incorporate values 

Page 95

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=390&MId=2663


 

2 
 

and drives the right behaviours 
for the future. 

through the employee 

lifecycle. This is due to 

be reviewed and 

approved at Shaping 

our Future (SoF) Board 

shortly. 

Further Update (Nov 

21): 

Staff behavioural 

framework has been 

considered at SoF 

Board. Feedback on the 

behavioural framework 

is being incorporated. 

Leadership behavioural 

framework has also 

been developed. Both 

are due at SoF Board 

for sign off on 8th 

December 2021. A 

project team to 

integrate the values and 

behaviours into the 

council has been set up 

and is led by the Head 

of OD. This will ensure 

that the values and 

behaviours are 

embedded in all 

relevant processes 

across the organisation, 

Recommendation 

2: Political 

conventions 

To underpin an 

ethical culture the 

Council should 

consider whether to 

review and then 

formalise these 

types of 

arrangements and 

document them as 

‘political 

conventions’ and 

enshrine them in 

the Constitution. 

Group Leaders 

need to work 

together to consider 

how their actions 

can help promote or 

hinder an ethical 

David Bowles notes in his 

report that ‘the value of 

effective Group Leaders’ 

meetings in particular should 

not be underestimated. They 

can help reduce tension and 

can be a way of briefing and 

obtaining wider input from 

members on confidential or 

sensitive matters.’  

With this in mind, the Group 

Leaders will be encouraged to 

meet regularly, and will be 

supported by Democratic 

Services and the Monitoring 

Officer if they wish to enshrine 

political conventions within the 

Constitution. 

Group 

Leaders 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 

2021 

Regular Group Leader 

meetings have been 

held, generally 

coinciding prior to full 

Council meetings.  

Standards Committee is 

updated on progress. 

The joint working 

protocol (see item 

below) has been 

agreed between group 

leaders that will 

enhance engagement 

at these meetings. 

Page 96



 

3 
 

culture and should 

consider external 

support to help 

embed a healthy 

political culture. 

A joint working protocol will be 

prepared that will define regular 

informal Group Leader 

meetings, in order to enhance 

cross-party working and 

encourage communication on 

matters such as Council 

meetings and governance 

issues. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

December 

2021 

The joint working 

protocol has been 

agreed between Group 

Leaders. It is an 

informal arrangement 

for Group Leaders to 

utilise at their informal 

discussion meetings, 

with the aim to enhance 

positive outcomes for 

residents, and cross-

party engagement.   

 

Recommendation 

3: Strengthening 

the officer culture 

While recognising 

the democratic 

legitimacy of 

elected members 

the Chief Executive 

needs to work with 

staff and members 

to re-establish 

appropriate roles 

and change an 

officer culture which 

had become overly 

compliant, to one 

which supports an 

ethical culture and 

where officers and 

members can talk 

frankly to each 

other. 

In addition to the actions specified for Recommendation 1 

which will also address this Recommendation, the following 

actions will be taken: 

 

The adoption of a new 

Constitution, which takes effect 

on 4th January 2021, will be 

accompanied by workshops 

and training sessions for 

officers to help embed the 

Member/Officer Relations 

Protocol. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

March 2021 Training for officers on 

the new constitution, 

including decision 

making and the 

Scheme of Delegations 

has been carried out. 

The Corporate 

Management Team 

(CMT), as well as the 

Legal and Democratic 

Services Teams have 

received training. CMT 

officers have cascaded 

the training to their 

staff.  

In order to reinforce the 

different roles of officers and 

councillors, a new process has 

been put in place to ensure 

Executive Board have 

oversight of the reports being 

written and (when the report 

has been requested by a 

member of Cabinet) approve 

the spending of officer time on 

writing that report. This is 

becoming embedded via 

targeted training sessions for 

officers and by increased 

visibility of the Forward Plan. 

This process will be reviewed 

on an ongoing basis to ensure 

that it is fulfilling its purpose. 

Section 151 

Officer / 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Ongoing The new process has 

been reviewed and 

reported back to 

Executive Board, who 

now have improved 

oversight of incoming 

report matters. An 

understanding of the 

new process has been 

rolled out via CMT 

learning discussions 

and CMT officers have 

cascaded to their 

relevant staff. 

Page 97



 

4 
 

A full training programme will 

be developed for both 

Members and officers, 

consisting of a series of 

modules that require 

completion. This will be a 

continual rolling programme of 

development with mandatory 

elements which need to be 

completed and evidenced 

through learning logs (officers) 

and Democratic Services 

monitoring (Members). 

The Member development 

programme will include 

mandatory, recommended and 

optional elements to ensure 

that all Members have an 

awareness and understanding 

of Council functions and 

associated governance. 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

March 2021 The new Councillor 

Development 

Programme has been 

developed and features 

a series of mandatory 

and optional modules 

designed to ensure that 

councillors have the 

skills and knowledge to 

be able to fulfil their 

roles effectively. The 

training programme has 

been approved by the 

Councillor Development 

Panel and has been 

implemented. The 

programme was 

reviewed as part of the 

external SEE 

organisation and 

received recognition 

under their 

accreditation 

programme. 

The ‘Be The Best You 

Can Be’ training and 

development 

programme for officers 

has now been launched 

and new resources are 

being added as they 

are identified. The 

‘learning log’ approach 

allows officers to 

complete the activities 

that are relevant and 

appropriate for their 

role. 

In addition, the 

development and 

launch of a new staff 

intranet in spring 2021 

has provided an 

opportunity to 

completely review and 

refresh the guidance 

and resources available 

for officers on corporate 

governance matters 

such as internal audit, 

report writing and risk 

management. 

The performance 

management process 

has been reviewed by 

the HR team to ensure 

Page 98



 

5 
 

that learning and 

development of officers 

continues to be 

prioritised. 

November 2021 

Update, re commitment 

to ongoing 

improvement: 

A new project has 

commenced which is 

being led by the Head 

of OD. This is to 

develop an intranet site 

for Councillors in a 

similar way to staff 

intranets. This means 

that staff will then have 

access to all key 

information in one 

place. This includes 

councillor development 

which should enable 

councillors to access 

the e-learning system in 

a simple way and 

complete the courses 

that they are required to 

do. Launch of the new 

intranet site for 

councillors is scheduled 

for April 2022. 

A programme of CEO-led 

Council-wide events will be 

agreed to focus on leadership 

and culture within the 

organisation. The rolling 

programme of leadership 

events will commence from Q1 

2021-22. 

Chief 

Executive / 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

December 

2021 

The values have now 

been agreed which 

means that work has 

progressed on various 

aspects of 

organisational 

development which 

influence culture. This 

is taken forward under 

the Shaping our Future 

programme. 

November 2021 

update: 

Leadership events have 

been held on a monthly 

basis with tier 3 and tier 

4 managers since July 

2021. Leadership 

newsletters have been 

provided following the 

conference which 

enable leadership to 

Page 99



 

6 
 

convey key messages 

to their staff. 

Recommendation 

4: Re-establish 

proper decision 

taking 

The review of the 

Constitution will 

provide an 

opportunity to 

formally document 

proper decision 

taking whether that 

be by officers, 

Portfolio Holders, 

Cabinet or the 

Council itself. That 

should be 

supported by 

intensive work not 

just with members 

but also with 

officers who may 

have lost sight of 

proper process. 

This should be 

externally 

facilitated. 

The updated Constitution, 

which was approved at full 

Council in November 2020, is a 

more modern, streamlined 

document that should be far 

easier to understand and put 

into practice. The revised 

Constitution is due to take 

effect from 4th January 2021 

and its introduction will be 

supported by workshops and 

training sessions, as we 

recognise this as an ideal 

opportunity to strengthen both 

officers’ and councillors’ 

understanding. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

March 2021 The new Councillor 

Development 

Programme features a 

series of mandatory 

and optional modules 

designed to ensure that 

councillors have the 

skills and knowledge to 

be able to fulfil their 

roles effectively. This 

includes guidance on 

transparency, access to 

information and 

delegated decision 

making as set out in the 

Constitution. The 

training programme has 

been approved by the 

Councillor Development 

Panel and has been 

implemented.  

The Development 

programme was 

externally reviewed via 

the SEE accreditation 

programme and 

received accreditation 

status. 

Training for officers on 

decision making and 

the Scheme of 

Delegations has been 

carried out. The 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT), as well as 

the Legal and 

Democratic Services 

Teams have received 

training, and CMT 

officers have cascaded 

the training to their 

staff. 

Page 100



 

7 
 

New resources have been 

designed and implemented 

during summer 2020 to 

improve officers’ understanding 

of the decision 

making process, including a 

flowchart, detailed procedure 

notes and refreshed report 

template – in particular, taking 

the opportunity to clarify and 

formalise aspects of the 

process to ensure that 

Executive Board 

have earlier oversight of the 

reports that are being 

written and decisions that are 

being 

recommended. All officers 

taking reports through the 

decision-making process must 

now also consult with the 

Finance and Legal teams prior 

to the final review by the 

Section 151 Officer and 

Monitoring Officer before the 

report proceeds to Cabinet or 

full Council. Targeted training 

sessions were held in 

November 2020 to develop 

officers’ understanding 

of report writing in the context 

of the clarified procedures. A 

survey circulated after the 

training sessions showed that, 

so far, 100% of respondents 

felt that their understanding of 

the decision making process 

had been improved by 

attending the session. This 

process and resources will be 

reviewed on an ongoing basis 

to ensure that they are fulfilling 

their purpose. Refresher 

training sessions on the 

process will be held in Q1 

2021-22 with consideration of 

additional ‘bitesize’ training to 

improve officer understanding. 

Section 151 

Officer / 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Dec 2021 The new process has 

been reviewed and 

reported back to 

Executive Board and 

implemented. The new 

process has been in 

place and officers are 

preparing and 

progressing reports in 

accordance with it. The 

process was reviewed 

with refresher sessions 

held via CMT meeting 

discussions and 

positive feedback 

received,. 

In addition, the 

development and 

launch of a new staff 

intranet in spring 2021 

has provided an 

opportunity to 

completely review and 

refresh the guidance 

and resources available 

for officers on corporate 

governance matters 

such as internal audit, 

report writing and risk 

management. This will 

be reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 

 

Training for Members will be 

developed to cover the roles 

and responsibilities of officers 

and councillors, the role of 

scrutiny and best practice for 

decision making. This will be 

mandatory for all councillors, 

both new and long-standing. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

August 

2021 

The new Councillor 

Development 

Programme features a 

series of mandatory 

and optional modules 

designed to ensure that 

councillors have the 

skills and knowledge to 

be able to fulfil their 

Page 101



 

8 
 

roles effectively. The 

training programme has 

been approved by the 

Councillor Development 

Panel and is now being 

implemented. 

Recommendation 

5: Transparency in 

decision taking 

a) Forward Plan 
The Council has a 

Forward Plan: the 

original statutory 

basis for the 

publication of a 

Forward Plan was 

transparency. 

Forward Plans may 

not be the most 

exciting of 

publications but in 

addition to 

enhancing 

transparency, used 

properly they can 

aid early discussion 

between members 

and officers of 

significant issues. 

Before an item gets 

onto the Forward 

Plan the proper 

processes for taking 

the decision should 

be agreed. A more 

robust Forward Plan 

will allow Scrutiny to 

better understand 

issues which will be 

coming forward, 

assist in prioritising 

work and smooth 

the political 

management of the 

Council. It should 

be updated 

regularly, preferably 

via discussion with 

Cabinet and 

published 

prominently on the 

Council’s website. It 

should be a living 

working document. 

The title of the 

During summer 2020 we have 

introduced a new internal 

Forward Plan to allow senior 

officers to track which reports 

have been commissioned and 

when they are scheduled to go 

to EB, Cabinet Briefing, 

Cabinet, and full Council. This 

has been shared with Heads of 

Service to encourage 

transparency and enable more 

efficient planning of 

decision making, and is 

discussed at Executive Board 

meetings every week to ensure 

they have oversight of the 

decisions that are making their 

way through the process. The 

new procedure for taking a 

report through the decision-

making process specifies that 

information such as who the 

decision maker is, whether the 

item is a Key Decision and who 

the Portfolio Holder is must 

now be agreed at the time that 

an item is added to the 

Forward Plan, as well as the 

importance of a clear and 

comprehensive title. This has 

been emphasised in targeted 

training for officers. Democratic 

Services are currently 

undergoing a service review to 

ensure that they are a multi-

skilled team able to support the 

democratic process, and 

similar improvements to the 

external published Forward 

Plan are to follow when the 

new team structure is in place 

and fully recruited to. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clearer titles are now 

being used for reports 

when they are added to 

the Forward Plan. 

The Democratic 

Services team service 

review is now complete 

and fully recruited to.  

 

The Forward Plan will be 

reviewed at each Cabinet 

briefing meeting to ensure it 

captures all upcoming items 

and that Cabinet are fully 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Ongoing This is now taking 

place. 

Page 102



 

9 
 

agenda items and 

other information 

provided in the Plan 

should be sufficient 

to enable members 

and the public to 

understand the 

issues coming 

forward. 

aware of the programme of 

work coming forward.  

The Communications team will 

consider how best to promote 

the Forward Plan on the 

website (currently found within 

the Democratic section) to 

make it more visible. 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

March 2021 The Communications 

team have considered 

several different options 

for raising the profile of 

the Forward Plan, 

including promoting it 

on the website 

homepage, issuing 

periodic messaging on 

social media about 

what the Forward Plan 

is and where to find it, 

and including links in 

email newsletters that 

are sent to residents. 

During the Covid-19 

pandemic, links to 

watch the digital 

Cabinet, full Council 

and committee 

meetings have been 

promoted in a banner 

across the top of the 

homepage and on 

social media, which has 

resulted in significantly 

larger public 

engagement with these 

meetings. 

Recommendation 

5: Transparency in 

decision taking 

b) Planning 
Post Covid, the 

Council should, as a 

minimum, record 

meetings of its 

Planning Committee 

and make those 

readily available to 

the public. 

 

 

As a result of the Council’s shift 

to digital committee meetings 

during the Covid-19 pandemic, 

all committee meetings (with 

the exception of exempt 

sessions) are currently being 

recorded and archived on the 

Council’s website. It is yet to be 

decided by central government 

whether the legislation 

introduced to allow virtual 

Council meetings will be 

extended beyond the Covid-19 

emergency period, but having 

seen the increased 

engagement with residents as 

a result, the Council is 

committed to maintaining the 

recording of committee 

meetings even if these are no 

longer streamed live. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Ongoing Following the 

confirmation that the 

legislation allowing for 

remote meetings would 

not be extended 

beyond May 2021, the 

Council continues to 

record and livestream 

Cabinet and committee 

meetings even though 

they are no longer 

being held remotely.  

Page 103



 

10 
 

Recommendation 

5: Transparency in 

decision taking 

c) Wider member 
briefings 

The Council should 

review how 

confidential 

information on key 

developments or 

from external 

bodies, such as 

those dealing with 

Whitehill and 

Bordon, is shared 

within the Council 

(perhaps via Group 

Leaders meetings) 

and how items 

which are not 

confidential can be 

made more widely 

available. 

Future Member Briefings will 

be timetabled for six months in 

advance and publicised to 

Members.  

 

Monitoring 

Officer 

 

Ongoing Two regular Member 

Briefings a year have 

now been added to the 

programme as agreed 

by Executive Board. 

The new governance 

arrangements for Whitehill & 

Bordon will be shared with 

Members through a Member 

Briefing early in 2021. 

Head of 

Regeneration 

March 2021 The governance 

arrangements for 

Whitehill and Bordon 

have been reviewed 

and publicised and the 

team have briefed the 

Leader and Portfolio 

Holder on these. Ward 

councillors have also 

received a briefing. 

Recommendation 

6: Compromise 

agreements 

The Council should 

review the wording 

used in any 

compromise 

agreements to 

ensure that they 

positively state that 

any confidentiality 

clauses do not ‘gag’ 

employees from 

raising legitimate 

concerns about 

governance within 

the Council, 

whether covered by 

‘public interest’ or 

not. 

The Organisational 

Development team are 

currently reviewing the exit 

process and will incorporate 

guidance to this effect in their 

written policies and 

procedures. The advice of the 

Monitoring Officer will be 

sought in the case of any future 

compromise agreement.  

Compromise/settlement 

agreements will only be used in 

accordance with HR policies 

and to follow sector best 

practice guidelines. 

Monitoring 

Officer / Head 

of 

Organisational 

Development 

March 2021 The exit procedure has 

been reviewed and 

updated by the HR 

team. An exit 

questionnaire is now 

available digitally for 

staff to complete. 

November 2021 

Statistics on exit 

interviews and key 

reasons for leaving are 

provided to Executive 

Board on a quarterly 

basis. Exit interviews 

which raise concerns 

are followed up by the 

HR team. 

 

Recommendation 

7: Scrutiny 

The Council should 

consider how it can 

further develop and 

strengthen Scrutiny 

to ensure it is 

relevant and 

focused, including 

through reviewing 

whether there can 

Democratic Services are 

currently undergoing a service 

review to form a shared, multi-

skilled team that is able to 

support the democratic process 

both at East Hants and Havant. 

A shared team with aligned 

processes will result in 

improved efficiency and 

improved resilience and this 

should enable the development 

of the scrutiny function at both 

Monitoring 

Officer 

August 

2021 

Completed. The service 

review of Democratic 

Services is now 

complete. A new Senior 

Democratic Services 

Officer post will be the 

lead Democratic 

Services officer for 

scrutiny and this post 

has now been recruited 

to and filled. The 

Democratic Services 

Page 104



 

11 
 

be some dedicated 

officer resources 

devoted to it. It 

should also 

consider whether 

there is scope for 

improving the 

function by some 

co-ordination with 

Havant.  

Councils. The rollout of the new 

Constitutions at both Councils 

will provide a coordinated and 

broadly similar structure of 

scrutiny and oversight 

committees. 

 

Team Leader role has 

been recruited to and 

filled, and all other 

vacancies in the team 

have been filled.  

Mandatory training will be 

introduced for members of the 

Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee to ensure the role of 

the Committee is clear.   

 

Monitoring 

Officer 

March 2021 Completed. A general 

training session 

followed by two 

workshop training 

sessions on work 

planning has occurred 

for all Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee 

members and Cabinet 

members. The 

Councillor Development 

Programme, which 

includes mandatory 

training for O&S 

members as well as 

broad training on the 

structure for newly 

inducted Members, has 

been approved by the 

Member Development 

Panel. 

Recommendation 

8: Standards 

Committee 

Officers and 

Members need to 

commit to using the 

Standards 

Committee for its 

stated purpose and 

the Council 

acknowledge that 

the joint failure to 

act in a timely 

manner in the past 

has exacerbated 

problems. 

The Council has been working 

to improve understanding of 

the role of the Standards 

Committee since its re-

establishment in summer 2019. 

The independent governance 

report has provided an 

opportunity for improved 

visibility of the Standards 

Committee and the 

strengthened role of the 

Monitoring Officer has already 

begun to have an effect, with 

several cases already having 

been referred to the Standards 

Committee for investigation in 

October 2020 (all of which 

were resolved informally). 

Monitoring 

Officer / 

Group 

Leaders 

Ongoing The Council is 

continuing to raise the 

profile of the Standards 

Committee; a minimum 

of four (quarterly) 

meetings of the 

committee have been 

added to the corporate 

calendar and this will be 

the case in future years. 

There are standing 

items on the agenda 

that deal with reports on 

existing Member 

complaint matters, and 

any proposed 

amendments to the 

Constitution. 

Training on the structure and 

role of committees, including 

Standards Committee, is 

currently being developed for 

officers and will be 

incorporated into the 

introduction of the new 

Constitution. 

Monitoring 

Officer / Head 

of 

Organisational 

Development 

March 2021 Completed. Training for 

officers on the structure 

and role of committees, 

including Standards 

Committee, has been 

carried out. The 

Corporate Management 

Team (CMT), as well as 

Page 105



 

12 
 

the Legal and 

Democratic Services 

Teams have received 

training, and  CMT 

officers have cascaded 

the (recorded) training 

to the relevant staff. 

 

Recommendation 

9: Application of 

the Councillors’ 

Code of Conduct 

The Code of 

Conduct, which has 

been updated, 

should have a short 

annex as part of the 

Code describing 

many of the more 

routine issues a 

Councillor may face 

and deal with the 

issues of 

perception, as set 

out in 3.2.4. 

 

In the section in the 

‘Preamble to the 

Code’ reference is 

made to the need to 

‘comply with 

Protocols contained 

in or linked to the 

Council’s 

Constitution’. In my 

opinion the relevant 

protocols should be 

explicitly identified, 

and consideration 

should be given as 

to whether any of 

the Codes or 

Protocols should 

form part of the 

Councillors’ Code of 

Conduct. 

The Code of Conduct will be 

updated as recommended. 

Monitoring 

Officer 

December 

2021 

Completed - The short 

annex is accessible via 

hyperlink to the 

constitution document, 

and is in the form of a 

guide for members that 

covers practical issues 

and examples. This 

was considered and 

approved at the 

Standards Committee 

meeting of Sept 2021.   

On target - The 

preamble has been 

drafted and a format for 

this came to the 

Constitution Liaison 

Panel who in turn have 

requested it be  

recommended by the 

Standards Committee 

to progress to full 

Council to approve, as 

a change to the 

constitution is required. 

The target date for this 

action has been 

amended to December 

2021 due to the need 

for changes to the 

Constitution to be 

approved by full 

Council. 

Recommendation 

10: Group 

discipline 

In serious cases or 

repeated cases, in 

addition to 

This will be raised at Group 

Leaders meetings. The 

Monitoring Officer will provide 

advice and guidance where 

appropriate. Group Leaders 

should remain committed to 

addressing serious matters 

Group 

Leaders 

Ongoing This is an ongoing 

commitment. 

Page 106



 

13 
 

reference to the 

Standards 

Committee, Group 

Leaders should 

commit to the 

exercise of 

regulation through 

political groups. 

within their Groups promptly 

and with the benefit of 

advanced discussions with 

statutory officers. 

 

Recommendation 

11: Monitoring 

Officer 

Monitoring Officers 

have a key role in 

supporting the Chief 

Executive and 

members on the 

ethical values of the 

Council. Some 

Councils 

undervalue the post 

of Monitoring 

Officer. The Council 

should not do so 

and should ensure 

that at all times the 

post holder has not 

just the required 

technical skills and 

personality to work 

constructively with 

members but also 

the strength to 

intervene and take 

action when advice 

is not heeded. 

The Monitoring Officer role has 

been strengthened in recent 

years - as the Head of Legal, 

the post holder now manages 

both the Legal Services and 

Democratic Services teams, 

enabling a more joined-up 

approach. The Monitoring 

Officer is also now a regular 

member of the Corporate 

Governance Board and is 

benefitting from increased 

visibility within the organisation. 

It is important that the 

Monitoring Officer display both 

a depth of knowledge and 

experience in legal and 

governance matters but also 

have sufficient experience in 

such a role to afford the 

gravitas required to engage 

with Members and address 

interventions where required. 

 

Chief 

Executive 

Ongoing This is an ongoing 

commitment. 

During the course of 

2021, the Monitoring 

Officer has overseen 

some changes to firm 

up the pre-existing 

resources supporting 

the Monitoring Officer 

role. This has included 

settling in the new 

Democratic Services 

officer structure, and 

improving the 

opportunities for joined 

up working between the 

Legal Services team 

and the Democratic 

Services team, for 

example via joint 

service workshop days. 

The Monitoring Officer 

has lead on specific 

governance training for 

both services, again 

enhancing available 

resource to attend to 

governance matters. 

Recommendation 

12: Revisions to 

Codes and 

Protocols 

The Council should 

consider the 

observations I make 

about the content of 

those documents. 

There needs to be 

explicit statements 

on members not 

instructing officers, 

and strong advice 

cautioning against 

meetings with 

developers/possible 

The Codes and Protocols will 

be reviewed in accordance with 

the recommendation. 

 

Monitoring 

Officer 

December 

2021 

These Codes and 

Protocols have been 

reviewed by the 

Monitoring Officer. The 

Preamble to the 

Councillors’ Code of 

Conduct will now 

explain and link to other 

Codes and Protocols. 

The Planning Code 

(paragraph 4.2) firmly 

cautions members 

against agreeing to 

meetings with 

developers. If a meeting 

is necessary, officers 

should organise it and 

attend. The Planning 

Code (paragraphs 9.1 

Page 107



 

14 
 

business partners 

or contractors. 

and 9.3) prohibits 

pressurising officers to 

put forward particular 

recommendations and 

instructs members to 

respect officers’ 

professional 

independence. The 

Member/Officer 

Protocol (paragraph 

3.3.2) repeats an 

expectation that officers 

should not be bullied or 

harassed. Members 

must be aware of 

officers’ potential 

vulnerability. 

 

Member training will include a 

training module on the 

‘Member Enquiry Programme’. 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development / 

Monitoring 

Officer 

March 2021 This has been included 

in the new Councillor 

Development 

Programme which has 

been approved by the 

Councillor Development 

Panel. 

Recommendation 

13: Member 

development and 

training 

The observations 

from members 

about short 

refresher sessions 

including on 

conflicts of interest 

should be 

considered. The 

Council should 

review how it 

inducts new 

members in 

particular to get 

them up to speed 

as soon as 

possible. If new 

members cannot 

navigate the 

Council properly 

and effectively it 

hampers them in 

their patch role. 

Training for all 

members on the 

new Councillors’ 

Code of Conduct 

Mandatory training will be 

developed and delivered for all 

Members on these topics.  The 

councillor development 

programme will be an ongoing 

programme, refreshed and 

enhanced every year going 

forward, and will clearly define 

the training available to 

Members including 

requirements for mandatory 

attendance. 

 

 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development / 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Ongoing The new Councillor 

Development 

Programme features a 

series of mandatory 

and optional modules 

designed to ensure that 

councillors have the 

skills and knowledge to 

be able to fulfil their 

roles effectively. The 

training programme has 

been approved by the 

Councillor Development 

Panel and is now being 

implemented. 

Page 108



 

15 
 

and the revised 

Codes, Protocols 

and Policies should 

be mandatory, 

emphasising issues 

such as perception. 

Recommendation 

14: Staff surveys 

and exit interviews 

The Council should 

re-introduce exit 

interviews for staff. 

Those exit 

interviews should 

be used along with 

staff survey data to 

assess the health of 

the organisation. 

The feedback from 

such interviews and 

the staff survey 

should be made 

available as part of 

the annual 

governance 

statement and 

reported to the 

Standards 

Committee. There 

should be 

specifically worded 

questions in staff 

surveys about 

culture and 

relationships asked 

on an annual basis 

so the Council can 

track the health of 

the organisation. 

The HR service returned in-

house in April 2020 which has 

provided an opportunity to 

review and improve the exit 

process. The Organisational 

Development team are 

currently considering how best 

to gather the necessary 

information from exit interviews 

in order to ensure knowledge 

gained feeds into lessons 

learnt and will document this in 

their policies and procedures.  

 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

 

March 2021 

 

 

The exit questionnaire 

and process has been 

updated so data can be 

collated for the future. 

November 2021 

update: 

This is in Business As 

Usual. 

Feedback provided within exit 

interviews will remain 

confidential. Analysis by the 

HR team of data collected will 

enable trends/concerns to be 

highlighted to the Staff Welfare 

Group and interventions 

identified to address these.  

 

Section 151 

Officer / 

Monitoring 

Officer  

Ongoing The exit questionnaire 

and process has been 

updated so data can be 

collated for the future. 

This is an ongoing 

commitment. 

The Annual Governance 

Questionnaire, a survey which 

asks for respondents’ self-

assessment of how well 

governance arrangements are 

working in their service and 

feeds into the Annual 

Governance Statement, was 

opened up to all staff for the 

first time in January 2020. Each 

year the results are analysed, 

circulated and used to inform 

the governance work 

programme.  

In January 2021 the 

questionnaire will be repeated 

with new questions asking for 

respondents’ views on the 

culture and values of the 

organisation. This will then be 

reported in the Annual 

Governance Statement 2020-

21 which will be taken to Audit 

Section 151 

Officer / 

Monitoring 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Annual 

Governance 

Questionnaire run in 

January 2021 included 

a new question asking 

for respondents to 

select 'strongly agree', 

'agree', 'neutral or not 

sure', 'disagree' or 

'strongly disagree' to a 

range of statements 

describing the Council's 

culture and the 

behaviours displayed 

by both officers and 

councillors. The results 

of the questionnaire 

were analysed and 

shared with Executive 

Board and all staff via 

Team Talk. The number 

of respondents 

increased by 50% from 

the previous year's 

survey, which gives a 

Page 109



 

16 
 

Committee in draft form in June 

2021.  

higher degree of 

confidence in the 

results (larger sample 

size implies more 

representative of the 

staff population). These 

results were reported to 

Audit Committee in 

June 2021 as part of 

the draft Annual 

Governance Statement. 

The survey will be 

repeated in January 

2022 and the results 

will be analysed to 

identify any trends in 

the data to see if there 

have been any 

significant shifts in 

perception. 

Recommendation 

15: Appraisal and 

development of 

officers 

Regardless of the 

comments in this 

review it is 

important that 

members do feel 

able to feed back to 

senior officers their 

perception of the 

performance of staff 

in accordance with 

that protocol. (In so 

doing they should 

recognise they may 

only see how an 

officer ‘performs’ in 

a member 

environment and 

may not be able to 

judge the officer’s 

professional, 

technical, staff 

management and 

other skills). Senior 

officers should use 

that feedback to 

help with the 

development of 

staff. 

However senior 

members of the 

controlling and 

The appraisal process for 

senior officers will be reviewed 

by the Head of Organisational 

Development in consultation 

with the Chief Executive and 

the Group Leaders and 

approach will be confirmed for 

arrangements going forward. 

Head of 

Organisational 

Development 

August 

2021 

A ‘one solution’ 

performance 

management approach 

has been developed 

and reviewed by 

Executive Board.  

November 2021 

update: 

Performance 

management processes 

are being considered at 

the SoF Board on 8th 

December 2021. These 

processes align with the 

overall approach to 

business scorecards 

and the future direction 

of the SoF programme. 

Page 110



 

17 
 

opposition group 

should also have 

appropriate input 

into the annual 

appraisal of senior 

officers of the 

Council. The 

Council should 

consider how that 

could be structured 

for the Chief 

Executive. The 

Chief Executive 

should consider 

how this may be 

structured for direct 

reports and 

potentially Heads of 

Service. 

Recommendation 

16: Looking 

forward 

Members should 

put their energies 

into moving forward 

and consolidating 

improvements, 

rather than re-

investigating the 

past. 

At the 8th December 2020 

meeting of the Standards 

Committee, Members praised 

the work that has already been 

accomplished to address 

historic governance issues and 

acknowledged the importance 

of looking to the future. The 

Leader of the Council has 

made a public apology for 

behaviour that was allowed to 

continue under his 

administration and committed 

to holding regular Group 

Leaders meetings. It is hoped 

that a renewed effort for 

collaboration between the 

political groups will ensue and 

that these relationships will 

continue to strengthen and 

improve in the coming years. 

Members Ongoing This is an ongoing 

commitment. 

Recommendation 

17: Further 

assessment 

The Council should 

consider a further 

assessment of its 

culture and 

progress against 

these 

recommendations in 

12 months’ time, 

perhaps via a 

review report to 

Cabinet and the 

Progress made against this 

action plan will be monitored 

and overseen by the Chief 

Executive and the Council’s 

Corporate Governance Board, 

which will provide a follow-up 

report to Standards Committee 

in December 2021.  

Chief 

Executive 

December 

2021 

The action plan has 

been circulated to 

responsible people 

(listed against actions) 

in advance of Corporate 

Governance Board 

meetings to collect 

updates on progress 

which are then 

discussed during the 

meeting.  

The Board has provided 

a report to Standards 

Committee in 

Page 111



 

18 
 

Standards 

Committee. I 

understand the 

Council is to invite 

the LGA to conduct 

a peer review next 

year; the Council 

should explore 

whether that 

process can deliver 

a suitable progress 

report on these 

recommendations. 

December 2021 as 

promised. 

The LGA peer review in 2021 

will also consider corporate 

governance in the context of 

this review and the Chief 

Executive will ensure that this 

is stated in the Terms of 

Reference (though the final 

report may not be available 

until 2022, depending on 

continued uncertainties as a 

result of Covid-19). 

Chief 

Executive 

December 

2021 

Work is underway on 

the LGA peer review, 

being led by the 

Director of Corporate 

Services. Meetings with 

the LGA taken place 

and a brief has been 

pulled together. 

 

Page 112



  

                                                                            Page  1 of 7 

 

NON-EXEMPT  

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 

Standards Committee             7th December 2021   

      

Recommendations of Constitution Liaison Panel 

 

FOR RECOMMENDATION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Nick Drew  

Key Decision:  No   

Report Number: EHDC/034/2021 

 

 

1. Purpose 

This paper summarises the consideration of possible changes to the Council’s 

Constitution undertaken by the Constitution Liaison Panel at its meeting on 29 

September 2021. The recommendations of the Liaison Panel across two topic 

areas are set out below. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Members are requested consider the recommendations of the Constitution 

Liaison Panel and, if agreed, to recommend to full Council the following changes 

to the Constitution: -  

 The addition of words to the Preamble to the Councillors’ Code of Conduct 

(Part 4 Section B of the Constitution) as set out in paragraph 4.4. of the report 

to place the Code in context and to link it to connected policies and protocols 

– all in accordance with the recommendations of the Bowles’ governance 

review  

Page 113



  

                                                                            Page  2 of 7 

 

 Confirmation that variation or removal of planning conditions, and other 

amendments to approved schemes, are only reserved to the Planning 

Committee where they have a significant impact or change the character of a 

planning permission (approving an amendment to paragraph 2.2.7 of Part 2 

Section E1 of the Constitution as set out in paragraph 5.2 of the report) 

2.2. The new wording that would give effect to these changes is set out in the report. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. The Council’s Constitution, recently adopted in a modernised form, is intended to 

be kept under regular review and the Standards Committee is charged with 

considering any substantive amendments and recommending thereon to the 

Council. The Constitution Liaison Panel’s role is to consider selected 

Constitutional topics and to make appropriate proposals to the Committee.  

3.2. The membership of the cross-party Constitution Liaison Panel was approved by 

the Committee at its June meeting. On 29 September 2021 the Liaison Panel had 

its first meeting. Cllr A Williams was appointed as Chairman. Cllr P Langley was 

appointed Vice-Chair. The Liaison Panel expressed satisfaction with the work that 

had been undertaken in adopting a new Constitution and it was appreciative of 

the benefits that flowed from the application of uniform provisions across 

authorities with a shared workforce. The Panel was generally supportive of 

Constitutional changes that would assist speed of handling in the planning field 

and bring greater clarity to the operation of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct.   

4. Preamble to Councillors’ Code of Conduct 

4.1. The findings of an independent governance review carried out by David Bowles 

were published in December 2020. The recommendations arising from that review 

were distilled into the Governance Improvement Action Plan (GIAP) and the 

Standards Committee is receiving regular updates on progress made so far 

against the action plan. Completion of the GIAP is being monitored and overseen 

by the Corporate Management Board which is chaired by the Monitoring Officer.  

Page 114



  

                                                                            Page  3 of 7 

 

4.2. Recommendation 9 of the report made by David Bowles addressed the 

application of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct. The updated Code was 

commended as an improvement to the Council’s ethical governance framework, 

but it was considered beneficial to supplement the Code with practical guidance 

“describing how (the Code) may be applied in many of the more routine issues a 

Councillor may face and deal with the issues of perception”. This new guidance 

was approved by the Committee at its meeting on 7 September 2021. 

4.3. David Bowles also thought it would be useful if the preamble to the Code explicitly 

referred to the different protocols and policies that supported the operation of the 

Code. This suggestion has merit and officers have drafted additional wording 

which could be inserted as a second paragraph in the preamble to the Code. This 

should satisfy what Bowles envisaged and discharge the recommended step in 

the Improvement Plan. The paragraph recognises the Code as being at the centre 

of ethical propriety but it draws in (and hyperlinks will navigate to) the key policies 

(which are introduced and briefly explained).   

4.4. The Liaison Panel approved the addition of new text to the Preamble (Part 4 of 

Section B to the Constitution) as set out below:-  

Paragraph 1 to be amended to read 

This Preamble provides an explanatory introduction to the Councillors’ Code of       

Conduct. A plain language and practical Guide is also available. The Preamble 

and Guide do not form part of the Code of Conduct, and in the event of any 

conflict between the Preamble/Guide and the Code, the Code shall take 

precedence. The Standards Committee is responsible for overseeing the 

Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  

      New Paragraph inserted after paragraph 1 

The Councillors’ Code of Conduct is positioned at the centre of the Council’s 

framework for ethical governance. The Code is supported by, and should be read 

in conjunction with, other policies and protocols which together set out important 

obligations and standards for maintaining public confidence in councillor conduct 

and propriety. Section C of this Part of the Constitution contains a 

Councillor/Officer Protocol which sets out the nature of the working relationship 

between elected members and officers and how these different roles interact. 

Section D of this Part of the Constitution contains a Councillors’ Planning Code of 

Conduct which deals specifically with councillor involvement in Town and Country 

Planning, an important Council function generating much public engagement. The 

Page 115



  

                                                                            Page  4 of 7 

 

Planning Code covers the standards expected of councillors when, for example, 

dealing with developers or ensuring fairness and impartiality in decision-making. 

There are other non-Constitutional documents which also seek to maintain and 

promote high standards amongst councillors. A Gifts and Hospitality Policy for 

Councillors provides a clear set of rules on the limited circumstances when receipt 

of gifts or hospitality may be acceptable. Together these various policies and 

protocols provide a robust framework for maintaining and promoting ethical 

propriety in everything councillors do day-to-day.     

5. Minor Amendments to Approved Schemes 

5.1. The Constitution at present reserves to the Planning Committee the power to 

determine an application “to vary or remove a condition that was imposed by the 

Planning Committee” (paragraph 2.2.7). 

5.2. An unintended consequence of this provision is that, strictly applied, it requires 

the bringing back to Committee of all minor changes to conditions, or other minor 

amendments to approved schemes, which in themselves are uncontroversial and 

raise no significant planning issues. An alternative wording to the reserved power 

was agreed: - 

“Where the application is to vary or remove a condition that was imposed by the 

Planning Committee, on an application under section 73 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990, or to make any other amendment to an approved scheme, 

which the Head of Planning in consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee 

is of the opinion will have a significant impact on the relevant planning permission 

to which the amendment or condition may attach so as to change the character 

and basis of that planning permission.”     

5.3. The Liaison Panel had the benefit of members with long and current experience of 

the planning process and service on the Planning Committee. The Panel noted 

that this clarification of planning delegations was also being recommended for 

approval at Havant Borough Council. The Panel was assured that major 

applications would continue to be determined by the Planning Committee. 

Planning officers would only deal with amendments that were non-material and 

not changing the scale or nature of an application previously approved. 

Page 116



  

                                                                            Page  5 of 7 

 

6. Additional Budgetary Implications  

6.1. None.  

7. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

7.1. Not applicable. 

8. Options considered 

8.1. Not applicable.  

9. Resource Implications 

9.1. Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

9.2. Human Resources Implications 

None.  

9.3. Information Governance Implications 

None. 

9.4. Links to Shaping our Future Programme 

9.5. Despite the recent alignment of Constitutions between the two councils, the 

programme recognises the distinct democratic identity of each. However, this 

report proposes changes that are likely to be appropriate for each authority. The 

Constitution Liaison Panel was supportive of a continuing convergence in matters 

of ethical propriety.    

9.6. Other resource implications 

There are no other resource implications arising. 

10. Legal Implications 

Page 117



  

                                                                            Page  6 of 7 

 

10.1. These changes can be accommodated within the Constitution without adverse 

legal implications.  

11. Risks 

11.1. There are no known risks arising from this report.  

12. Consultation  

12.1. Not applicable. 

13. Communication 

13.1. Not applicable. 

14. Appendices 

14.1. None. 

15. Background papers 

15.1. None other than published documents. 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey    

Section 151 Officer:  Lydia Morrison 8 October 2021  

  

Contact Officer  

Name:  Alan Harrison 

Job Title: Corporate Governance Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date:  2021 

This report is made in accordance with the duty to monitor and review the Constitution 

(paragraph 10 of Part 1 to the Constitution). After consideration by the Standards 

Committee, any changes to the Constitution will be approved by Full Council.   

Page 118



  

                                                                            Page  7 of 7 

 

Telephone: 02392 446059  

E-mail: Alan.Harrison@havant.gov.uk 

  

 

 

Page 119

mailto:Alan.Harrison@havant.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Leader and Corporate Strategy Portfolio – Cllr. Richard Millard 

 

Corporate Performance  
Updates for the Quarter 3 performance report are currently being gathered. These 
will be tabled via Executive Board and then Cabinet Briefing during January and 
February, along with the Period 9 Finance Report. As for previous quarters, this 
report will comprehensively update on key organisational indicators and progress 
against the Corporate Action Plan. Once this has been reviewed and approved, it will 
be published on our website. 
 
Looking forward, a new performance framework continues to be developed as part of 
the Shaping our Future Programme, based around Balanced Scorecard. This 
accounts for emerging developments in terms of strategic priorities. 
 
Environmental Services 
All waste collection services are currently operating on schedule including Garden 
Waste which Norse has recovered back to normal service, following delays caused 
by the HGV driver shortage in the summer and vehicle issues. The GW service is 
currently closed to new customers whilst proposals for adding further capacity are 
considered. Contingency plans have been prepared in case Covid Omicron causes 
significantly higher staff absences in the short to medium term. 
 
Since late October Norse has been clearing the roads and pavements on the priority 
leafing schedule. The priority leafing schedule covers areas that have been identified 
as having heavy leaf fall in the autumn, coupled with high pedestrian footfall or 
potential health and safety implications for road users.  
 
Norse are working their way around the District completing winter pruning of hedges 
and shrub beds, this work needs to be completed before the end of February when 
the bird nesting season starts. 

A full litter pick and mechanical sweep of the A3 and all slip and link roads has been 
booked in to start on Monday 11th January. The work will take place overnight for a 
duration of 25 nights with lane and road closures in place. Litter picking and traffic 
management will be carried out by Chevron TM, with mechanical sweeping being 
carried out by Norse SE. 

There has been an increase in ASB in public conveniences during 2021, resulting in 
some early closures and lockdown of damaged facilities, however we reverted to 
normal opening times in December. We will continue to monitor the situation and 
review opening times if the ASB becomes hazardous to the cleansing operatives. 
 
Leisure 
The East Hampshire Leisure contract has performed well in the latest period. While 
this is the quietest period in the year, the operators' participation levels have been 
maintained or increased. The operator has been able to continue growing core 
services and products.  
 
The support payments from the National Leisure Recovery Fund have now ended. 
This support was vital to ensure that the service could restart following the removal 
of covid restrictions. The contract is now well-positioned to thrive without 

Page 121

Agenda Item 9



them. Officers continue to work closely with the operator to ensure that the contract's 
financial recovery is maintained.  
  
The centres will all be receiving remedial decorating and service work over the quiet 
Christmas period to limit the impact on customer experience and ensure that they 
are well-positioned to deliver exceptional service in the busy new year. 
 
Whitehill & Bordon Update 

Councillors were updated in December on the progress of the revised planning 
application for the next stage of the town centre that includes the foodstore 
supermarket, retail, and residential dwellings as well as the refurbishment of the 
former Sergeant’s Mess into the Mess Hall, a leisure and entertainment offer to 
complement current facilities.  The planning application has now been received.  
Good progress continues with the partner discussions on bringing forward The 
Health Hub.      

Since launching the Whitehill & Bordon retrofit grant scheme in November 2021 to 
allow residents of Whitehill & Bordon (including Lindford) to make energy efficient 
improvements to their homes; we have received 61 applications of interest and had 
two completed application forms. It is anticipated that £100,000 will be spent from 
the grant monies (of £150,000 available) if all applicants go ahead with proposed 
measures.  

A Winter Solstice Walk was held in December 2021 to audit the existing wayfinding 
items along the Green Loop and to identify any areas that require more intervention. 
The ‘Diamond Moments’ continue to progress following the bulb planting event in 
October, further development of the next Diamond Moment will progress in the new 
year.  The team remain vigilant for any additional funding that may become available 
to progress further Diamond Moments. 

The team continue to work with Rob Allerston at The Phoenix Theatre and Arts centre 
to identify funding available to deliver projects and ensure the longevity of the Theatre 
as a centre for East Hampshire. We are currently preparing for an application to Arts 
Council England’s National Portfolio Organisations (NPO) fund. This fund would 
provide revenue funding for 3 years (2023-2026) allowing The Phoenix to deliver its 
long-term aspirations and the needs of residents across East Hampshire. 

 
EH Commercial Services  
In response to the Omicron variant the Company has transitioned back to Covid 
Marshal work from Enforcement in 3 authority areas, including EHDC.  We are in the 
process of onboarding an 11th partner authority ready for April 2022.  Discussions 
continue with two large authorities and a central government agency.   We also hope 
to win our first work for monitoring fly-tipping at bring-sites using AI equipped 
cameras.  In line with many businesses, recruitment and retention remain our 
greatest concern and focus for now.      
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 122



 

Deputy Leader, Welfare and Community Engagement – Cllr. Julie Butler 
 

Pinewood Pods 
I'm delighted to advise you that the Council and Velocity are now in contract for the 
construction of the pods in Bordon.  
 
It's been 3 years to get to this point, but now we're on the home straight!  Works on 
site will begin mid-January 2022, with occupancy commencing in the 
summer.  These pods will mean an additional 10 units of temporary accommodation 
to use as an alternative to B&B. 
The Cabinet Liaison Panel is working with officers on a draft Affordable Housing 
Strategy where we will continue to identify opportunities to maximise the number of 
new units developed in the district and also consider innovative opportunities to 
deliver differently. 
 
Affordable Housing 
During Q3 there have been 49 units handed over meaning a total so far this year of 
122 
 

Homelessness 

The Rough Sleeper count in November identified 5 rough sleepers - all were 
contacted and offered alternative options but not all accepted the offers of 
assistance.  Should you be aware of anyone sleeping rough please refer to the 
Housing Team who will ensure contact is made. 

So far this winter SWEP - Serious Weather Emergency Protocol has been instigated 
on two occasions - this when the weather is zero and below for 3 consecutive nights 
- we at EHDC however instigate it before then and also when it is extremely wet and 
windy. 
 

I wanted to let you all know that Kerry Hoskins our Housing Options and Advice 
Manager, who leads our team is sadly going to be off sick for 6 months - we are 
going to really miss Kerry but I am sure you will all join me in sending our best 
wishes to her.  Whilst Kerry is off Daniel Khan who is an interim working in Havant, 
will be alongside, Tracey Wood supporting the team.  If you have any housing 
queries, please send to both Tracey and Dan who will ensure that you receive a 
response. 
 

After some delays in nominations from the Home Office both the properties offered 
to house Afghan families are now occupied/under offer. 

 

Local Response Centre 

The LRC was operational (covered by officers from both councils on a rota) over 
Christmas and only received 2 calls (HBC related).  With a total of 27 during 
Oct/Nov./Dec only 4 have been from EH.   All were dealt with promptly.  The LRC 
continues to run until the end of March 2022 as referrals are expected to rise during 
the coming weeks - of the 27 referrals 14 were in December. 

Page 123



 
Community  

Community groups can get the inside track on funding for their projects through East 
Hampshire District Council’s Meet the Funders event. At the meeting held in Alton 
Community Centre, local clubs and charities can sit down with funding organisations 
like the National Lottery and the Arts Council to find out how to maximise their 
funding applications. Funding organisations confirmed to attend the event, held on 
Wednesday 30 March, are:  

East Hampshire District Council/Arts Council/National Lottery Community Fund  
Heritage Lottery Fund/Hants and Isle of Wight Community Foundation/Energise Me  

For more information contact EHDC Community Officer Beth Daly 
on bethany.daly@easthants.gov.uk or 07570 951334.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124

mailto:bethany.daly@easthants.gov.uk


 
 

Property – Cllr. Tony Costigan 
 

 
Starting as always with rent collection, reflecting the importance placed on revenues, 
I am pleased to report that the average rent collection for the seven full “pandemic” 
quarters commencing March 2020 now stands at 98%. We are hopeful that high 
levels can continue to be maintained, absent any further extended “Pandemic 
related” lockdowns. 
 
I will provide a verbal update on the December collection at the meeting, since at the 
time of writing, the receipts over the Xmas period are still being reconciled. 
 
The ongoing uncertainty around how the Pandemic will ultimately play out continues 
to bring challenges for the Property Team. On the investment side, the retail 
ownerships are holding up well. We expect to complete the re-letting of the only 
vacant unit at Rams Walk during the next few days with a retailer that was 
specifically targeted by the team as being a good “fit” for the scheme. Likewise, 
several offers have been received to take a retail unit in Chichester which was 
handed back on lease expiry in September. That is next door to a Tesco Express 
owned by EHDC on which the team has just completed a lease extension to 15 
years.  
 
The industrial / warehouse sector continues to offer strong performance; we currently 
have no vacant units and constant enquiries from parties seeking space. That is 
something that continues to be looked at from a re-generation perspective. 
 
The office market remains the one that is most static. In the same way that EHDC 
continues to trial alternative working methods, most occupiers are yet to resolve 
what their future practices look like and the corresponding office needs. What is 
already evident is that better quality offices will fare better as staff welfare and green 
credentials become higher priorities in the selection process. 
 
The team is very busy on the operational portfolio side too. Public open spaces 
remain popular, and a regular inspection regime is in place for Council owned 
assets. The assets also provide some options for the ongoing Pandemic response 
effort, which is fast moving and un-predictable. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



 
Governance and Legal – Cllr. Nick Drew 
 
Health and Safety (H&S) 
 
A spot check visit was carried out by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) on 
Christmas Eve and they were satisfied that adequate Covid secure control measures 
are in place to protect staff and visitors within the offices. 
 
The increased transmission of the omicron variant of covid has required a further 
review of office measures. Team meetings have been paused, work bubbles have 
been reintroduced and a policy of working from home if you can has been put in 
place.  
 
Contractors, monitoring continues ensuring that compliance is taking place in line 
with the HSAWA.  

 
Business Continuity (BCP) 
 
Business continuity planning is underway to manage the impact of the Omicron 
variant and the expected rise in sickness rates. 3% of the workforce are absent due 
to covid but this is anticipated to rise over the coming weeks. Daily monitoring will 
commence in January relating to reports of covid cases amongst services and 
impacts on resourcing and the delivery of front-line Council services.  
 
A review of Priority 1 and 2 services is underway to identify critical staff and establish 
if there is a requirement to deploy staff to support with those critical roles. This 
monitoring will also include those outsourced services with Capita and Norse.  
 
Potential for cyber security threat has increased. A review is underway to consider 
how this risk is best managed to ensure the resilience of IT systems and the 
continuity of service delivery. A new Cyber and IT loss flow chart created and 
circulated. 
 
Emergency Planning 
 
No major incidents to report. 
 
Continuing to support the Covid response across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Local Resilience Forum.  
 
Strategic HR and OD  
The Strategic HR and OD team are working on a number of projects to support the 
council strategy: 
  
Transformation – Shaping Our Future 
We continue to support the strategic project board and project team with the HR and 
OD aspects of this programme.  We are currently working on the development of a 
performance scorecard in conjunction with Matt Goodwin and the software suppliers.  
Work is underway on the Spans and Layers project commissioned from the LGA. 
 
Future Working 

Page 126



The trial went live on 19th July and has been extended to allow the use of the 
collaboration spaces to also be trialled.  This is due to conclude towards the end of 
January 2022.  The team are now involved in planning to review the staff survey 
results for the on-going trial.  The Hybrid Working policy will go to the Joint HR 
Committee’s next meeting for approval.   
  
Learning and Development  
Completion rates for the e-Learning system have increased very substantially.  The 
content for the 2022-23 year is now being reviewed.  Development DIY is published 
every two months with ideas and support for self-development. An L&D passport is 
being created which will ensure that all staff complete all mandatory elements of 
training before being able to progress to other council opportunities e.g. promotion. 
 
Performance Management 
Implementation of a revised approach to performance management has been 
developed by the HR advisory team, following approval by Executive 
Board.  Implementation is now supported by the in-house team who are presenting a 
number of focused “bite-size” sessions both live and on-line.  This supports the PDR 
and talent modules within the existing My View software package. 
 

Recruitment 
The team have worked with the supplier and the system is now being trialled with a 
small number of live vacancies.  It will be launched for use across the councils in 
November.  The onboarding module is also now being tested and will allow the full 
automation of the end-to-end process.  This will include the issue of references and 
contracts directly from the system. 
 

Communications and Marketing 

EHDC Website and social media update 

October – December 2021 

Website information  

In the third quarter of the year:  

 The council website had more than 84,000 visits 

 Bin collections (in particular the new bin calendars) was the most viewed 
service area, followed by planning and council tax 

 The website was mainly viewed from London, Alton and Petersfield 

 52% of users access the website from a mobile device – mainly using an 
Apple iPhone. 

 There are on average 30 updates made to the website each day to ensure it 
is relevant and up to date. 

Coronavirus 

The website has been updated to reflect England moving to Plan B in response to 
the risks of the Omicron variant. 
 

Page 127



The website has encouraged residents to get their booster vaccination. It has also 
covered the restrictions as part of moving to Plan B including face masks in indoor 
settings and working from home where possible. 
 
There are also many links to the GOV.UK website and the NHS website which 
provides additional information. 

Accessibility update 

New accessibility regulations came into force in September 2020 which ensures the 
website can be used by as many people as possible. 
 
The last accessibility test was on Tuesday 14 December 2021. The test was carried 
out by Site Improve who gave this website an accessibility score of 90.1/100. 

Social media update 

Quarter three has been steady across all channels in terms of communicating 
changes to coronavirus guidelines including the move to Plan B coronavirus 
restrictions. 

Facebook - 86 new likes meaning we are now on 5,470. 

Our top post was about there being no changes to bin collections during the 
Christmas period, this had a mixed response from residents. The post reached 
15,867 accounts and has 210 reactions (likes, comments and shares). 

Twitter - 49 new followers (+55% on the last quarter) meaning we are now on 3,749. 

Instagram - 20 new likes meaning we are now on 1,101. 

LinkedIn - 54 new likes meaning we are now on 1,359 

IT 

Towards the end of January, early February, you will experience a change in the way 
you log into your IT account. This is part of a number of best-practice initiatives 
officers have been working on with Capita. We will ensure there is communication in 
advance of this change and that clear instructions are issued.  
 
The locking of accounts to force password changes to 12 characters was not 
handled in the best manner. Capita have apologised for the inconsistency in 
approach and have listened to the valid concerns raised around the issue of generic 
passwords. As soon as the issue became apparent – and thank you to everyone 
who reported the issue to me – Officers set to work to ensure Capita re-instated the 
proper processes for issuing passwords, and sought clarity from Capita on which 
Councillors were impacted. All those continuing to experience difficulties were 
contacted individually by Capita and also supported by democratic services in taking 
the necessary action to access the IT systems again.  
  

 
 
 

Page 128



Planning – Cllr. Angela Glass 
 
Planning Policy Committee 
 
At the last Planning Policy Committee on Monday 20th December, 2021, the 
Committee considered the Draft Climate Change and Sustainable Construction 
Supplementary Planning Document, the Statement of Community Involvement and 
the Revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy, 
and whether to approve a public Consultation, for six weeks from Wednesday 22nd 
December 2021 to 2nd February 2022.  The Options were either to approve this, or 
not.  The document was presented by Miss Victoria Potts and had previously been 
considered in depth by the Local Plan Working Group.  After questions were 
answered, followed by a short debate, the Committee approved the public 
Consultation. 
 
The Statement of Community Involvement is a document that the Council is required 
to publish, setting out how local communities, businesses and other interested 
groups can be involved when EHDC prepares its planning policies, and when it 
determines its planning applications.  The current SCI was adopted in July 2018, and 
new digital approaches to public consultation have now emerged. The new 
document takes into account the new methods and how to utilise them in the 
preparation of the new Local Plan.  The six-week consultation was approved, until 
22nd February 2022, with time for responses, and to amend the SCI by March 2022, 
and to progress the SCI for Adoption at Full Council in May 2022. 
 
The Revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy 
SPD 2016, was brought to the Committee to seek to approve to recommend to Full 
Council its revocation.  Since its adoption there have been many changes to how 
EHDC plans for infrastructure and amendments made to legislation, namely the CIL 
Regulations 2010 as amended.  The adopted SPD is becoming out of date and in 
some instances, unlawful. A recommendation was brought to Council on the 14th 
January 2021 to factually update the SPD to remove out of date references to CIL, to 
remove aspects that no longer satisfy the relevant legislation and retain those parts 
that can still be lawfully implemented.  Since 2019 there has been a requirement to 
produce an annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) and the first IFS was 
published in December 2020. The new IFS for December 2021 was appended to the 
Agenda.  
 
After some questions concerning the proposed Revocation, and discussion, approval 
was given to recommend the Revocation to the next Full Council for approval.  This 
was Miss Potts’ final meeting, and she has now left EHDC.  She was thanked by 
members of the Committee for her hard work on the Planning Policy Team, 
preparing the new Draft Local Plan. 
 
Development Management 
 
Many applications continue to be received, although the volume has declined a little. 
Ms. Julia Mansi, Development and Building Control Manager, leaves EHDC at the 
beginning of January, after many years with the District Council and members 
thanked her for all her hard work with the Planning team. 
Mr. Simon Rowberry has joined EHDC as the new interim Head of Planning. 

 
 

Page 129



Finance – Cllr. Charles Louisson 
 

 

Finance 
The Quarter 2 performance report monitoring reported to Members highlighted a 
projected year end deficit of £0.216 million. We expect that management action will 
mean that by the end of the year the council will breakeven. The primary issue is 
income, particularly from parking, not fully recovering from the pandemic. 

On-going monitoring during quarter 3 has not identified any significant new areas of 
concern. 

The 2022/23 budget setting cycle is in progress and will be reported to members in 
late January. 

 
Benefits Service  

As of 4th January 2022 we have made almost 250 Test & Trace Isolation payments 
(both Standard & Discretionary awards) totalling almost £125,000 against 1087 
applications 

 
Discretionary Housing Payment 
Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) is a way of helping residents if the housing 
benefit or Universal Credit (housing costs element) they receive is not enough to pay 
the resident’s rent.  DHP’s are not the same as housing benefit or Universal Credit. 
They are special payments, which come from a separate cash limited fund. 
 

To the end of December 2021, we have made or committed a total of over £81,000 
to help residents. A further £43,000 is available to meet claims submitted in the 
fourth quarter (Jan-Mar 2022).  

 
Revenues Service  
The government is introducing a new grant scheme to support businesses that are 
experiencing difficulties because of the Omicron Covid variant. 
 
Hospitality (defined as accommodation, food & beverage services) and leisure 
premises will benefit from targeted grant support. Recipients must be solvent 
businesses, and ratepayers in the hospitality and leisure sector. For example, a pub; 
hotel; restaurant; bar; cinema; or amusement park.  
 

Rateable Value (per premises) £0-15k £15-51k >£51k 

Value of grant available £2.7k £4k £6k 

 
The Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) will be opened between the 5th January and 
the 23rd January to help businesses that have impacted due to the Government’s 
response in December 2021, to the Omicron variant, and implementing Plan B. 
 
The Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) is also being topped up so local authorities 
(LAs) can continue to use their discretion to support other businesses in their area, 
based on local economic need. 
 
 

Page 130



Insight Team  

The team continue to provide economic dashboard updates to the Business and 
Economy Recovery group on key data and statistics to inform local economic outlook 
and decision-making. 

The team are currently updating the economic profile of the district which includes 
figures on employment rates, job density, earnings, benefit claimants and 
businesses.  

 
Elections – Registration Service  

We have completed the annual canvass and republished on 1st December.  

We had several by-elections, Greatham Parish was our last one in November.  

We are now working on tidying the register and looking at a polling station review.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 131



Community Development, Placemaking & Infrastructure – Cllr. Robert Mocatta 
 
Environmental Services 
 
All waste collection services are currently operating on schedule including Garden 
Waste which Norse has recovered back to normal service, following delays caused by 
the HGV driver shortage in the summer and vehicle issues. The GW service is 
currently closed to new customers whilst proposals for adding further capacity are 
considered. Contingency plans have been prepared in case Covid Omicron causes 
significantly higher staff absences in the short to medium term. 
 
Since late October Norse has been clearing the roads and pavements on the priority 
leafing schedule. The priority leafing schedule covers areas that have been identified 
as having heavy leaf fall in the autumn, coupled with high pedestrian footfall or 
potential health and safety implications for road users.  
 
Norse are working their way around the District completing winter pruning of hedges 
and shrub beds, this work needs to be completed before the end of February when 
the bird nesting season starts. 

A full litter pick and mechanical sweep of the A3 and all slip and link roads has been 
booked in to start on Monday 11th January. The work will take place overnight for a 
duration of 25 nights with lane and road closures in place. Litter picking and traffic 
management will be carried out by Chevron TM, with mechanical sweeping being 
carried out by Norse SE. 

There has been an increase in ASB in public conveniences during 2021, resulting in 
some early closures and lockdown of damaged facilities, however we reverted to 
normal opening times in December. We will continue to monitor the situation and 
review opening times if the ASB becomes hazardous to the cleansing operatives. 
 

Place-Making  

Ongoing liaison continues amongst all tiers of local government to support delivery of 
important place making projects: 

 The Alton Station Forecourt Enhancement Project continues. Awaiting 
technical, property and landlord approvals. We anticipate starting public 
engagement and then to begin works on site late Spring 2022. 

 Demolition work is well advanced at the former Molson Coors brewery site in 
Alton and construction of the Community Hub is underway on the phase 1 area 
of the site. Co-ordination across all parties continues with place making aspects 
from the S106 agreement including a link from the site to Alton High Street via 
Manor car park and improvements to the footpath along the railway line and 
linking the site to Paper Mill Lane and Alton station.  

 Pre-feasibility stakeholder workshops are due to start in January 2022 for the 
Petersfield priority place making work on key junctions in and around the town 
centre, including the town spine.  Discussions regarding the proposed Festival 
Hall refurbishment consultation also continues with Petersfield Town Council.  

 The Land East of Horndean site is still awaiting completion of the S106 legal 
agreement, meanwhile discussions on the design code and first parcel for 
development are taking place with the developer Bloor.  

 The Havant Thicket Reservoir project is progressing with Portsmouth Water 

Page 132



Company procuring their main contractors with selection expected in March 
2022. We are seeking to influence the procurement to ensure that local people 
are employed and training opportunities created.  

 Work continues across various teams in the District Council, plus at all levels 
of local government within the district, to deliver the Welcome Back Fund.  The 
team helped to fund Christmas events in Alton, as well as projects in Sheet, 
Petersfield and Steep.  The retail reports by Heartflood, on the business 
engagement work last year, are in the process of being finalised.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



 
 
 

Economic Development and Rural Affairs – Cllr. Ken Moon 
 

All Member Briefing 24 Jan 2022 – Economy Team Programme  

EHDC’s Economy team has played a key role in helping businesses survive during 
the pandemic and will continue to play a key role in supporting sustained economic 
recovery across the district. With that in mind, a virtual briefing session has been 
arranged for 24 Jan (1700-1800) to brief Councillors on the work of the Economy 
team and the strategic priorities for the East Hampshire economy. This will focus on 
the key themes of;  

 Supporting young people into work  

 Supporting business  

 Strategic employment sites  

The briefing will be introduced by myself as Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development & Rural Affairs and will include an outline of priority projects and 
initiatives along with an opportunity to meet members of the officer team. There will 
also be an opportunity for questions and discussion.  
 

The economic prosperity of the district is critically important for both our residents 
and businesses and we would very much encourage your attendance and 
participation 
 

Covid 19 Business Grants  

The Economy team are once again supporting local businesses to apply for 
additional grant funding under the Government’s Covid-19 support programme. The 
most recent grant schemes were launched in early January and provide funding 
support for those that have been financially impacted by the recent plan B 
restrictions including hospitality & leisure related industries. The team are working 
very closely with Revenues, Customer Services and Communications to deliver this 
support promptly in the same way as previous grant programmes.  

 

Further information on Covid-19 business grants can be found on the Council’s 
website https://www.easthants.gov.uk/business-support 

Rebel Business School  

17 entrepreneurs from East Hampshire were among 97 businesses in Hampshire 

who attended the Rebel Business School in October. 

The free, week-long online course provided attendees with a new way of thinking, 

giving them practical ways to get their ideas off the ground. The course provided a 

range of advice and support needed to get a business idea up and running. 

A number of businesses have been created as a result of the course in sectors such 

as real estate, crafts, education, communications, food services, social care, and 

arts. 

The cost per attendee was £209 and the estimated contribution to the local economy 

in East Hampshire is estimated to be around £115,224 per annum.  

Page 134

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/business-support


 
Neighbourhood Quality – Cllr. Ingrid Thomas  

 

Planning Enforcement 

The team continues to be extremely busy, however, the commitment and tenacity of 
the team has turned into some really positive outcomes for the service of late. 
Recent activity undertaken by the Planning Enforcement team has resulted in the 
following. 

A property owner in Horndean has recently received a fine for clearing protected 
woodland for use as a garden. The resident pleaded guilty to felling trees that were 
under the protection of an East Hampshire District Council Woodland Tree 
Preservation Order and was fined £8,000 and ordered to pay costs as well as a 
victim surcharge amounting to over £2,000. 

A property owner in Alton has been fined for a second time for the non-compliance 
with a Section 215 Notice and ordered by the court to comply with the Notice as 
soon as possible. 

Enforcement notices served on addresses in Rowlands Castle and Horndean for not 
complying with planning refusals are both currently at appeal. 

An injunction served on a property in Blendworth in January 2021 has resulted in 
residential use of the site for four caravans being stopped and development halted. 
This case continues in the high court throughout January 2022 for the breach of the 
injunction 

 

Environmental Health 

Environmental Health are continuing on our ‘business as usual’ workstreams, whilst 
also keeping one eye on the situation relating to the pandemic.   

At present, there are not many COVID restrictions that fall to the local authority to 
enforce, however this could change and we are prepared to act if and when this 
occurs.   

 

Parking & Traffic Management 

Working in partnership with both Alton and Petersfield town councils, we were able 
to offer successful parking concessions during December to encourage and increase 
footfall in our local town centres. 

December also saw a long-standing member of the Civil Enforcement team retire. 
So, from January the team has been temporarily restructured to ensure that effective 
parking enforcement and focused patrols continue. 

The team continues to work on transitioning from actual to virtual permits. This is 
gathering pace and it is anticipated that we should be able to go live before April 
2022. 

The current works programme for the Traffic Management team is on track to be 
completed by year end and work is already underway to determine the programme 
for the forthcoming year.  

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Previous Minutes
	6 Council Tax Support Scheme
	7 The Revocation of the Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy SPD 2016
	Planning Contributions and CIL Supplementary Planning Document - April 2016
	IFS 2021 V3

	8 Cabinet and Committee Recommendations
	EHDC GIAP update to Dec 2021 Standards Committee 071221 v 4 FINAL
	7.12.21 EHDC Standards Committee report - recs of Constitution Liaison Panel

	9 Portfolio Holder Reports to Council

